
 

 

CITY OF FULSHEAR 
“FIND YOUR FUTURE IN FULSHEAR” 

30603 FM 1093 WEST/ PO BOX 279 ~ FULSHEAR, TEXAS 77441 
PHONE: 281-346-1796 ~ FAX: 281-346-2556 

WWW.FULSHEARTEXAS.GOV 
 

CITY COUNCIL: 

MAYOR: Aaron Groff   MAYOR PRO-TEM: Kaye Kahlich COUNCIL MEMBER: Kent Pool 
COUNCIL MEMBER: Kevin White COUNCIL MEMBER: Debra Cates COUNCIL MEMBER: Lisa Martin 
COUNCIL MEMBER: Joel Patterson COUNCIL MEMBER: John Kelly 
 
 

STAFF: 

CITY MANAGER: Jack Harper      CITY SECRETARY: Kimberly Kopecky  CITY ATTORNEY: J. Grady Randle 

 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MAY 19, 2020 
  
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN OF A REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR TO BE 

HELD BY VIDEOCONFERENCE ON TUESDAY, MAY 19, 2020 AT 7:00 P.M., FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

CONSIDERING THE FOLLOWING ITEMS. AUDIO, AND TO THE EXTENT FEASIBLE, VIDEO OF THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC VIA THE FOLLOWING FREE-OF-CHARGE 

VIDEOCONFERENCE LINK: 

[https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/246038173] 

 

The above videoconference link allows for two-way communication with members of the public; 

however, to avoid disruption of the meeting by channel noise, audio feedback loops, or excessive 

background noise, members of the public may be muted by the presiding officer or the officer’s 

designee except during the citizen’s comments portion of the agenda. A recording of the meeting will be 

made available to the public. 

 “Incidental Meeting Notice: A quorum of the City of Fulshear City Council, Planning & Zoning Commission, City of Fulshear 

Development Corporation (Type A), Fulshear Development Corporation (Type B), Parks & Recreation Commission, Historic 

Preservation & Museum Commission, Zoning Board of Adjustment, or any or all of these, may be in attendance at the meeting 

specified in the foregoing notice, which attendance may constitute a meeting of such governmental body or bodies as defined 

by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. Therefore, in addition to the foregoing notice, notice is 

hereby given of a meeting of each of the above-named governmental bodies, the date, hour, place, and subject of which is the 

same as specified in the foregoing notice.” 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

http://www.fulsheartexas.gov/
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/246038173


 

2 
 

II. QUORUM & ROLL CALL 

III. INVOCATION- CHARLES ABERNATHY, FULSHEAR CHURCH OF CHRIST 

 

IV. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS-THIS IS AN OPPORTUNITY FOR CITIZENS TO SPEAK TO COUNCIL 
RELATING TO AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS.   SPEAKERS ARE ADVISED THAT 
COMMENTS CANNOT BE RECEIVED ON MATTERS WHICH ARE THE SUBJECT OF A PUBLIC 
HEARING ONCE THE HEARING HAS BEEN CLOSED.   SPEAKERS ARE REQUIRED TO REGISTER IN 
ADVANCE AND MUST LIMIT THEIR COMMENTS TO THREE (3) MINUTES. 

 
V. CITY’S MANAGER’S REPORT – BRIEFINGS OR UPDATES MAY BE PROVIDED REGARDING CITY 

SERVICES, ADMINISTRATIVE/PERSONNEL MATTERS, REAL ESTATE/DEVELOPMENT, 
INFRASTRUCTURE, EVENTS, REGULATIONS, COMMUNITY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
RELATIONS ISSUES. 

A. UPDATE ON CITY RESPONSE TO COVID-19 

B. UPDATE ON BOARDS & COMMISSIONS VACANCIES AND APPLICATIONS 

C. UPDATE ON ELECTIONS AND NEWLY ELECTED COUNCIL MEMBERS FOR 2020 

 

VI. PUBLIC HEARING 

A. IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CITY OF FULSHEAR ZONING ORDINANCE AND CHAPTER 211 

OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, THE CITY WILL HOLD FOUR PUBLIC HEARINGS; 

THE FIRST PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING 

COMMISSION ON MAY 1, 2020 AT 8:30 A.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT 

(https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/631315341). A SECOND PUBLIC HEARING WILL 

BE BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON MAY 1, 2020 AT 9 A.M., THE 

HEARING WILL BE HELD AT CITY HALL, 30603 FM 1093 FULSHEAR, TEXAS. A THIRD 

PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY CITY COUNCIL ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 5:30 P.M., AT 

THE IRENE STERN COMMUNITY CENTER, 6920 KATY-FULSHEAR RD., FULSHEAR, TEXAS. 

THE FOURTH HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE CITY COUNCIL ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 7:00 

P.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT 

(https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/246038173). EACH HEARING WILL ALLOW ALL 

INTERESTED PERSONS AN OPPORTUNITY TO BE HEARD. THE LOCATION OF THE 

PREMISES IN QUESTION IS IN THE RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE DISTRIC, BEING 38.512 

ACRES OF LAND, THE REMAINDER OF THE GRANDES RICOS, LLC 44.512 ACRE TRACT, 

ALL BEING IN THE CHURCHILL FULSHEAR LEAGUE, ABSTRACT NO. 29, FORT BEND 

COUNTY, TEXAS, AND IS MORE SPECIFICALLY LOCATD AT 7510 WALLIS ST., FULSHEAR, 

TEXAS 77441. THE APPLICANT, JEFFREY DUKE, IS SEEKING A ZONING CHANGE, 

PUSUANT TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE, SECTION 1-279, TO TAKE THE CURRENT 

ZONING FROM RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE TO DOWNTOWN DISTRICT, FOR THE PURPOSES 

OF A MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT WITH COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL, PARK, CIVIC, AND 

OTHER USES. THE APPLICANT RESERVES THE RIGHT TO SUPPLEMENT THIS 

APPLICATION AND/OR SEEK AT THE TIME OF THE HEARING, SUCH OTHER APPROVALS, 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/631315341
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/246038173


 

3 
 

INTERPRETATIONS, AND/OR WAIVERS AS MAY BE REQUESTED OR REQUIRED BY THE 

APPLICANT OR THE BOARD/COUNCIL. A COPY OF SAID APPLICATION AND 

DOCUMENTS IS ON FILE AT THE CITY OF FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT LOCATED AT 29255 FM 1093 SUITE #12C FULSHEAR, TEXAS 77441 ON 

MONDAY THROUGH THURSDAYS FROM 7:00 A.M. TO 4:00 P.M. AND FRIDAYS FROM 

7:00 A.M. TO 3 P.M. FOR ALL INTERESTED PARTIES PRIOR TO SAID HEARING. IF YOU 

HAVE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS REQUEST, PLEASE CALL ZACH GOODLANDER, 

CITY OF FULSHEAR, 281-346-8852 

 

B. IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CITY OF FULSHEAR ZONING ORDINANCE AND CHAPTER 211 

OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, THE CITY WILL HOLD FOUR PUBLIC HEARINGS; 

THE FIRST PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

ON MAY 1, 2020 AT 8:30 A.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT  

 (HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/631315341). A SECOND PUBLIC HEARING 

WILL BE BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON MAY 1, 2020 AT 9 AM., THE 

HEARING WILL BE HELD AT CITY HALL, 30603 FM 1093 FULSHEAR, TEXAS. A THIRD 

PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY CITY COUNCIL ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 5:30 P.M., AT 

THE IRENE STERN COMMUNITY CENTER, 6920 KATY-FULSHEAR RD., FULSHEAR, TEXAS. 

THE FOURTH HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE CITY COUNCIL ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 7:00 

P.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT 

(HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/246038173). EACH HEARING WILL ALLOW 

ALL INTERESTED PERSONS AN OPPORTUNITY TO BE HEARD. 

THE LOCATION OF THE PREMISES IN QUESTION IS IN THE RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE 

DISTRICT, BEING 86.191 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, BEING THE RESIDUE OF A 101 

ACRE TRACT AS DESCRIBED IN THE UTILITY EASEMENT AGREEMENT EXECUTED BY AND 

BETWEEN THE ESTATE OF GERALD WAYNE MCCANN, DECEASED, ET AL., AND THE CITY 

OF FULSHEAR AND REFERENCED AS INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2018040871, FILED IN THE 

OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, AND IS MORE 

SPECIFICALLY LOCATED AT 31210 FM 1093 FULSHEAR, TEXAS 77441. THE APPLICANT, 

POSITIVE DEVELOPMENTS LLC, IS SEEKING A ZONING CHANGE, PURSUANT TO THE 

ZONING ORDINANCE, SECTION 1-279, TO TAKE THE CURRENT ZONING FROM 

RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE TO DOWNTOWN DISTRICT, FOR THE PURPOSES OF A MIXED-

USE DEVELOPMENT WITH COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL, PARK, CIVIC, AND OTHER 

USES. THE APPLICANT RESERVES THE RIGHT TO SUPPLEMENT THIS APPLICATION 

AND/OR SEEK AT THE TIME OF THE HEARING, SUCH OTHER APPROVALS, 

INTERPRETATIONS, AND/OR WAIVERS AS MAY BE REQUESTED OR REQUIRED BY THE 

APPLICANT OR THE BOARD/COUNCIL. A COPY OF SAID APPLICATION AND 

DOCUMENTS IS ON FILE AT THE CITY OF FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT LOCATED AT 29255 FM 1093 SUITE #12C FULSHEAR, TEXAS 77441 ON 

MONDAY THROUGH THURSDAYS FROM 7:00 A.M. TO 4:00 P.M. AND FRIDAYS FROM 

7:00 A.M. TO 3P.M. FOR ALL INTERESTED PARTIES PRIOR TO SAID HEARING. IF YOU 

HAVE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS REQUEST PLEASE CALL ZACH GOODLANDER, 

CITY OF FULSHEAR, 281-346-8852. 

 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/631315341
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/246038173


 

4 
 

C. IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CITY OF FULSHEAR ZONING ORDINANCE AND CHAPTER 211 

OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, THE CITY WILL HOLD FOUR PUBLIC HEARINGS; 

THE FIRST PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING 

COMMISSION ON MAY 1, 2020 AT 8:30 A.M., THE HEARING  

WILL BE HELD AT (HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/631315341). A SECOND 

PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON MAY 1, 

2020 AT 9 AM., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT CITY HALL, 30603 FM 1093 FULSHEAR, 

TEXAS. A THIRD PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY CITY COUNCIL ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 

5:30 P.M., AT THE IRENE STERN COMMUNITY CENTER, 6920 KATY-FULSHEAR RD., 

FULSHEAR, TEXAS. THE FOURTH HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE CITY COUNCIL ON 

MAY 19, 2020 AT 7:00 P.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT 

(HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/246038173). EACH HEARING WILL ALLOW 

ALL INTERESTED PERSONS AN OPPORTUNITY TO BE HEARD. 

THE LOCATION OF THE PREMISES IN QUESTION IS IN THE MANUFACTURED HOUSING 

DISTRICT, BEING THE 2.25-ACRE TRACT CONVEYED TO DAVE ROGERS, RECORDED IN 

VOLUME 230, PAGE 29, DEED RECORDS FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, AND IS MORE 

GENERALLY LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST INTERSECTION OF DIXON AND PATTERSON 

ROADS. THE OWNER’S AGENT, MIKE ROLLER, IS SEEKING A ZONING CHANGE, 

PURSUANT TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE, SECTION 1-279, TO TAKE THE CURRENT 

ZONING FROM MANUFACTURED HOUSING TO THE INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, FOR THE 

PURPOSES OF AN OFFICE WAREHOUSE WITH NO OUTSIDE STORAGE. THE APPLICANT 

RESERVES THE RIGHT TO SUPPLEMENT THIS APPLICATION AND/OR SEEK AT THE TIME 

OF THE HEARING, SUCH OTHER APPROVALS, INTERPRETATIONS, AND/OR WAIVERS AS 

MAY BE REQUESTED OR REQUIRED BY THE APPLICANT OR THE BOARD/COUNCIL. A 

COPY OF SAID APPLICATION AND DOCUMENTS IS ON FILE AT THE CITY OF FULSHEAR 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT LOCATED AT 29255 FM 1093 SUITE #12C 

FULSHEAR, TEXAS 77441 ON MONDAY THROUGH THURSDAYS FROM 7:00 A.M. TO 

4:00 P.M. AND FRIDAYS FROM 7:00 A.M. TO 3P.M. FOR ALL INTERESTED PARTIES 

PRIOR TO SAID HEARING. IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS REQUEST 

PLEASE CALL ZACH GOODLANDER, CITY OF FULSHEAR, 281-346-8852.  

 

VII. CONSENT ITEMS-ITEMS LISTED UNDER THE CONSENT AGENDA ARE CONSIDERED ROUTINE 
AND ARE GENERALLY ENACTED IN ONE MOTION, THE EXCEPTION TO THIS RULE IS THAT A 
COUNCIL MEMBER(S) MAY REQUEST ONE OR MORE ITEMS TO BE REMOVED FROM THE 
CONSENT AGENDA FOR A SEPARATE DISCUSSION AND ACTION. 

A. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS HELD ON 

APRIL 21, 2020 (SPECIAL) AND APRIL 21, 2020 (REGULAR) 

B. CONSENT AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ACCEPT THE MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE GENERAL &UTILITY FUNDS 

C. CONSENT AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE 20-1 QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT 

D. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE TAMARRON SECTION 15 FINAL PLAT 

E. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE TAMARRON SECTION 21 FINAL PLAT 

F. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE TAMARRON SECTION 27 FINAL PLAT 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/631315341
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/246038173


 

5 
 

G. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE POLO RANCH SECTION 6 REPLAT NO. 1 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 

H. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE FLETCHER MORGAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

PRLIMINARY PLAT 

I. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF STREET DEDICATION, UTILITY CONVEYANCE AND 

SECURITY AGREEMENT FOR CREEK COVE AT CROSS CREEK RANCH, SECTION 11, FROM 

MUD 173 

J. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF STREET DEDICATION, UTILITY CONVEYANCE AND 

SECURITY AGREEMENT FOR CREEK TRACE AT CROSS CREEK RANCH, SECTION 1 FROM 

MUD 170 

K. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF STREET DEDICATION, UTILITY CONVEYANCE AND 

SECURITY AGREEMENT FOR BROOKS AT CROSS CREEK RANCH, SECTION 3, FROM MUD 

170 

L. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF STREET DEDICATION, UTILITY CONVEYANCE AND 

SECURITY AGREEMENT FOR FULSHEAR BEND DRIVE EXTENSION NO. 3, FROM MUD 

169 

VIII. BUSINESS 
A. PROCLAMATION IN SUPPORT OF NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK MAY 17-23, 2020 

B. CONSIDERATON AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ELECT A MAYOR PRO-TEM 

C. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE A ZONING CHANGE FROM (R-1) 

RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE TO DOWNTOWN DISTRICT FOR A PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7510 WALLIS 

STREET 

D. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE A ZONING CHANGE FROM (R-1) 

RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE TO DOWNTOWN DISTRICT FOR A PROPERTY LOCATED AT 31210 FM 

1093 

E. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE A ZONING CHANGE FROM (MH) 

MANUFACTURED HOUSING TO (I) INDUSTRIAL FOR A PROPERTY APPROXIMATELY 2.25 ACRES 

IN SIZE, LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE INTERSECTION OF PATTERSON AND 

DIXON ROADS 

F. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-463, A 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE CITY’S PLANNING 

AND ZONING COMMISSION 

G. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-464, A 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING A REPRESENTATIVE FROM THE ETJ AS AN AD HOC VOTING MEMBER 

OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION WHEN IT ACTS AS THE CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

H. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-469, A 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE CITY’S ZONING 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 



 

6 
 

I. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-465, A 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE CITY’S PARKS AND 

RECREATION COMMISSION 

J. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-466, A 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE CITY’S HISTORIC 

PRESERVATION AND MUSEUM COMMISSION 

K. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-467, 
APPOINTING DIRECTORS TO THE BOARD OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION, A TYPE “A” ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX CORPORATION 

L. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-468, 
APPOINTING DIRECTORS TO THE BOARD OF THE FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, A 

TYPE “B” ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX CORPORATION 

M. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE INDIVIDUAL AGREEMENTS FOR LAW 

ENFORCEMENT EQUIPMENT WITH FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 172, 
FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 173, AND FORT BEND COUNTY 

MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 170 

N. CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

FULSHEAR, KEITH AND CYNTHIA WILLIAMS, AND THE WESTPARK CHURCH OF CHRIST 

O. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO DENY THE ACADEMIX VILLAGE PRELIMINARY PLAT 

 
 

IX. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION RELATING TO ABSENCES- IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SECTION 3.10 (d) OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR HOME-RULE CHARTER, PAST ABSENCES DUE TO 
SICKNESS MAY BE EXCUSED, AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE FOR FUTURE ABSENCES MAY BE 
GRANTED. ANY ACTION TO EXCUSE A PAST ABSENCE IS DEEMED TO INCLUDE A FINDING 
THAT THE ABSENCE WAS DUE TO SICKNESS UNLESS THE ACTION INDICATES OTHERWISE. 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT 
NOTE:   IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICAN WITH DISABILITIES ACT, AND TO THE EXTENT APPLICABLE, THIS 

FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES ARE AVAILABLE.   REQUESTS FOR 

ACCOMMODATIONS OR INTERPRETIVE SERVICE MUST BE MADE AT LEAST 48 BUSINESS HOURS PRIOR TO THIS 

MEETING.   PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY’S OFFICE AT 281-346-1796 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION. 

I, KIMBERLY KOPECKY, CITY SECRETARY OF THE CITY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE NOTICE OF MEETING 

AND AGENDA FOR THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS WAS POSTED ON MAY 13, 2020 BY 5:00 

P.M. IN PLACE CONVENIENT AND READILY ACCESSIBLE AT ALL TIMES TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC, IN COMPLIANCE WITH 

CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE. 

 

________________________________________ 

KIMBERLY KOPECKY, CITY SECRETARY 

kkopecky
Typewriter
Kimberly Kopecky



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VIA

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/5/2020 DEPARTMENT: Building Services

PREPARED BY: ZACH GOODLANDER PRESENTER: ZACH GOODLANDER
SUBJECT:   IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CITY OF FULSHEAR ZONING ORDINANCE AND CHAPTER
211 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, THE CITY WILL HOLD FOUR PUBLIC HEARINGS; THE
FIRST PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON MAY 1,
2020 AT 8:30 A.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT
(HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/631315341). A SECOND PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE BY
THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON MAY 1, 2020 AT 9 AM., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD
AT CITY HALL, 30603 FM 1093 FULSHEAR, TEXAS. A THIRD PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY CITY
COUNCIL ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 5:30 P.M., AT THE IRENE STERN COMMUNITY CENTER, 6920 KATY-
FULSHEAR RD., FULSHEAR, TEXAS. THE FOURTH HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE CITY COUNCIL
ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 7:00 P.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT
(HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/246038173). EACH HEARING WILL ALLOW ALL
INTERESTED PERSONS AN OPPORTUNITY TO BE HEARD. THE LOCATION OF THE PREMISES IN
QUESTION IS IN THE RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE DISTRICT, BEING 38.512 ACRES OF LAND, THE
REMAINDER OF THE GRANDES RICOS, LLC 44.512 ACRE TRACT, ALL BEING IN THE CHURCHILL
FULSHEAR LEAGUE, ABSTRACT NO. 29, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, AND IS MORE SPECIFICALLY
LOCATED AT 7510 WALLIS ST. FULSHEAR, TEXAS 77441. THE APPLICANT, JEFFREY DUKE, IS
SEEKING A ZONING CHANGE, PURSUANT TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE, SECTION 1-279, TO TAKE
THE CURRENT ZONING FROM RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE TO DOWNTOWN DISTRICT, FOR THE
PURPOSES OF A MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT WITH COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL, PARK, CIVIC, AND
OTHER USES. THE APPLICANT RESERVES THE RIGHT TO SUPPLEMENT THIS APPLICATION AND/OR
SEEK AT THE TIME OF THE HEARING, SUCH OTHER APPROVALS, INTERPRETATIONS, AND/OR
WAIVERS AS MAY BE REQUESTED OR REQUIRED BY THE APPLICANT OR THE BOARD/COUNCIL. A
COPY OF SAID APPLICATION AND DOCUMENTS IS ON FILE AT THE CITY OF FULSHEAR
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT LOCATED AT 29255 FM 1093 SUITE #12C FULSHEAR, TEXAS
77441 ON MONDAY THROUGH THURSDAYS FROM 7:00 A.M. TO 4:00 P.M. AND FRIDAYS FROM 7:00 A.M.
TO 3P.M. FOR ALL INTEREST

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

RECOMMENDATION

Page 7 of 241



Page 8 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VIB

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/5/2020 DEPARTMENT: Building Services

PREPARED BY: ZACH GOODLANDER PRESENTER: ZACH GOODLANDER
SUBJECT:   IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CITY OF FULSHEAR ZONING ORDINANCE AND CHAPTER
211 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, THE CITY WILL HOLD FOUR PUBLIC HEARINGS; THE
FIRST PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON MAY 1,
2020 AT 8:30 A.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT
(HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/631315341). A SECOND PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE BY
THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON MAY 1, 2020 AT 9 AM., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD
AT CITY HALL, 30603 FM 1093 FULSHEAR, TEXAS. A THIRD PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY CITY
COUNCIL ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 5:30 P.M., AT THE IRENE STERN COMMUNITY CENTER, 6920 KATY-
FULSHEAR RD., FULSHEAR, TEXAS. THE FOURTH HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE CITY COUNCIL
ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 7:00 P.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT
(HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/246038173). EACH HEARING WILL ALLOW ALL
INTERESTED PERSONS AN OPPORTUNITY TO BE HEARD. THE LOCATION OF THE PREMISES IN
QUESTION IS IN THE RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE DISTRICT, BEING 86.191 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR
LESS, BEING THE RESIDUE OF A 101 ACRE TRACT AS DESCRIBED IN THE UTILITY EASEMENT
AGREEMENT EXECUTED BY AND BETWEEN THE ESTATE OF GERALD WAYNE MCCANN, DECEASED,
ET AL., AND THE CITY OF FULSHEAR AND REFERENCED AS INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2018040871,
FILED IN THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, AND IS MORE
SPECIFICALLY LOCATED AT 31210 FM 1093 FULSHEAR, TEXAS 77441. THE APPLICANT, POSITIVE
DEVELOPMENTS LLC, IS SEEKING A ZONING CHANGE, PURSUANT TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE,
SECTION 1-279, TO TAKE THE CURRENT ZONING FROM RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE TO DOWNTOWN
DISTRICT, FOR THE PURPOSES OF A MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT WITH COMMERCIAL,
RESIDENTIAL, PARK, CIVIC, AND OTHER USES. THE APPLICANT RESERVES THE RIGHT TO
SUPPLEMENT THIS APPLICATION AND/OR SEEK AT THE TIME OF THE HEARING, SUCH OTHER
APPROVALS, INTERPRETATIONS, AND/OR WAIVERS AS MAY BE REQUESTED OR REQUIRED BY THE
APPLICANT OR THE BOARD/COUNCIL. A COPY OF SAID APPLICATION AND DOCUMENTS IS ON
FILE AT THE CITY OF FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT SERVIC

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

RECOMMENDATION

Page 9 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VIC

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/5/2020 DEPARTMENT: Building Services

PREPARED BY: ZACH GOODLANDER PRESENTER: ZACH GOODLANDER
SUBJECT:   IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CITY OF FULSHEAR ZONING ORDINANCE AND CHAPTER
211 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, THE CITY WILL HOLD FOUR PUBLIC HEARINGS; THE
FIRST PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON MAY 1,
2020 AT 8:30 A.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT
(HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/631315341). A SECOND PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE BY
THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON MAY 1, 2020 AT 9 AM., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD
AT CITY HALL, 30603 FM 1093 FULSHEAR, TEXAS. A THIRD PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY CITY
COUNCIL ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 5:30 P.M., AT THE IRENE STERN COMMUNITY CENTER, 6920 KATY-
FULSHEAR RD., FULSHEAR, TEXAS. THE FOURTH HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE CITY COUNCIL
ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 7:00 P.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT
(HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/246038173). EACH HEARING WILL ALLOW ALL
INTERESTED PERSONS AN OPPORTUNITY TO BE HEARD. THE LOCATION OF THE PREMISES IN
QUESTION IS IN THE MANUFACTURED HOUSING DISTRICT, BEING THE 2.25-ACRE TRACT
CONVEYED TO DAVE ROGERS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 230, PAGE 29, DEED RECORDS FORT BEND
COUNTY, TEXAS, AND IS MORE GENERALLY LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST INTERSECTION OF
DIXON AND PATTERSON ROADS. THE OWNER’S AGENT, MIKE ROLLER, IS SEEKING A ZONING
CHANGE, PURSUANT TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE, SECTION 1-279, TO TAKE THE CURRENT
ZONING FROM MANUFACTURED HOUSING TO THE INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, FOR THE PURPOSES OF
AN OFFICE WAREHOUSE WITH NO OUTSIDE STORAGE. THE APPLICANT RESERVES THE RIGHT TO
SUPPLEMENT THIS APPLICATION AND/OR SEEK AT THE TIME OF THE HEARING, SUCH OTHER
APPROVALS, INTERPRETATIONS, AND/OR WAIVERS AS MAY BE REQUESTED OR REQUIRED BY THE
APPLICANT OR THE BOARD/COUNCIL. A COPY OF SAID APPLICATION AND DOCUMENTS IS ON
FILE AT THE CITY OF FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT LOCATED AT 29255 FM
1093 SUITE #12C FULSHEAR, TEXAS 77441 ON MONDAY THROUGH THURSDAYS FROM 7:00 A.M. TO
4:00 P.M. AND FRIDAYS FROM 7:00 A.M. TO 3P.M. FOR ALL INTERESTED PARTIES PRIOR TO SAID
HEARING. IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS REG

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

RECOMMENDATION

Page 10 of 241



Page 11 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VII.A.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/4/2020 DEPARTMENT: Administration

PREPARED BY: Kimberly Kopecky PRESENTER: Kimberly Kopecky
SUBJECT:   CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS HELD ON
APRIL 21, 2020 (SPECIAL) AND APRIL 21, 2020 (REGULAR)

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The City Secretary has prepared the attached minutes from April 21, 2020 (special) and April 21, 2020 (regular) meetings.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the City Council approve the minutes as presented.

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Draft Minutes 5/5/2020 Backup Material

Page 12 of 241



 

 

CITY OF FULSHEAR 
“FIND YOUR FUTURE IN FULSHEAR” 

30603 FM 1093 WEST/ PO BOX 279 ~ FULSHEAR, TEXAS 77441 
PHONE: 281-346-1796 ~ FAX: 281-346-2556 

WWW.FULSHEARTEXAS.GOV 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

MAYOR: Aaron Groff   MAYOR PRO-TEM: Kaye Kahlich COUNCIL MEMBER: Kent Pool 
COUNCIL MEMBER: Kevin White COUNCIL MEMBER: Debra Cates COUNCIL MEMBER: Lisa Martin 
COUNCIL MEMBER: Joel Patterson COUNCIL MEMBER: John Kelly 
 
 

STAFF: 

CITY MANAGER: Jack Harper      CITY SECRETARY: Kimberly Kopecky  CITY ATTORNEY: J. Grady Randle 

 SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

APRIL 21, 2020 
  
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

A SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING WAS CALLED TO ORDER BY MAYOR GROFF VIA 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AT 5:32 P.M. A QUORUM WAS PRESENT. 

 

EDC TYPE A WAS CALLED TO ORDER BY ANDREW VAN CHAU AT 5:34 P.M. A QUORUM WAS 
PRESENT. 

 

EDC TYPE B WAS CALLED TO ORDER BY STACY MANGUM AT 5:35P.M. A QUORUM WAS 
PRESENT. 

EDC TYPE B ELECTED STACY MANGUM TO REPRESENT THIS MEETING AS THE PRESIDENT 
PRO-TEM. 

 

II. QUORUM & ROLL CALL 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: 
AARON GROFF, MAYOR 
JOEL PATTERSON 
DEBRA CATES 
KEVIN WHITE 
LISA MARTIN 

Page 13 of 241

http://www.fulsheartexas.gov/


 

2 
 

KENT POOL  
KAYE KAHLICH  
JOHN KELLY  

 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: 
JACK HARPER 
KIMBERLY KOPECKY 
MARIELA RODRIGUEZ 
BYRON BROWN 
KAYLA VILLAGOMEZ 
WES VELA 
SHARON VALIANTE 
ANGELA FRITZ 
CHANDLER MARKS 
ZACH GOODLANDER 
 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: 

         JUSTIN SILHAVY 
REV. GILMORE 
JASON MAKLARY 
RAY KERLICK 
ANDREW VAN CHAU 
STACY MANGUM 
BRYAN THOMAS 
JEFF MARTIN 
DONALD MCCOY 
TOMMY KUYKENDALL 

 

III. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS- THIS IS AN OPPORTUNITY FOR CITIZENS TO SPEAK TO COUNCIL 
RELATING TO AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS. SPEAKERS ARE ADVISED THAT 
COMMENTS CANNOT BE RECEIVED ON MATTERS WHICH ARE THE SUBJECT OF A PUBLIC 
HEARING ONCE THE HEARING HAS BEEN CLOSED. SPEAKERS ARE REQUIRED TO REGISTER 
IN ADVANCE AND MUST LIMIT THEIR COMMENTS TO THREE (3) MINUTES. 

 

THERE WERE NO CITIZEN COMMENTS. 

EDC B CALLED FOR CITIZEN COMMENTS AT 5:37 P.M.- THERE WERE NO CITIZEN COMMENTS. 

EDC A CALLED FOR CITIZEN COMMENTS AT 5:38 P.M.- THERE WERE NO CITIZEN COMMENTS. 

  

IV. BUSINESS 

A. JOINT PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION WITH THE CITY OF FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION (CDC) AND THE FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (FDC) ON 

Page 14 of 241



 

3 
 

2020 FULSHEAR DEMOGRAPHIC MINI UPDATE FROM POPULATION AND SURVEY 

ANALYSTS (PASA) 

ANGELA FRITZ INTRODUCED JUSTIN SILHAVY THE DIRECTOR OF DEMOGRAPHIC 

PROJECTIONS FOR PASA. MR. SILHAVY PROVIDED COUNCIL WITH A MINI UPDATE OF THE 

CITY OF FULSHEAR’S DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS.  

IN OCTOBER 2019 THE HOUSING UNIT ESTIMATE FOR THE CITY OF FULSHEAR CITY LIMITS 

WAS AT 4,677. THE CITIES ETJ WAS AT 5,830 GIVING A COMBINED TOTAL OF 10,507 

HOUSING UNITS.  

IN OCTOBER 2019 THE POPULATION ESTIMATE FOR THE CITY OF FULSHEAR CITY LIMITS WAS 

AT 13,969 PERSONS. THE CITIES ETJ HAD AN ESTIMATE OF 17,892 PERSONS GIVING A 

COMBINED TOTAL POPULATION OF 31,861. 

MR. SILHAVY PROVIDED COUNCIL WITH INFORMATION ABOUT THE MONTHLY EMPLOYEE 

CHANGE AND REGIONAL ECONOMY. HE TALKED ABOUT THE 10-30% REDUCTION WE COULD 

POSSIBLY SEE IN JOB LOSSES AND HOUSING.  

MR. SILHAVY DISCUSSED THE ECONOMIC TRENDS AND EXPLAINED COMPANIES RELOCATING 

TO OUR AREA SINCE WE ARE THE CENTRAL POPULATION POINT OF HOUSTON, AUSTIN, AND 

SAN ANTONIO. HE STATED SINCE ONLINE SALES HAVE RISEN, AND THE WESTPARK TOLLWAY, 

TEXAS HERITAGE PARKWAY AND THE I10 WIDENING, DISTRIBUTION AND WEARHOUSE 

SPACE IS GOING TO CONTINUE TO BOOM IN THE WESTERN SUBURBS. 

HE TALKED ABOUT THE DIFFERENT DEVELOPMENTS IN FULSHEAR AND THE SURROUNDING 

AREAS. HE STATED THAT THE DATES FOR DEVELOPMENT MAY SLOW DOWN BECAUSE OF 

THE PANDEMIC BUT THE HOUSING DEMAND IS GOING TO INCREASE IN THE NEXT 3-5 YEARS. 

MR. SILHAVY PROVIDED COUNCIL WITH THE 2-YEAR AND 5-YEAR PROJECTED HOUSING 

OCCUPANCY NUMBERS. HE DISCUSSED THE PROJECTED NEW HOUSING OCCUPANCIES FOR 

2020-2028 BEING A TOTAL OF 19,293 FOR THE CITY OF FULSHEAR CITY LIMITS AND ETJ. HE 

PROVIDED COUNCIL WITH 3 DIFFERENT GROWTH SCENARIOS SHOWING WELL OVER SIXTY-

FIVE THOUSAND PEOPLE BY THE END OF THE PROJECTED PERIOD OF 2028. 

JUSTIN SILHAVY ANSWERED QUESTIONS FOR COUNCIL.  

 

EDC TYPE “A” ADJOURNED AT 6:25 P.M. 

EDC TYPE “B” ADJOURNED AT 6:26 P.M. 

  

B. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2020-453, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF 

FULSHEAR AUTHORIZING PROJECTS OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION (CDC), A TYPE “A” ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX 

CORPORATION (1ST READING) 

MAYOR GROFF READ THIS ITEM. NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

Page 15 of 241



 

4 
 

C. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. 2020-453, A RESOLUTION OF 

THE CITY OF FULSHEAR AUTHORIZING PROJECTS OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR 

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (CDC), A TYPE “A” ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SALES 

TAX CORPORATION (2ND READING) 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 

2020-453, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PROJECTS OF THE CITY DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION (CDC), A TYPE “A” ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX CORPORATION. 

IT WAS SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER CATES. THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY THE 

FOLLOWING (ROLL CALL) VOTE: 

AYES- MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH 

  COUNCIL MEMBER CATES 

  COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN 

  COUNCIL MEMBER KELLY 

  COUNCIL MEMBER PATTERSON 

  COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE 

  COUNCIL MEMBER POOL 

 

NAYS- NONE 

 

D. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2020-454, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF 

FULSHEAR AUTHORIZING PROJECTS OF THE FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

(FDC), A TYPE “B” ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX CORPORATION (1ST READING) 

MAYOR GROFF READ THIS ITEM. NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 

E. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. 2020-454, A RESOLUTION OF 

THE CITY OF FULSHEAR AUTHORIZING PROJECTS OF THE FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION (FDC), A TYPE “B” ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX 

CORPORATION (2ND READING) 

COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2020-453 

(WRONG ITEM). COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN WITHDREW HER MOTION TO APPROVE 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-453.  

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 

2020-454, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PROJECTS OF THE FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION (FDC), A TYPE “B” ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX CORPORATION. 

IT WAS SECONDED BY MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH. THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY THE 

FOLLOWING (ROLL CALL) VOTE:  

 

AYES- MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH 

  COUNCIL MEMBER CATES 

  COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN 

Page 16 of 241



 

5 
 

  COUNCIL MEMBER KELLY 

  COUNCIL MEMBER PATTERSON 

  COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE 

  COUNCIL MEMBER POOL 

 

NAYS- NONE 

 

F. CONSIDERATION AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. 2020-461, A RESOLUTION OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR REQUESTING GOVERNOR ABBOTT 

TEMPORARILY WAIVE AND/OR SUSPEND CERTAIN RULES THAT LIMIT ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATIONS (EDCS) FROM UTILIZING EDC SALES TAX REVENUES AS 

A FORM OF FINANCIAL DISASTER RELIEF TO SUPPORT LOCAL BUSINESSES IMPACTED 

BY COVID-19 

ANGELA ANSWERED QUESTIONS FOR COUNCIL  

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 

2020-461, A RESOLUTION REQUESTING GOVERNOR ABBOTT TEMPORARILY WAIVE AND/ 

OR SUSPEND CERTAIN RULES THAT LIMIT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATIONS 

(EDCS) FROM UTILIZING EDC SALES TAX REVENUES AS A FORM OF FINANCIAL DISASTER 

RELIEF TO SUPPORT LOCAL BUSINESSES IMPACTED BY COVID-19. IT WAS SECONDED BY 

COUNCIL MEMBER POOL. THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING (ROLL CALL) 

VOTE: 

AYES- MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH 

  COUNCIL MEMBER CATES 

  COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN 

  COUNCIL MEMBER KELLY 

  COUNCIL MEMBER PATTERSON 

  COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE 

  COUNCIL MEMBER POOL 

 

NAYS- NONE 

 

 
V. ADJOURNMENT 

 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH TO ADJOURN. IT WAS SECONDED BY 

COUNCIL MEMBER POOL. THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING (ROLL CALL) VOTE: 

 

AYES- MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH 

  COUNCIL MEMBER CATES 

  COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN 

Page 17 of 241



 

6 
 

  COUNCIL MEMBER KELLY 

  COUNCIL MEMBER PATTERSON 

  COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE 

  COUNCIL MEMBER POOL 

 

NAYS- NONE 

 

MAYOR GROFF ADJOURNED THE MEETING AT 6:54 P.M. 

Page 18 of 241



 

 

CITY OF FULSHEAR 
“FIND YOUR FUTURE IN FULSHEAR” 

30603 FM 1093 WEST/ PO BOX 279 ~ FULSHEAR, TEXAS 77441 
PHONE: 281-346-1796 ~ FAX: 281-346-2556 

WWW.FULSHEARTEXAS.GOV 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

MAYOR: Aaron Groff   MAYOR PRO-TEM: Kaye Kahlich COUNCIL MEMBER: Kent Pool 
COUNCIL MEMBER: Kevin White COUNCIL MEMBER: Debra Cates COUNCIL MEMBER: Lisa Martin 
COUNCIL MEMBER: Joel Patterson COUNCIL MEMBER: John Kelly 
 
 

STAFF: 

CITY MANAGER: Jack Harper      CITY SECRETARY: Kimberly Kopecky  CITY ATTORNEY: J. Grady Randle 

 CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

APRIL 21, 2020 
  
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

A REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING WAS CALLED TO ORDER BY MAYOR GROFF VIA 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AT 7:03 P.M. A QUORUM WAS PRESENT. 

 

II. QUORUM & ROLL CALL 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: 
AARON GROFF, MAYOR 
JOEL PATTERSON 
DEBRA CATES 
KEVIN WHITE 
LISA MARTIN 
KENT POOL  
KAYE KAHLICH  
JOHN KELLY  

 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: 
ANGELA FRITZ 
KIMBERLY KOPECKY 
WES VELA 
SHARON VALIANTE 
KRISTI BRASHEAR 

Page 19 of 241

http://www.fulsheartexas.gov/


 

2 
 

KENNY SEYMOUR 
MARIELA RODRIGUEZ 
KAYLA VILLAGOMEZ 
MEREDITH DUSEK 
GRADY RANDLE 
JACK HARPER 
ZACH GOODLANDER 
CHANDLER MARKS 
BYRON BROWN 
DAN MCGRAW 
MICHAEL MCCOY 

 

OTHERS PRESENT: 
          GEOFF FREEMAN 
  DONALD MCCOY 
  JEFF MARTIN 
  CHARLES ABERNATHY 
  ANNA ALDRIDGE 
  BRYAN THOMAS 
  DANIEL VALDEZ 
  JACKIE GILMORE 
  MIKE SHELTON 
  EVERETT DEAO 
 

III. INVOCATION- CHARLES ABERNATHY 

CHARLES ABERNATHY GAVE THE INVOCATION. 

 

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG-I PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA AND TO THE REPUBLIC FOR WHICH IT STANDS, ONE NATION 
UNDER GOD, INDIVISIBLE, WITH LIBERTY AND JUSTICE FOR ALL. 

V. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE TEXAS FLAG –HONOR THE TEXAS FLAG; I PLEDGE 
ALLEGIANCE TO THEE, TEXAS, ONE STATE UNDER GOD, ONE AND INDIVISIBLE 

THERE WERE NO PLEDGES. 

VI. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS-THIS IS AN OPPORTUNITY FOR CITIZENS TO SPEAK TO COUNCIL 
RELATING TO AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS.   SPEAKERS ARE ADVISED THAT 
COMMENTS CANNOT BE RECEIVED ON MATTERS WHICH ARE THE SUBJECT OF A PUBLIC 
HEARING ONCE THE HEARING HAS BEEN CLOSED.   SPEAKERS ARE REQUIRED TO REGISTER 
IN ADVANCE AND MUST LIMIT THEIR COMMENTS TO THREE (3) MINUTES. 

NO ONE WISHED TO SPEAK. 

 
VII. CITY’S MANAGER’S REPORT – BRIEFINGS OR UPDATES MAY BE PROVIDED REGARDING CITY 

SERVICES, ADMINISTRATIVE/PERSONNEL MATTERS, REAL ESTATE/DEVELOPMENT, 

Page 20 of 241



 

3 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE, EVENTS, REGULATIONS, COMMUNITY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
RELATIONS ISSUES. 

A. UPDATE ON CITY RESPONSE TO COVID-19 

JACK HARPER SPOKE REGARDING HOW THE DIFFERENT CITY DEPARTMENTS ARE 
WORKING FROM HOME AND/OR IN THE OFFICE. 

 

B. DISCUSSION ON UPCOMING BOARDS & COMMISSIONS VACANCIES 

JACK HARPER DISCUSSED WITH COUNCIL REGARDING UPCOMING VACANCIES. COUNCIL 
WOULD LIKE TO TRY TO STILL APPOINT MEMBERS AT THE MAY REGULAR MEETING. 
APPLICATIONS WILL BE SENT TO CITY COUNCIL ON FRIDAYS FOR THEIR VIEWING. 

 

VIII. CONSENT ITEMS-ITEMS LISTED UNDER THE CONSENT AGENDA ARE CONSIDERED ROUTINE 
AND ARE GENERALLY ENACTED IN ONE MOTION, THE EXCEPTION TO THIS RULE IS THAT A 
COUNCIL MEMBER(S) MAY REQUEST ONE OR MORE ITEMS TO BE REMOVED FROM THE 
CONSENT AGENDA FOR A SEPARATE DISCUSSION AND ACTION. 

A. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS HELD ON 

MARCH 17, 2020 (REGULAR) AND MARCH 24, 2020 (SPECIAL) 

B. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 

GENERAL &UTILITY FUNDS 

C. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF STREET DEDICATION, UTILITY CONVEYANCE AND 

SECURITY AGREEMENT FOR POLO RANCH BOULEVARD, PHASE 1 FROM MUD 174 

D. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF STREET DEDICATION, UTILITY CONVEYANCE AND 

SECURITY AGREEMENTS FOR POLO RANCH BLVD PH2 AND LOU WATERS PARKWAY 

FROM MUD 174 

E. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF STREET DEDICATION, UTILITY CONVEYANCE AND 

SECURITY AGREEMENTS FOR POLO RANCH SECTION 4 FROM MUD 174 

F. CONSENT AND APPROVAL TO ACCEPT AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE 

GRANDIN ENERGY UTILITY EASEMENT DEDICATION 

G. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE FULSHEAR SCHOOL ROAD AND SCHOOL HILL ROAD 

STREET DEDICATION PRELIMINARY PLAT 

H. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF BONTERRA AT CROSS CREEK RANCH SECTION 12 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 

I. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE JORDAN RANCH STREET DEDICATION NO. 8 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 

J. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE JORDAN RANCH STREET DEDICATION NO. 9 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 

K. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE FULBROOK ON FULSHEAR CREEK SECTION 9 FINAL 

PLAT 

L. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE FULBROOK ON FULSHEAR CREEK SECTION 10 FINAL 

PLAT 

Page 21 of 241



 

4 
 

M. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE TAMARRON SECTION 14 FINAL PLAT 

N. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE TAMARRON SECTION 21 PRELIMINARY PLAT 

O. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE TAMARRON SECTION 27 PRELIMINARY PLAT 

P. CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE TAMARRON SECTION 15 PRELIMINARY PLAT 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER POOL WOULD LIKE TO REMOVE CONSENT ITEMS K, M, N, AND P FOR 

DISCUSSION. 

COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN WOULD LIKE TO REMOVE CONSENT ITEM F FOR DISCUSSION. 

COUNCIL MEMBER PATTERSON WOULD LIKE TO REMOVE CONSENT ITEM L FOR 

DISCUSSION. 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH TO APPROVE CONSENT ITEMS A-E, G, 

H, I, J, AND O. IT WAS SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER POOL. THE MOTION WAS CARRIED 

BY THE FOLLOWING (ROLL CALL) VOTE: 

AYES- MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH 

  COUNCIL MEMBER CATES 

  COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN 

  COUNCIL MEMBER KELLY 

  COUNCIL MEMBER PATTERSON 

  COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE 

  COUNCIL MEMBER POOL 

 

NAYS- NONE 

 

CONSENT ITEMS K, M, N, AND P 

ZACH GOODLANDER ANSWERED QUESTIONS REGARDING THESE ITEMS. PLANNING AND 

ZONING RECOMMENDED APPROVAL WITH THE UPDATE TO THE TITLE OF THE CO-CHAIR.  

 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COUNCIL MEMBER POOL TO APPROVE CONSENT ITEMS K, M, N, 

AND P. IT WAS SECONDED BY MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH. THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY 

THE FOLLOWING (ROLL CALL) VOTE: 

 

AYES- MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH 

  COUNCIL MEMBER CATES 

  COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN 

  COUNCIL MEMBER KELLY 

  COUNCIL MEMBER PATTERSON 

  COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE 

  COUNCIL MEMBER POOL 

 

Page 22 of 241



 

5 
 

NAYS- NONE 

 

CONSENT ITEM F 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH TO APPROVE CONSENT ITEM F. IT 

WAS SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN. THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY THE 

FOLLOWING (ROLL CALL) VOTE: 

 

AYES- MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH 

  COUNCIL MEMBER CATES 

  COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN 

  COUNCIL MEMBER KELLY 

  COUNCIL MEMBER PATTERSON 

  COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE 

  COUNCIL MEMBER POOL 

 

NAYS- NONE 

 

CONSENT ITEM L 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH TO APPROVE CONSENT ITEM L. IT WAS 

SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER PATTERSON. THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY THE 

FOLLOWING (ROLL CALL) VOTE: 

 

AYES- MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH 

  COUNCIL MEMBER CATES 

  COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN 

  COUNCIL MEMBER KELLY 

  COUNCIL MEMBER PATTERSON 

  COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE 

  COUNCIL MEMBER POOL 

 

NAYS- NONE 

 

IX. BUSINESS 
A. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. 2020-462, A RESOLUTION 

CONSENTING TO THE CONTINUATION OR RENEWAL OF THE DECLARATION OF LOCAL DISASTER 

FOR PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY EXECUTED BY THE MAYOR ON MARCH 19, 2020 AND 

CONTINUED ON MARCH 24, 2020, FOR A PERIOD OF MORE THAN SEVEN DAYS 

PER JACK HARPER, THE MAYOR HAS THE AUTHORITY TO CANCEL THE DECLARATION IF THIS 

SHOULD BE CANCELLED BEFORE MAY 31. 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-462, 
CONSENTING TO THE CONTINUATION OF THE DELCARATION OF LOCAL DISASTER FOR PUBLIC 

Page 23 of 241



 

6 
 

HEALTH EMERGENCY. IT WAS SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER POOL. THE MOTION WAS 

CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING (ROLL CALL) VOTE: 

 

AYES- MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH 

  COUNCIL MEMBER CATES 

  COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN 

  COUNCIL MEMBER KELLY 

  COUNCIL MEMBER PATTERSON 

  COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE 

  COUNCIL MEMBER POOL 

 

NAYS- NONE 

 

B. CONSIDERATON AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE ORDINANCE NO. 2020-1324, AN 

ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING RULES AND REGULATIONS IN CITY PARKS 

SHARON VALIANTE SPOKE REGARDING THIS ORDINANCE. THE ORDINANCE ADDRESSES CITY PARK 

HOURS OF OPERATION, PROVISIONS FOR PET WASTE, PROHIBITS MOTORIZED VEHICLES, 
PROHIBITS CERTAIN ANIMALS, AND PROHIBITS ALCOHOL, ETC. COUNCIL ASKED QUESTIONS. IT 

WAS ESTABLISHED THAT COUNCIL WOULD EMAIL THE CITY MANAGER SOME REQUESTED 

AMENDMENTS TO THIS ORDINANCE. 

THIS ITEM DIES FOR LACK OF A MOTION. 

NO ACTION TAKEN. 

 

C. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE ORDINANCE NO. 2020-1325 REGARDING 

FY20 OPERATING & CAPITAL BUDGET AMENDMENT “2” 

JACK HARPER EXPLAINED THE PROJECT MANAGER POSITION WOULD NEED 4TH QUARTER 

FUNDING ONLY.  

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH TO APPROVE ORDINANCE NO. 2020-1325 

REGARDING FY20 OPERATING & CAPITAL BUDGET AMENDMENT 2. IT WAS SECONDED BY 

COUNCIL MEMBER POOL. THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING (ROLL CALL) VOTE: 

AYES- MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH 

  COUNCIL MEMBER CATES 

  COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN 

  COUNCIL MEMBER KELLY 

  COUNCIL MEMBER PATTERSON 

  COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE 

  COUNCIL MEMBER POOL 

 

NAYS- NONE  

 

Page 24 of 241



 

7 
 

D. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS UPDATE 

JACK HARPER GAVE AN UPDATE REGARDING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECTS. THERE ARE 3 

OPTIONS: 

OPTION 1: PROCEED AS PLANNED 

OPTION 2: HOLD OFF ON ALL PROJECTS 

OPTION 3: (RECOMMENDED OPTION) WAIT A MONTH TO MAKE THE DECISION 

THE GENERAL CONSENSUS BY COUNCIL WAS TO GO WITH OPTION 3 AND WAIT A MONTH TO 

MAKE ANY DECISIONS ON CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS. 

THERE WAS NO ACTION TAKEN. 

 
X. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION RELATING TO ABSENCES- IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

SECTION 3.10 (d) OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR HOME-RULE CHARTER, PAST ABSENCES DUE TO 
SICKNESS MAY BE EXCUSED, AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE FOR FUTURE ABSENCES MAY BE 
GRANTED. ANY ACTION TO EXCUSE A PAST ABSENCE IS DEEMED TO INCLUDE A FINDING 
THAT THE ABSENCE WAS DUE TO SICKNESS UNLESS THE ACTION INDICATES OTHERWISE. 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN EXPLAINED SHE HAS A POTENTIAL ABSENCE FOR THE NEXT 
REGULAR MEETING (MAY 19). 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH TO EXCUSE COUNCIL MEMBER 
WHITE’S ABSENCE FROM THE MARCH 24, 2020 MEETING. IT WAS SECONDED BY COUNCIL 
MEMBER CATES. THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING (ROLL CALL) VOTE: 
 
AYES- MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH 

  COUNCIL MEMBER CATES 

  COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN 

  COUNCIL MEMBER KELLY 

  COUNCIL MEMBER PATTERSON 

  COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE 

  COUNCIL MEMBER POOL 

 

NAYS- NONE 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH TO APPROVE AN EXCUSED ABSENCE 
FOR COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN FOR THE NEXT REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING (MAY 19). IT 
WAS SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE. THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY THE 
FOLLOWING (ROLL CALL) VOTE: 
 
AYES- MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH 

  COUNCIL MEMBER CATES 

  COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN 

  COUNCIL MEMBER KELLY 

  COUNCIL MEMBER PATTERSON 

Page 25 of 241



 

8 
 

  COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE 

  COUNCIL MEMBER POOL 

 

NAYS- NONE 
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH TO ADJOURN. IT WAS SECONDED BY 

COUNCIL MEMBER POOL. THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING (ROLL CALL) VOTE: 

 

AYES- MAYOR PRO-TEM KAHLICH 

  COUNCIL MEMBER CATES 

  COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN 

  COUNCIL MEMBER KELLY 

  COUNCIL MEMBER PATTERSON 

  COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE 

  COUNCIL MEMBER POOL 

 

NAYS- NONE 

 

MAYOR GROFF ADJOURNED THE MEETING AT 9:07 P.M. 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

        AARON GROFF, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________________ 

KIMBERLY KOPECKY, CITY SECRETARY 

Page 26 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VII.B.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/4/2020 DEPARTMENT: Finance

PREPARED BY: Wes Vela PRESENTER: Wes Vela
SUBJECT:   CONSENT & POSSIBLE ACTION TO ACCEPT THE MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE GENERAL & UTILITY FUNDS

Expenditure Required:  N/A

Amount Budgeted:  N/A

Funding Account:  N/A

Additional Appropriation Required:  N/A

Funding Account:  N/A

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Presented are the General Fund, Utility Fund and CCR Reserve Fund monthly financial reports for the period ended March
31, 2020.  These reports represent the activity for six (6) months or 50% of the fiscal year. In the General Fund the total
revenues are reported at 56.97% of budget and total expenditures are reported at 33.44% which both are in line with our
expectations.
 
In the Utility Fund, revenues are 58.09% and expenses are at 41.39%. Please note that the water and sewer revenues are
reported one month in arrears.  The CCR Utility Reserve is also presented for your review.
 
General Fund   
 Mar-19 Mar-20
Revenues:  
Tax 71.67% 68.81%
License-Permit Revenue 44.77% 49.91%
Grant Revenue 0.00% 0.00%
Service Revenue 55.21% 65.56%
Fines-Forfeitures Revenue 61.89% 40.94%
Interest Earned 154.51% 57.63%
Other Revenue 92.48% 3.90%
Transfers 21.77% 31.39%
  

 54.76% 56.97%
  
Expenditures:  
Administration 29.07% 16.32%
Human Resources 0.00% 29.58%
Municipal Court 40.30% 38.98%
Finance 76.89% 48.45%

Page 27 of 241



Utility Services 48.75% 45.92%
Economic Development 33.17% 35.60%
Communications 28.56% 17.75%
Police 47.24% 46.70%
Emergency Management 16.28% 2.00%
Code Enforcement 39.16% 39.49%
Planning & Development 29.76% 69.09%
Builder Services 31.49% 43.32%
General Facilities 41.01% 33.32%
Public Works & Maint 49.55% 43.65%
Street Department 36.73% 40.68%
  

Total 43.77% 33.44%
 
 

 
Utility Fund   
 Mar-19 Mar-20
Revenues:  
Service Revenue * 58.69%
Interest Revenue * 18.71%
Other Revenue * 117.31%
  

Total * 58.09%
  
Expenses:  
Non-Departmental * 45.46%
Transfers Out * 27.77%
  

Total * 41.39%

Utility Fund- CCR Reserve  
 Mar-19 Mar-20
Revenues:  
Interest Revenue 481.31% 216.57%
Transfers 0.00% 0.00%
  

Total 279.01% 216.57%
  
Expenses:  
Non-Departmental 0.00% 0.33%
 .

Total 0.00% 0.33%

*FY19 Budget is not available for combined Utility
 

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the City Council accept the March 2020 monthly financial report as presented.

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Monthly Financials-March 2020 5/6/2020 Backup Material

Page 28 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    1

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

FINANCIAL SUMMARY                                                                              50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

 

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

                                                     BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUE SUMMARY

 

  TAX & FRANCHISE FEES                           5,495,742.00     191,469.03   3,781,359.26    68.81   1,714,382.74

  LICENSE-PERMIT REVENUE                         2,186,081.00     157,019.59   1,091,121.07    49.91   1,094,959.93

  GRANT REVENUE                                          0.00      11,925.14      12,657.20     0.00 (    12,657.20)

  SERVICE REVENUE                                1,881,719.00     226,676.24   1,233,636.33    65.56     648,082.67

  FINES-FORFIETURES REVENUE                        254,700.00      16,296.51     104,276.85    40.94     150,423.15

  INTEREST EARNED                                  150,006.00      10,779.07      86,448.54    57.63      63,557.46

  OTHER REVENUE                                    449,000.00       1,650.36      17,511.30     3.90     431,488.70

  TRANSFERS                                      1,533,285.00           0.00     481,354.54    31.39   1,051,930.46

TOTAL REVENUES                                  11,950,533.00     615,815.94   6,808,365.09    56.97   5,142,167.91

                                                =============  =============  =============  =======  =============

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

 

  Administration                                 5,306,064.00     134,659.86     866,091.21    16.32   4,439,972.79

  Human Resources                                  273,110.00      17,178.66      80,787.65    29.58     192,322.35

  Municipal Court                                  252,879.00      19,487.63      98,573.17    38.98     154,305.83

  Finance                                          619,149.00      58,573.52     299,987.44    48.45     319,161.56

  Utility Services                               1,312,398.00     126,615.72     602,598.64    45.92     709,799.36

  Economic Development                             388,710.00      33,842.68     138,397.96    35.60     250,312.04

  Communications                                    44,200.00       1,200.00       7,846.84    17.75      36,353.16

  Police Dept                                    2,978,569.00     265,718.54   1,390,917.16    46.70   1,587,651.84

  Emergency Management                              44,680.00         543.77         893.14     2.00      43,786.86

  Code Enforcement                                  95,849.00       7,790.68      37,855.19    39.49      57,993.81

  Planning & Development                           160,700.00      52,213.83     111,020.54    69.09      49,679.46

  Builder Services                               1,155,007.00     155,900.99     500,315.52    43.32     654,691.48

  General Facilities                               625,130.00      34,042.15     208,276.06    33.32     416,853.94

  Public Works & Maint                             550,600.00      45,364.37     240,309.46    43.65     310,290.54

  Streets                                          449,500.00      73,287.44     182,860.57    40.68     266,639.43

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                              14,256,545.00   1,026,419.84   4,766,730.55    33.44   9,489,814.45

                                                =============  =============  =============  =======  =============

REVENUES OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES             ( 2,306,012.00)(   410,603.90)  2,041,634.54          ( 4,347,646.54)

Page 29 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    2

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

 

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

REVENUES                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

TAX & FRANCHISE FEES

100-41101 Property Tax - Current Year            3,005,694.00      47,799.84   2,845,441.99    94.67     160,252.01

100-41102 Property Tax - Deliquent                  40,000.00 (       263.76)     13,751.37    34.38      26,248.63

100-41103 Property Tax - Penlty & Intrst            11,000.00       4,258.42      12,218.73   111.08 (     1,218.73)

100-41301 Sales & Use Tax Revenue                1,665,248.00     129,080.66     536,454.85    32.21   1,128,793.15

100-41302 Mixed Beverage Tax                        19,800.00           0.00       4,879.69    24.64      14,920.31

100-41501 Franchise Revenue - Electrical           450,000.00           0.00     203,413.44    45.20     246,586.56

100-41503 Franchise Revenue - Telecomm              42,000.00           0.00      51,790.33   123.31 (     9,790.33)

100-41504 Franchise Revenue - Cable TV             100,000.00           0.00      25,591.34    25.59      74,408.66

100-41506 Franchise Revenue - Gas                   56,000.00           0.00      21,732.66    38.81      34,267.34

100-41507 Credit Card Fees                          66,000.00       5,793.07      42,886.99    64.98      23,113.01

100-41508 Franchise Revenue -Solid Waste            40,000.00       4,800.80      23,197.87    57.99      16,802.13

   TOTAL TAX & FRANCHISE FEES                    5,495,742.00     191,469.03   3,781,359.26    68.81   1,714,382.74

LICENSE-PERMIT REVENUE

100-42002 Registration - HVAC                        8,755.00         400.00       4,800.00    54.83       3,955.00

100-42003 Registration - Bldg Contractor            52,000.00       3,500.00      27,200.00    52.31      24,800.00

100-42004 Registration - Irrigation                  1,236.00           0.00       1,101.88    89.15         134.12

100-42201 Permit - Electrical                            0.00           0.00          40.00     0.00 (        40.00)

100-42202 Permit - HVAC                             44,290.00       6,365.00      39,495.00    89.17       4,795.00

100-42203 Permit - Bldg Contractor               1,200,000.00      62,704.59     430,579.19    35.88     769,420.81

100-42204 Permit - Plumbing                         72,000.00       7,420.00      46,700.00    64.86      25,300.00

100-42205 Permit - Solicitation                        100.00           0.00          85.00    85.00          15.00

100-42207 Permit - Moving & Demolition                 100.00           0.00         170.00   170.00 (        70.00)

100-42208 Permit - Sign                              4,000.00         275.00       2,925.00    73.13       1,075.00

100-42209 Permit - Banner                            1,600.00           0.00       1,640.00   102.50 (        40.00)

100-42210 Permit - Alarm                            51,000.00       3,345.00      23,525.00    46.13      27,475.00

100-42300 Liquor License                             1,000.00          20.00         840.00    84.00         160.00

100-42700 Inspection Fees                          750,000.00      72,990.00     512,020.00    68.27     237,980.00

   TOTAL LICENSE-PERMIT REVENUE                  2,186,081.00     157,019.59   1,091,121.07    49.91   1,094,959.93

GRANT REVENUE

100-43101 GRANTS - POLICE                                0.00         889.27       1,621.33     0.00 (     1,621.33)

100-43103 FEMA Reimbursement - Harvey                    0.00      11,035.87      11,035.87     0.00 (    11,035.87)

   TOTAL GRANT REVENUE                                   0.00      11,925.14      12,657.20     0.00 (    12,657.20)

SERVICE REVENUE

100-44000 Refund Revenue                               175.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         175.00

100-44001 NSF Fees                                     100.00          35.00         525.00   525.00 (       425.00)

100-44010 Plat Review Fees                               0.00      12,801.49      45,681.29     0.00 (    45,681.29)

100-44011 Plan Review Fees                         685,000.00      81,591.68     600,575.42    87.68      84,424.58

100-44100 Subdivision - Plat Fees                   30,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00      30,000.00

100-44101 Subdiv. Infrustructure 1% Fee            575,000.00      18,559.99     274,357.84    47.71     300,642.16

100-44103 Commercial Plat Fees                       6,500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       6,500.00

100-44250 Open Records Fees                            500.00          33.00         239.10    47.82         260.90

100-44251 Fingerprinting Fees                          500.00          50.00         290.00    58.00         210.00

100-44500 Penalties                                  6,500.00         175.90       3,234.40    49.76       3,265.60

100-44503 Sanitation Revenue                       367,444.00      70,272.27     186,907.64    50.87     180,536.36

Page 30 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    3

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

 

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

REVENUES                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

100-44504 Recycle Revenue                          210,000.00      43,156.91     121,825.64    58.01      88,174.36

   TOTAL SERVICE REVENUE                         1,881,719.00     226,676.24   1,233,636.33    65.56     648,082.67

FINES-FORFIETURES REVENUE

100-45001 Court Fines & Forfeitures                 80,000.00       6,985.92      41,112.45    51.39      38,887.55

100-45002 Court Fees                               100,000.00       6,211.91      38,590.01    38.59      61,409.99

100-45003 Court Deferred Dispositions               72,500.00       3,030.80      23,679.50    32.66      48,820.50

100-45007 Court Time Payment Fees Local              1,000.00          55.90         507.03    50.70         492.97

100-45011 Court-City Justice Fee                     1,200.00          11.98         387.86    32.32         812.14

   TOTAL FINES-FORFIETURES REVENUE                 254,700.00      16,296.51     104,276.85    40.94     150,423.15

INTEREST EARNED

100-46000 Interest Revenue                         150,000.00      10,779.07      86,445.87    57.63      63,554.13

100-46001 PEG ACCT. INTEREST                             6.00           0.00           2.67    44.50           3.33

   TOTAL INTEREST EARNED                           150,006.00      10,779.07      86,448.54    57.63      63,557.46

OTHER REVENUE

100-47100 Candidate Filing Fee                         200.00           0.00         125.00    62.50          75.00

100-47102 TXGLO Grant Funds-D20E                   415,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00     415,000.00

100-47103 Suspense - Bank Corrections                    0.00           0.00       1,452.55     0.00 (     1,452.55)

100-47200 Miscellaneous Revenue                          0.00          66.63       3,751.23     0.00 (     3,751.23)

100-47700 Comm Center -FTB Seniors                     800.00         183.73         547.52    68.44         252.48

100-47701 Community Center - Rental                 30,000.00       1,400.00      11,495.00    38.32      18,505.00

100-47702 Community Center - Security                2,000.00           0.00         140.00     7.00       1,860.00

100-47704 Community Center - Cleaning                1,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       1,000.00

   TOTAL OTHER REVENUE                             449,000.00       1,650.36      17,511.30     3.90     431,488.70

TRANSFERS

100-49550 XFER IN - COF UTLTY FUND 500           1,034,359.00           0.00     258,589.00    25.00     775,770.00

100-49560 XFER IN - 4/A EDC FUND 600               211,963.00           0.00      65,563.85    30.93     146,399.15

100-49562 Xfer In - 4/A Comm Events                 37,500.00           0.00      37,500.00   100.00           0.00

100-49570 XFER IN - 4/B EDC FUND 700               211,963.00           0.00      82,201.69    38.78     129,761.31

100-49572 Xfer In - 4/B Comm Events                 37,500.00           0.00      37,500.00   100.00           0.00

   TOTAL TRANSFERS                               1,533,285.00           0.00     481,354.54    31.39   1,051,930.46

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUE                                   11,950,533.00     615,815.94   6,808,365.09    56.97   5,142,167.91

                                                =============  =============  =============  =======  =============

Page 31 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    4

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Administration

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

PERSONNEL COSTS

100-5-120-5210-00 Salaries & Wages                 533,752.00      49,442.17     216,566.91    40.57     317,185.09

100-5-120-5210-02 Overtime                           1,000.00          29.64         561.00    56.10         439.00

100-5-120-5210-03 Auto Allowance                    10,800.00         692.31       3,738.49    34.62       7,061.51

100-5-120-5216-01 Mayor Compensation                 9,600.00         800.00       4,800.00    50.00       4,800.00

100-5-120-5216-02 Elected Officials Pay             25,200.00       2,100.00      12,600.00    50.00      12,600.00

100-5-120-5230-00 Payroll Tax Expense               41,291.00       4,186.42      17,308.71    41.92      23,982.29

100-5-120-5235-00 Employee Health Benefits          53,143.00       4,550.45      30,277.05    56.97      22,865.95

100-5-120-5238-00 Retirement Contribution           39,699.00       4,063.54      20,222.64    50.94      19,476.36

100-5-120-5239-00 Worker's Compensation              1,316.00         397.00       1,707.00   129.71 (       391.00)

   TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS                           715,801.00      66,261.53     307,781.80    43.00     408,019.20

SUPPLIES

100-5-120-5311-00 Supplies                          15,000.00         115.23       2,392.63    15.95      12,607.37

100-5-120-5314-00 Publications/Ref Material          2,500.00           0.00          58.50     2.34       2,441.50

100-5-120-5315-00 Postage                            8,000.00         368.76       1,027.93    12.85       6,972.07

100-5-120-5316-00 Minor Tools & Equipment            7,500.00          57.48          57.48     0.77       7,442.52

100-5-120-5317-00 Commemoratives                     2,500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       2,500.00

100-5-120-5326-00 Uniforms/Shirts                    1,115.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       1,115.00

100-5-120-5381-00 Meeting Expenses                   5,000.00         312.22       1,722.38    34.45       3,277.62

100-5-120-5382-00 Grants - Economic Development    278,348.00           0.00     278,348.00   100.00           0.00

   TOTAL SUPPLIES                                  319,963.00         853.69     283,606.92    88.64      36,356.08

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

100-5-120-5411-00 Prof. Services - Legal           350,000.00      65,165.00     192,317.65    54.95     157,682.35

100-5-120-5411-10 Prof. Services - Consulting       50,000.00           0.00      27,902.76    55.81      22,097.24

100-5-120-5414-02 Keep Fulshear Beautiful           12,000.00           0.00       2,156.80    17.97       9,843.20

100-5-120-5414-03 Community Events                  75,000.00           0.00      27,031.18    36.04      47,968.82

100-5-120-5424-00 Elections                          5,000.00           0.00         100.00     2.00       4,900.00

100-5-120-5434-00 Telecommunications                 7,000.00       1,120.81       3,256.03    46.51       3,743.97

100-5-120-5461-04 Codification                       6,500.00           0.00       1,065.00    16.38       5,435.00

100-5-120-5468-01 Railroad Pipeline Rental             600.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         600.00

100-5-120-5469-01 Equipment Rental                   7,300.00         797.22       5,302.08    72.63       1,997.92

   TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                      513,400.00      67,083.03     259,131.50    50.47     254,268.50

OTHER CHARGES

100-5-120-5520-00 Printing                             650.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         650.00

100-5-120-5526-00 Public Notices                     5,000.00         128.70       2,190.12    43.80       2,809.88

100-5-120-5526-01 County Recording Fees              3,500.00           0.00          44.13     1.26       3,455.87

100-5-120-5526-05 Open Records Expenses              4,250.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       4,250.00

100-5-120-5527-00 Dues & Memberships                 8,500.00         332.91       6,459.49    75.99       2,040.51

100-5-120-5528-00 Travel & Training                 30,000.00           0.00       6,877.25    22.92      23,122.75

   TOTAL OTHER CHARGES                              51,900.00         461.61      15,570.99    30.00      36,329.01

CAPITAL OUTLAY                                  _____________  _____________  _____________  _______  _____________

Page 32 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    5

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Administration

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TRANSFERS

100-5-120-5900-30 XFER OUT - Cap Proj Fd 300     3,705,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00   3,705,000.00

   TOTAL TRANSFERS                               3,705,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00   3,705,000.00

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Administration                            5,306,064.00     134,659.86     866,091.21    16.32   4,439,972.79

Page 33 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    6

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Human Resources

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

PERSONNEL COSTS

100-5-130-5210-00 Salaries & Wages                  95,592.00      11,029.80      47,795.80    50.00      47,796.20

100-5-130-5230-00 Payroll Tax Expense                7,313.00         770.49       3,386.76    46.31       3,926.24

100-5-130-5235-00 Employee Health Benefits           8,857.00         773.62       7,240.08    81.74       1,616.92

100-5-130-5238-00 Retirement Contribution            7,031.00         863.64       3,842.23    54.65       3,188.77

100-5-130-5239-00 Worker's Compensation                242.00           0.00         242.00   100.00           0.00

100-5-130-5240-00 Unemployment                      11,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00      11,000.00

   TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS                           130,035.00      13,437.55      62,506.87    48.07      67,528.13

SUPPLIES

100-5-130-5311-00 Supplies                           2,500.00           0.00         162.97     6.52       2,337.03

100-5-130-5314-00 Publications/Ref Material            500.00           0.00         100.00    20.00         400.00

100-5-130-5316-00 Minor Tools and Equipment         14,000.00           0.00           7.55     0.05      13,992.45

100-5-130-5326-00 Uniforms/Shirts                       75.00           0.00           0.00     0.00          75.00

100-5-130-5381-05 Staff Relations                   15,000.00          22.62       3,314.96    22.10      11,685.04

100-5-130-5381-06 Staff Development Program          6,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       6,000.00

   TOTAL SUPPLIES                                   38,075.00          22.62       3,585.48     9.42      34,489.52

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

100-5-130-5411-00 Prof. Services - Legal            50,000.00       3,127.50       3,127.50     6.26      46,872.50

100-5-130-5411-10 Prof. Services - Consulting       30,000.00          91.20       6,793.84    22.65      23,206.16

100-5-130-5411-16 EAP Services                       1,000.00           0.00         167.20    16.72         832.80

100-5-130-5434-00 Telecommunications                 1,000.00          99.52         249.34    24.93         750.66

100-5-130-5467-00 Testing/Backgrounds/Supp Serv      6,500.00          49.95         129.75     2.00       6,370.25

   TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                       88,500.00       3,368.17      10,467.63    11.83      78,032.37

OTHER CHARGES

100-5-130-5515-00 Advertising                        1,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       1,000.00

100-5-130-5520-00 Printing                             500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         500.00

100-5-130-5527-00 Dues & Memberships                 1,500.00           0.00         343.00    22.87       1,157.00

100-5-130-5528-00 Travel & Training                  3,500.00         350.32       3,257.67    93.08         242.33

100-5-130-5531-01 Tuition Assistance Program        10,000.00           0.00         627.00     6.27       9,373.00

   TOTAL OTHER CHARGES                              16,500.00         350.32       4,227.67    25.62      12,272.33

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Human Resources                             273,110.00      17,178.66      80,787.65    29.58     192,322.35

Page 34 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    7

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Municipal Court

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

PERSONNEL COSTS

100-5-140-5210-00 Salaries                         105,761.00      11,862.30      51,502.09    48.70      54,258.91

100-5-140-5210-02 Overtime                           1,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       1,000.00

100-5-140-5230-00 Payroll Tax Expense                8,091.00         902.86       4,213.11    52.07       3,877.89

100-5-140-5235-00 Employee Health Benefits          17,714.00       1,531.09      10,476.51    59.14       7,237.49

100-5-140-5238-00 Retirement Contribution            7,779.00         928.82       4,394.55    56.49       3,384.45

100-5-140-5239-00 Workers Compensation                 334.00           0.00         334.00   100.00           0.00

   TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS                           140,679.00      15,225.07      70,920.26    50.41      69,758.74

SUPPLIES

100-5-140-5311-00 Supplies                           3,000.00         126.64       1,376.97    45.90       1,623.03

100-5-140-5314-00 Publications/Ref Material            400.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         400.00

100-5-140-5316-00 Minor Tools & Equipment            1,500.00         230.15         766.45    51.10         733.55

   TOTAL SUPPLIES                                    4,900.00         356.79       2,143.42    43.74       2,756.58

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

100-5-140-5411-00 Prof. Services - Legal            40,000.00       2,031.25       9,000.00    22.50      31,000.00

100-5-140-5411-03 Prof. Services - Judge            35,000.00       1,575.00       9,775.00    27.93      25,225.00

100-5-140-5411-06 Building Security - Bailiff       10,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00      10,000.00

100-5-140-5411-07 Prof. Services  - Juror Fees         500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         500.00

100-5-140-5411-08 Prof. Services - Interpretor       1,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       1,000.00

100-5-140-5434-00 Telecommunications                   900.00          99.52         299.37    33.26         600.63

   TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                       87,400.00       3,705.77      19,074.37    21.82      68,325.63

OTHER CHARGES

100-5-140-5520-00 Printing                             400.00           0.00         401.06   100.27 (         1.06)

100-5-140-5527-00 Dues & Memberships                 1,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       1,000.00

100-5-140-5528-00 Travel & Training                  5,000.00           0.00         791.92    15.84       4,208.08

100-5-140-5540-02 Software Maintenance              13,500.00         200.00       5,242.14    38.83       8,257.86

   TOTAL OTHER CHARGES                              19,900.00         200.00       6,435.12    32.34      13,464.88

CAPITAL OUTLAY                                  _____________  _____________  _____________  _______  _____________

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Municipal Court                             252,879.00      19,487.63      98,573.17    38.98     154,305.83

Page 35 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    8

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Finance

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

PERSONNEL COSTS

100-5-160-5210-00 Salaries                         308,831.00      38,194.09     142,999.64    46.30     165,831.36

100-5-160-5210-02 Overtime                           1,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       1,000.00

100-5-160-5210-03 Auto Allowance                     4,800.00         553.86       2,400.06    50.00       2,399.94

100-5-160-5230-00 Payroll Tax Expense               23,626.00       2,804.93      10,924.12    46.24      12,701.88

100-5-160-5235-00 Employee Health Benefits          35,429.00       3,098.28      18,472.49    52.14      16,956.51

100-5-160-5238-00 Retirement Contribution           22,715.00       3,033.98      12,303.08    54.16      10,411.92

100-5-160-5239-00 Worker's Compensation              2,453.00           0.00       2,453.00   100.00           0.00

100-5-160-5250-00 Vacation Pay Out                  10,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00      10,000.00

   TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS                           408,854.00      47,685.14     189,552.39    46.36     219,301.61

SUPPLIES

100-5-160-5311-00 Supplies                           3,000.00       1,219.54       2,596.73    86.56         403.27

100-5-160-5314-00 Publications/Ref Materials           700.00           0.00       1,158.00   165.43 (       458.00)

100-5-160-5316-00 Minor Tools & Equipment            4,300.00           0.00          46.94     1.09       4,253.06

100-5-160-5326-00 Uniforms/Shirts                      300.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         300.00

   TOTAL SUPPLIES                                    8,300.00       1,219.54       3,801.67    45.80       4,498.33

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

100-5-160-5411-09 Prof. Services - Audit            40,000.00      11,198.50      27,996.50    69.99      12,003.50

100-5-160-5411-13 Technology                         7,500.00           0.00       3,000.00    40.00       4,500.00

100-5-160-5421-01 Insurance - General Liability      9,800.00           0.00       7,860.48    80.21       1,939.52

100-5-160-5421-02 Insurance - Auto Liability         7,500.00           0.00       7,500.00   100.00           0.00

100-5-160-5421-04 Errors & Ommissions                8,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       8,000.00

100-5-160-5421-05 Insurance - Bonding                1,200.00       1,066.00       1,066.00    88.83         134.00

100-5-160-5425-00 Merchant Service Fees             50,000.00       4,562.21      32,521.34    65.04      17,478.66

100-5-160-5426-00 Tax Assessor/Collector Fees       23,595.00         493.23      13,178.07    55.85      10,416.93

100-5-160-5475-00 Bank Charges                      25,000.00 (     4,465.64)      3,046.20    12.18      21,953.80

100-5-160-5475-01 Credit Card Fees                     600.00 (        59.21)        799.18   133.20 (       199.18)

   TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                      173,195.00      12,795.09      96,967.77    55.99      76,227.23

OTHER CHARGES

100-5-160-5527-00 Dues & Memberships                 1,400.00         160.00         770.74    55.05         629.26

100-5-160-5528-00 Travel & Training                 11,200.00           0.00       3,437.24    30.69       7,762.76

100-5-160-5540-02 Software Maintenance              16,200.00 (     3,286.25)      5,457.63    33.69      10,742.37

   TOTAL OTHER CHARGES                              28,800.00 (     3,126.25)      9,665.61    33.56      19,134.39

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Finance                                     619,149.00      58,573.52     299,987.44    48.45     319,161.56

Page 36 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    9

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Utility Services

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

PERSONNEL COSTS

100-5-170-5210-00 Salaries                         139,403.00      14,892.73      61,919.71    44.42      77,483.29

100-5-170-5210-02 Overtime                           1,000.00          33.89         321.09    32.11         678.91

100-5-170-5230-00 Payroll Tax Expense               10,664.00       1,012.31       4,757.40    44.61       5,906.60

100-5-170-5235-00 Employee Health Benefits          17,714.00       1,587.41      12,414.91    70.09       5,299.09

100-5-170-5238-00 Retirement Contribution           10,253.00       1,168.76       5,280.88    51.51       4,972.12

100-5-170-5239-00 Workers Compensation                 339.00           0.00         339.00   100.00           0.00

   TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS                           179,373.00      18,695.10      85,032.99    47.41      94,340.01

SUPPLIES

100-5-170-5311-00 Supplies                           2,500.00         151.24       1,206.93    48.28       1,293.07

100-5-170-5314-00 Publications/Ref Material          2,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       2,000.00

100-5-170-5315-00 Postage                           27,000.00         328.66       9,330.04    34.56      17,669.96

100-5-170-5316-00 Minor Tools & Equipment           11,500.00       7,500.00       8,233.10    71.59       3,266.90

100-5-170-5326-00 Uniforms/Shirts                      225.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         225.00

100-5-170-5380-00 Public Relations                   2,500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       2,500.00

   TOTAL SUPPLIES                                   45,725.00       7,979.90      18,770.07    41.05      26,954.93

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

100-5-170-5411-10 Prof. Services - Consulting        2,500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       2,500.00

100-5-170-5434-00 Telecommunications                 1,000.00          99.52         299.37    29.94         700.63

100-5-170-5461-02 Contract - Sanitation Services 1,020,000.00      96,817.31     477,710.70    46.83     542,289.30

100-5-170-5469-01 Equipment Rental                   4,500.00         613.89       2,156.40    47.92       2,343.60

   TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    1,028,000.00      97,530.72     480,166.47    46.71     547,833.53

OTHER CHARGES

100-5-170-5515-00 Advertising                          750.00           0.00          64.43     8.59         685.57

100-5-170-5520-00 Printing                          15,000.00           0.00       4,243.43    28.29      10,756.57

100-5-170-5527-00 Dues & Memberships                   550.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         550.00

100-5-170-5528-00 Travel & Training                  3,000.00           0.00         765.00    25.50       2,235.00

100-5-170-5535-00 Equipment Maintenance             23,000.00       2,300.00       6,493.18    28.23      16,506.82

100-5-170-5540-02 Software Maintenance              17,000.00         110.00       7,063.07    41.55       9,936.93

   TOTAL OTHER CHARGES                              59,300.00       2,410.00      18,629.11    31.42      40,670.89

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Utility Services                          1,312,398.00     126,615.72     602,598.64    45.92     709,799.36

Page 37 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:   10

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Economic Development

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

PERSONNEL COSTS

100-5-180-5210-00 Salaries                         167,199.00      19,292.11      83,599.12    50.00      83,599.88

100-5-180-5210-03 Auto Allowance                     4,800.00         553.86       2,400.06    50.00       2,399.94

100-5-180-5230-00 Payroll Tax Expense               12,791.00       1,518.21       7,066.07    55.24       5,724.93

100-5-180-5235-00 Employee Health Benefits          17,714.00       1,551.43      10,724.09    60.54       6,989.91

100-5-180-5238-00 Retirement Contribution           12,298.00       1,553.94       7,338.32    59.67       4,959.68

100-5-180-5239-00 Workers Compensation                 403.00           0.00         403.00   100.00           0.00

   TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS                           215,205.00      24,469.55     111,530.66    51.83     103,674.34

SUPPLIES

100-5-180-5311-00 Supplies                           2,500.00          61.63         295.02    11.80       2,204.98

100-5-180-5314-00 Publications/Ref Material            730.00          20.00         225.00    30.82         505.00

100-5-180-5316-00 Minor Tools & Equipment            2,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       2,000.00

100-5-180-5381-00 Meeting Expenses                   2,000.00           5.87           5.87     0.29       1,994.13

   TOTAL SUPPLIES                                    7,230.00          87.50         525.89     7.27       6,704.11

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

100-5-180-5411-10 Prof. Services - Consulting       25,000.00       4,533.40       4,533.40    18.13      20,466.60

100-5-180-5411-14 Prof. Service Legal & Engineer    10,000.00       3,139.50       5,470.10    54.70       4,529.90

100-5-180-5434-00 Telecommunications                 2,200.00         275.08         755.52    34.34       1,444.48

100-5-180-5440-00 Marketing                         32,500.00           0.00       1,825.52     5.62      30,674.48

100-5-180-5472-00 Business Devlpmnt & Retention      7,500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       7,500.00

   TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                       77,200.00       7,947.98      12,584.54    16.30      64,615.46

OTHER CHARGES

100-5-180-5520-00 Printing                           2,500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       2,500.00

100-5-180-5527-00 Dues & Memberships                 2,325.00           0.00       1,338.41    57.57         986.59

100-5-180-5527-01 Dues & Memberships - Org.         17,250.00       1,250.00       7,300.00    42.32       9,950.00

100-5-180-5528-00 Travel & Training                 14,500.00           0.00       4,873.73    33.61       9,626.27

100-5-180-5530-00 Technology Maintenance            51,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00      51,000.00

100-5-180-5531-00 Mileage                            1,500.00          87.65         244.73    16.32       1,255.27

   TOTAL OTHER CHARGES                              89,075.00       1,337.65      13,756.87    15.44      75,318.13

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Economic Development                        388,710.00      33,842.68     138,397.96    35.60     250,312.04

Page 38 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:   11

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Communications

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

SUPPLIES

100-5-185-5311-00 Supplies                             500.00           0.00          62.50    12.50         437.50

100-5-185-5316-00 Minor Tools & Equipment            5,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       5,000.00

   TOTAL SUPPLIES                                    5,500.00           0.00          62.50     1.14       5,437.50

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                            _____________  _____________  _____________  _______  _____________

OTHER CHARGES

100-5-185-5527-00 Dues & Memberships                   500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         500.00

100-5-185-5527-02 Annual Subscription Services       6,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       6,000.00

100-5-185-5528-00 Travel & Training                  3,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       3,000.00

100-5-185-5530-00 Technology Maintenance            28,000.00       1,200.00       7,784.34    27.80      20,215.66

100-5-185-5540-02 Software Maintenance               1,200.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       1,200.00

   TOTAL OTHER CHARGES                              38,700.00       1,200.00       7,784.34    20.11      30,915.66

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Communications                               44,200.00       1,200.00       7,846.84    17.75      36,353.16

Page 39 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:   12

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Police Dept

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

PERSONNEL COSTS

100-5-210-5210-00 Salaries                       1,736,701.00     188,695.34     814,627.21    46.91     922,073.79

100-5-210-5210-02 Overtime                          20,590.00       1,195.68       6,838.97    33.22      13,751.03

100-5-210-5210-03 AUTO ALLOWANCE                     2,400.00         276.90       1,199.90    50.00       1,200.10

100-5-210-5210-05 Holiday Worked - Wage             98,064.00           0.00      28,157.90    28.71      69,906.10

100-5-210-5210-06 Overtime - Grant Funded            5,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       5,000.00

100-5-210-5210-07 TXDOT Step Grant                       0.00           0.00       1,944.78     0.00 (     1,944.78)

100-5-210-5230-00 Payroll Tax Expense              141,003.00      14,086.83      67,701.24    48.01      73,301.76

100-5-210-5235-00 Employee Health Benefits         234,716.00      19,237.43     118,767.85    50.60     115,948.15

100-5-210-5238-00 Retirement Contribution          127,737.00      14,890.18      72,937.69    57.10      54,799.31

100-5-210-5239-00 Workers Compensation              44,104.00       3,413.00      47,517.00   107.74 (     3,413.00)

   TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS                         2,410,315.00     241,795.36   1,159,692.54    48.11   1,250,622.46

SUPPLIES

100-5-210-5311-00 Supplies                           4,200.00         176.55       1,446.16    34.43       2,753.84

100-5-210-5311-05 Supplies - Police Duty            29,100.00       3,081.37       5,568.63    19.14      23,531.37

100-5-210-5314-00 Publications/Ref Material            500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         500.00

100-5-210-5316-00 Minor Tools & Equipment          118,600.00         483.67      33,953.32    28.63      84,646.68

100-5-210-5317-00 Commemoratives                       500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         500.00

100-5-210-5326-00 Uniforms/Shirts                   26,000.00       4,668.46      16,814.15    64.67       9,185.85

100-5-210-5363-00 Fuel/Oil Expense                  58,885.00       3,829.31      19,568.56    33.23      39,316.44

100-5-210-5363-01 Auto Repair/Maintenance           50,000.00       2,109.73      15,595.28    31.19      34,404.72

100-5-210-5364-00 Investigations                     6,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       6,000.00

100-5-210-5380-00 Public Relations                   1,200.00           0.00         149.23    12.44       1,050.77

   TOTAL SUPPLIES                                  294,985.00      14,349.09      93,095.33    31.56     201,889.67

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

100-5-210-5421-01 Insurance General Liability       12,000.00           0.00      13,847.40   115.40 (     1,847.40)

100-5-210-5421-02 Insurance - Auto Liability        15,000.00           0.00      18,242.00   121.61 (     3,242.00)

100-5-210-5430-00 Telecommunications-Web             3,700.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       3,700.00

100-5-210-5434-00 Telecommunications                18,700.00       3,111.54       8,410.33    44.98      10,289.67

100-5-210-5467-00 Testing & Support Services         5,000.00         152.08       2,878.29    57.57       2,121.71

100-5-210-5469-01 Equipment Rental                  13,000.00       2,377.47       7,069.78    54.38       5,930.22

   TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                       67,400.00       5,641.09      50,447.80    74.85      16,952.20

OTHER CHARGES

100-5-210-5520-00 Printing                           1,500.00         104.00         208.00    13.87       1,292.00

100-5-210-5527-00 Dues & Memberships                 2,300.00         380.00         539.48    23.46       1,760.52

100-5-210-5528-00 Travel & Training                 18,000.00         459.00       7,644.92    42.47      10,355.08

100-5-210-5530-00 Technology Maintenance            42,438.00       2,990.00      39,626.99    93.38       2,811.01

100-5-210-5531-01 Tuition Assistance Program         6,000.00           0.00         182.50     3.04       5,817.50

100-5-210-5599-00 Vehicle Replacement Fee           95,831.00           0.00      39,479.60    41.20      56,351.40

   TOTAL OTHER CHARGES                             166,069.00       3,933.00      87,681.49    52.80      78,387.51

CAPITAL OUTLAY

100-5-210-5600-00 Capital Outlay-Equipment          39,800.00           0.00           0.00     0.00      39,800.00

   TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY                             39,800.00           0.00           0.00     0.00      39,800.00

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Police Dept                               2,978,569.00     265,718.54   1,390,917.16    46.70   1,587,651.84Page 40 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:   13

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Emergency Management

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

PERSONNEL COSTS

100-5-230-5210-02 Overtime                           5,500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       5,500.00

100-5-230-5230-00 Payroll Tax Expense                  421.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         421.00

100-5-230-5238-00 Retirement Contribution              409.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         409.00

   TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS                             6,330.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       6,330.00

SUPPLIES

100-5-230-5311-00 Supplies                           4,500.00           0.00           7.46     0.17       4,492.54

100-5-230-5311-01 Occupation Supplies                3,500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       3,500.00

100-5-230-5314-00 Publications/Ref Material            500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         500.00

100-5-230-5316-00 Minor Tools & Equipment            9,700.00           0.00          92.03     0.95       9,607.97

100-5-230-5317-00 Commemoratives                     1,200.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       1,200.00

100-5-230-5363-00 Fuel/Oil Expense                   5,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       5,000.00

100-5-230-5363-01 Auto Repair/Maintenance            5,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       5,000.00

100-5-230-5381-00 Meeting Expenses                   2,700.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       2,700.00

   TOTAL SUPPLIES                                   32,100.00           0.00          99.49     0.31      32,000.51

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

100-5-230-5411-13 Prof. Services I.T.                  500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         500.00

100-5-230-5434-00 Telecommunications                 2,000.00          75.98         325.86    16.29       1,674.14

100-5-230-5469-01 Equipment Rental                   1,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       1,000.00

   TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                        3,500.00          75.98         325.86     9.31       3,174.14

OTHER CHARGES

100-5-230-5500-01 COVID-19                               0.00         467.79         467.79     0.00 (       467.79)

100-5-230-5520-00 Printing                             300.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         300.00

100-5-230-5527-00 Dues & Memberships                   450.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         450.00

100-5-230-5528-00 Travel & Training                  2,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       2,000.00

   TOTAL OTHER CHARGES                               2,750.00         467.79         467.79    17.01       2,282.21

CAPITAL OUTLAY                                  _____________  _____________  _____________  _______  _____________

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Emergency Management                         44,680.00         543.77         893.14     2.00      43,786.86

Page 41 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:   14

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Code Enforcement

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

PERSONNEL COSTS

100-5-250-5210-00 Salaries & Wages                       0.00       5,498.67      24,509.44     0.00 (    24,509.44)

100-5-250-5210-01 Wages                             47,019.00           0.00           0.00     0.00      47,019.00

100-5-250-5210-02 Overtime                           5,000.00         118.68         288.21     5.76       4,711.79

100-5-250-5230-00 Payroll Tax Expense                3,597.00         429.72       2,030.03    56.44       1,566.97

100-5-250-5235-00 Employee Health Benefits           8,857.00         766.57       5,339.51    60.29       3,517.49

100-5-250-5238-00 Retirement Contribution            3,458.00         439.84       2,109.02    60.99       1,348.98

100-5-250-5239-00 Workers' Compensation                263.00           0.00         263.00   100.00           0.00

   TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS                            68,194.00       7,253.48      34,539.21    50.65      33,654.79

SUPPLIES

100-5-250-5311-00 Supplies                             200.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         200.00

100-5-250-5314-00 Publications/Ref Material            300.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         300.00

100-5-250-5316-00 Minor Tools & Equipment            7,100.00           0.00         534.95     7.53       6,565.05

100-5-250-5326-00 Uniforms/Shirts                      350.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         350.00

100-5-250-5363-00 Fuel/Oil Expense                   3,400.00         187.68         656.80    19.32       2,743.20

100-5-250-5363-01 Auto Repair/Maintenance            3,840.00           0.00          40.65     1.06       3,799.35

   TOTAL SUPPLIES                                   15,190.00         187.68       1,232.40     8.11      13,957.60

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

100-5-250-5434-00 Telecommunications                 1,200.00          99.52         251.48    20.96         948.52

100-5-250-5461-00 Pro Serv.- Demo-/Prop Upkeep       5,500.00         250.00         250.00     4.55       5,250.00

   TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                        6,700.00         349.52         501.48     7.48       6,198.52

OTHER CHARGES

100-5-250-5527-00 Dues & Memberships                   200.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         200.00

100-5-250-5528-00 Travel & Training                  2,000.00           0.00         280.00    14.00       1,720.00

100-5-250-5530-00 Technology Maintenance               440.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         440.00

100-5-250-5599-00 Vehicle Replacement Fee            3,125.00           0.00       1,302.10    41.67       1,822.90

   TOTAL OTHER CHARGES                               5,765.00           0.00       1,582.10    27.44       4,182.90

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Code Enforcement                             95,849.00       7,790.68      37,855.19    39.49      57,993.81

Page 42 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:   15

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Planning & Development

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

PERSONNEL COSTS

100-5-400-5239-00 Workers Compensation                   0.00         277.00         277.00     0.00 (       277.00)

   TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS                                 0.00         277.00         277.00     0.00 (       277.00)

SUPPLIES

100-5-400-5311-00 Supplies                           3,500.00           0.00       1,257.00    35.91       2,243.00

100-5-400-5314-00 Publications/Ref Material          1,200.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       1,200.00

100-5-400-5316-00 Minor Tools & Equipment            2,500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       2,500.00

   TOTAL SUPPLIES                                    7,200.00           0.00       1,257.00    17.46       5,943.00

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

100-5-400-5411-10 Prof. Services - Consulting      140,000.00      45,837.31     102,677.17    73.34      37,322.83

100-5-400-5411-11 Prof. Services - Engineering           0.00       6,000.00       6,000.00     0.00 (     6,000.00)

100-5-400-5434-00 Telecommunications                 1,000.00          99.52         299.37    29.94         700.63

100-5-400-5469-01 Equipment Rental                   1,000.00           0.00          55.00     5.50         945.00

   TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                      142,000.00      51,936.83     109,031.54    76.78      32,968.46

OTHER CHARGES

100-5-400-5527-00 Dues & Memberships                 1,500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       1,500.00

100-5-400-5528-00 Travel & Training                 10,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00      10,000.00

100-5-400-5540-02 Software Maintenance                   0.00           0.00         455.00     0.00 (       455.00)

   TOTAL OTHER CHARGES                              11,500.00           0.00         455.00     3.96      11,045.00

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Planning & Development                      160,700.00      52,213.83     111,020.54    69.09      49,679.46

Page 43 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:   16

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Builder Services

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

PERSONNEL COSTS

100-5-450-5210-00 Salaries                         597,851.00      69,854.31     299,703.14    50.13     298,147.86

100-5-450-5210-02 Overtime                           5,500.00          46.85          53.54     0.97       5,446.46

100-5-450-5210-03 Auto Allowance                     4,800.00         553.86       2,400.06    50.00       2,399.94

100-5-450-5230-00 Payroll Tax Expense               45,736.00       5,382.97      24,531.72    53.64      21,204.28

100-5-450-5235-00 Employee Health Benefits          88,572.00       7,690.31      53,773.97    60.71      34,798.03

100-5-450-5238-00 Retirement Contribution           43,973.00       5,516.65      25,774.94    58.62      18,198.06

100-5-450-5239-00 Workers Compensation               3,325.00           0.00       3,325.00   100.00           0.00

   TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS                           789,757.00      89,044.95     409,562.37    51.86     380,194.63

SUPPLIES

100-5-450-5311-00 Supplies                           6,000.00         505.73       2,412.48    40.21       3,587.52

100-5-450-5314-00 Publications/Ref Material          1,500.00           0.00         503.00    33.53         997.00

100-5-450-5316-00 Minor Tools & Equipment            5,500.00           0.00         931.94    16.94       4,568.06

100-5-450-5326-00 Uniforms/Shirts                    5,000.00           0.00       2,088.17    41.76       2,911.83

100-5-450-5363-00 Fuel/Oil Expense                   9,500.00         467.62       2,374.32    24.99       7,125.68

100-5-450-5363-01 Auto Repair/Maintenance            7,500.00          35.80       1,676.18    22.35       5,823.82

100-5-450-5380-00 Public Relations                   1,500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       1,500.00

   TOTAL SUPPLIES                                   36,500.00       1,009.15       9,986.09    27.36      26,513.91

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

100-5-450-5411-10 Prof. Services - Consulting       25,000.00       6,000.00       6,000.00    24.00      19,000.00

100-5-450-5411-11 Prof. Services - Engineering       1,500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       1,500.00

100-5-450-5411-12 Prof. Serv-Infrastructure Insp   250,000.00      58,059.96      58,059.96    23.22     191,940.04

100-5-450-5434-00 Telecommunications                 7,500.00         423.11       1,232.93    16.44       6,267.07

100-5-450-5469-01 Equipment Rental                   6,000.00       1,061.32       4,194.50    69.91       1,805.50

   TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                      290,000.00      65,544.39      69,487.39    23.96     220,512.61

OTHER CHARGES

100-5-450-5520-00 Printing                           6,000.00           0.00       1,528.38    25.47       4,471.62

100-5-450-5527-00 Dues & Memberships                 1,500.00           0.00         590.00    39.33         910.00

100-5-450-5528-00 Travel & Training                 11,500.00         302.50       2,394.37    20.82       9,105.63

100-5-450-5540-02 Software Maintenance              10,000.00           0.00       2,704.42    27.04       7,295.58

100-5-450-5599-00 Vehicle Replacement Fee            9,750.00           0.00       4,062.50    41.67       5,687.50

   TOTAL OTHER CHARGES                              38,750.00         302.50      11,279.67    29.11      27,470.33

CAPITAL OUTLAY                                  _____________  _____________  _____________  _______  _____________

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Builder Services                          1,155,007.00     155,900.99     500,315.52    43.32     654,691.48

Page 44 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:   17

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

General Facilities

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

SUPPLIES

100-5-490-5311-00 Supplies                          10,000.00       1,261.41       6,233.93    62.34       3,766.07

100-5-490-5316-00 Minor Tools & Equipment           20,000.00         499.92       3,673.82    18.37      16,326.18

100-5-490-5316-02 Minor Equipment - Technology     103,000.00         195.28      14,540.78    14.12      88,459.22

   TOTAL SUPPLIES                                  133,000.00       1,956.61      24,448.53    18.38     108,551.47

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

100-5-490-5411-13 Prof. Services I.T.               60,000.00       8,016.42      48,075.26    80.13      11,924.74

100-5-490-5420-00 Comm Center Supervisor             5,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       5,000.00

100-5-490-5422-00 Facilities Cleaning               45,000.00       2,092.51      12,790.15    28.42      32,209.85

100-5-490-5430-00 Telecommunications Web             7,500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       7,500.00

100-5-490-5431-00 Electricity                       25,000.00       3,893.99       9,647.95    38.59      15,352.05

100-5-490-5434-00 Telecommunications                45,000.00       6,005.85      28,052.71    62.34      16,947.29

100-5-490-5435-00 Pest Control Services              2,250.00         445.00       1,475.00    65.56         775.00

100-5-490-5451-00 Security Systems                   9,500.00       1,045.19       2,748.29    28.93       6,751.71

100-5-490-5469-02 Facility Rental                  117,880.00       8,589.00      51,758.00    43.91      66,122.00

100-5-490-5472-00 Contract Services                 25,000.00       1,449.70       2,597.43    10.39      22,402.57

   TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                      342,130.00      31,537.66     157,144.79    45.93     184,985.21

OTHER CHARGES

100-5-490-5540-02 Software Maintenance              50,000.00           0.00 (       918.16)    1.84-     50,918.16

100-5-490-5570-01 Facilities Maintenance            50,000.00         516.91      26,784.93    53.57      23,215.07

100-5-490-5570-02 Facility Improvements                  0.00          30.97          30.97     0.00 (        30.97)

100-5-490-5571-00 Landscape Maintenance             50,000.00           0.00         785.00     1.57      49,215.00

   TOTAL OTHER CHARGES                             150,000.00         547.88      26,682.74    17.79     123,317.26

CAPITAL OUTLAY                                  _____________  _____________  _____________  _______  _____________

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL General Facilities                          625,130.00      34,042.15     208,276.06    33.32     416,853.94

Page 45 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:   18

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Public Works & Maint

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

PERSONNEL COSTS

100-5-510-5210-00 Salaries                         245,538.00      29,860.53     141,508.86    57.63     104,029.14

100-5-510-5210-02 Overtime                           5,500.00         265.32       4,353.99    79.16       1,146.01

100-5-510-5210-03 Auto Allowance                     5,400.00         623.10       2,700.10    50.00       2,699.90

100-5-510-5230-00 Payroll Tax Expense               18,784.00       2,302.74      11,802.21    62.83       6,981.79

100-5-510-5235-00 Employee Health Benefits          35,429.00       3,078.20      25,418.06    71.74      10,010.94

100-5-510-5238-00 Retirement Contribution           18,060.00       2,407.64      12,699.96    70.32       5,360.04

100-5-510-5239-00 Workers Compensation               4,847.00         389.00       5,236.00   108.03 (       389.00)

   TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS                           333,558.00      38,926.53     203,719.18    61.07     129,838.82

SUPPLIES

100-5-510-5311-00 Supplies                           2,000.00           0.00       2,255.28   112.76 (       255.28)

100-5-510-5314-00 Publications/Ref Material            250.00           0.00           0.00     0.00         250.00

100-5-510-5316-00 Minor Tools & Equipment            5,000.00         144.70         162.69     3.25       4,837.31

100-5-510-5326-00 Uniforms/Shirts                    1,800.00           0.00       1,049.11    58.28         750.89

100-5-510-5363-00 Fuel/Oil Expense                  10,000.00         738.24       3,924.97    39.25       6,075.03

100-5-510-5363-01 Auto Repair/Maintenance           12,000.00       2,508.15       3,164.34    26.37       8,835.66

   TOTAL SUPPLIES                                   31,050.00       3,391.09      10,556.39    34.00      20,493.61

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

100-5-510-5411-10 Prof. Services - Consulting       20,000.00           0.00       1,357.50     6.79      18,642.50

100-5-510-5412-10 Prof Services - Engineering      100,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00     100,000.00

100-5-510-5434-00 Telecommunications                 4,200.00         613.18       1,557.73    37.09       2,642.27

100-5-510-5469-01 Equipment Rental                   5,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       5,000.00

   TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                      129,200.00         613.18       2,915.23     2.26     126,284.77

OTHER CHARGES

100-5-510-5527-00 Dues & Memberships                 1,500.00       1,230.00       1,280.00    85.33         220.00

100-5-510-5528-00 Travel & Training                 10,000.00       1,203.57       2,967.01    29.67       7,032.99

100-5-510-5599-00 Vehicle Replacement Fee           45,292.00           0.00      18,871.65    41.67      26,420.35

   TOTAL OTHER CHARGES                              56,792.00       2,433.57      23,118.66    40.71      33,673.34

CAPITAL OUTLAY                                  _____________  _____________  _____________  _______  _____________

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Public Works & Maint                        550,600.00      45,364.37     240,309.46    43.65     310,290.54

Page 46 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:   19

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

100-General Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Streets

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

SUPPLIES

100-5-520-5311-00 Supplies                          10,000.00           0.00       1,821.37    18.21       8,178.63

100-5-520-5311-02 Supplies - Signage                10,000.00       1,808.63       2,480.03    24.80       7,519.97

100-5-520-5350-00 Street Maintenance                25,000.00         161.44       4,961.44    19.85      20,038.56

   TOTAL SUPPLIES                                   45,000.00       1,970.07       9,262.84    20.58      35,737.16

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

100-5-520-5411-10 Prof. Services - Consulting        2,500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       2,500.00

100-5-520-5432-00 Electricity - Street Lights      270,000.00      71,317.37     173,119.73    64.12      96,880.27

100-5-520-5472-01 Contract Services - Streets       35,000.00           0.00         478.00     1.37      34,522.00

100-5-520-5472-02 Contract Services - Markings      15,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00      15,000.00

100-5-520-5472-03 Contract Services - Mowing        67,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00      67,000.00

   TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                      389,500.00      71,317.37     173,597.73    44.57     215,902.27

CAPITAL OUTLAY

100-5-520-5600-00 Capital Outlay - Equipment        15,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00      15,000.00

   TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY                             15,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00      15,000.00

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Streets                                     449,500.00      73,287.44     182,860.57    40.68     266,639.43

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                              14,256,545.00   1,026,419.84   4,766,730.55    33.44   9,489,814.45

                                                =============  =============  =============  =======  =============

REVENUES OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES             ( 2,306,012.00)(   410,603.90)  2,041,634.54          ( 4,347,646.54)

*** END OF REPORT ***

Page 47 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    1

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

500-Fulshear Utility Fund

FINANCIAL SUMMARY                                                                              50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

 

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

                                                     BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUE SUMMARY

 

  TAX & FRANCHISE FEES                                   0.00          86.02         151.34     0.00 (       151.34)

  SERVICE REVENUE                                5,238,752.00   1,143,565.96   3,074,563.84    58.69   2,164,188.16

  INTEREST EARNED                                  117,000.00       2,303.59      21,894.26    18.71      95,105.74

  OTHER REVENUE                                     25,000.00      16,452.90      29,326.47   117.31 (     4,326.47)

TOTAL REVENUES                                   5,380,752.00   1,162,408.47   3,125,935.91    58.09   2,254,816.09

                                                =============  =============  =============  =======  =============

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

 

  Non-Departmental                               4,436,208.00     455,652.87   2,016,622.19    45.46   2,419,585.81

  Transfers Out                                  1,326,861.00     109,871.31     368,460.31    27.77     958,400.69

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                               5,763,069.00     565,524.18   2,385,082.50    41.39   3,377,986.50

                                                =============  =============  =============  =======  =============

REVENUES OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES             (   382,317.00)    596,884.29     740,853.41          ( 1,123,170.41)

Page 48 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    2

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

500-Fulshear Utility Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

 

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

REVENUES                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

TAX & FRANCHISE FEES

500-41507 Credit Card Fees                               0.00          86.02         151.34     0.00 (       151.34)

   TOTAL TAX & FRANCHISE FEES                            0.00          86.02         151.34     0.00 (       151.34)

GRANT REVENUE                                   _____________  _____________  _____________  _______  _____________

SERVICE REVENUE

500-44102 Residential Water                        720,115.00     218,193.00     385,568.89    53.54     334,546.11

500-44103 Commercial Water                         290,836.00      98,791.70     246,788.43    84.85      44,047.57

500-44104 Builder Water                             50,794.00           0.00      14,460.95    28.47      36,333.05

500-44105 Irrigation Water                           1,056.00      15,682.07      20,747.58 1,964.73 (    19,691.58)

500-44106 Residential Sewer                        720,115.00     158,127.57     404,141.13    56.12     315,973.87

500-44107 Commercial Sewer                         290,836.00      90,791.00     189,335.60    65.10     101,500.40

500-44300 Water & Sewer Taps                     1,315,000.00     122,437.02     708,132.44    53.85     606,867.56

500-44310 Builder Backcharges                       20,000.00           0.00      23,645.53   118.23 (     3,645.53)

500-44311 WATER/SEWER INFRASTRCT                   150,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00     150,000.00

500-44500 Penalties                                100,000.00       2,323.27      75,385.63    75.39      24,614.37

500-44600 NFBWA Pumpage Fees                     1,580,000.00     437,220.33   1,001,237.66    63.37     578,762.34

500-44700 Cap. Recovery Fee                              0.00           0.00       5,120.00     0.00 (     5,120.00)

   TOTAL SERVICE REVENUE                         5,238,752.00   1,143,565.96   3,074,563.84    58.69   2,164,188.16

INTEREST EARNED

500-46000 Interest Revenue                         117,000.00       2,303.59      21,894.26    18.71      95,105.74

   TOTAL INTEREST EARNED                           117,000.00       2,303.59      21,894.26    18.71      95,105.74

OTHER REVENUE

500-47200 Miscellaneous Revenue                     25,000.00      16,452.90      29,326.47   117.31 (     4,326.47)

   TOTAL OTHER REVENUE                              25,000.00      16,452.90      29,326.47   117.31 (     4,326.47)

TRANSFERS                                       _____________  _____________  _____________  _______  _____________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUE                                    5,380,752.00   1,162,408.47   3,125,935.91    58.09   2,254,816.09

                                                =============  =============  =============  =======  =============

Page 49 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    3

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

500-Fulshear Utility Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Non-Departmental

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

PERSONNEL COSTS

500-5-000-5210-00 Salaries                         165,837.00      14,520.27      17,789.57    10.73     148,047.43

500-5-000-5210-02 Overtime                               0.00         157.38         157.38     0.00 (       157.38)

500-5-000-5230-00 Payroll Expense                   12,993.00       1,100.32       1,349.55    10.39      11,643.45

500-5-000-5235-00 Employee Health Benefits          26,571.00       2,918.63       2,983.02    11.23      23,587.98

500-5-000-5238-00 Retirement Contribution           12,491.00       1,149.27       1,405.26    11.25      11,085.74

500-5-000-5239-00 Worker's Compensation              5,526.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       5,526.00

   TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS                           223,418.00      19,845.87      23,684.78    10.60     199,733.22

SUPPLIES

500-5-000-5311-00 Supplies                           5,500.00           0.00       4,875.00    88.64         625.00

500-5-000-5324-00 Chemicals                         25,900.00       8,663.67      36,081.29   139.31 (    10,181.29)

500-5-000-5381-01 Miscellaneous                      3,500.00           0.00         724.97    20.71       2,775.03

   TOTAL SUPPLIES                                   34,900.00       8,663.67      41,681.26   119.43 (     6,781.26)

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

500-5-000-5411-00 Prof. Services - Legal             5,000.00           0.00       4,894.50    97.89         105.50

500-5-000-5411-10 Prof. Service-Comp Planning      110,000.00       3,040.00      16,775.00    15.25      93,225.00

500-5-000-5411-11 Prof. Services-Engineering        40,000.00       1,293.60       2,578.69     6.45      37,421.31

500-5-000-5421-00 Ins Real & Personal Prop          35,000.00           0.00      30,000.00    85.71       5,000.00

500-5-000-5421-01 General Liability                  1,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       1,000.00

500-5-000-5421-04 Errors & Ommissions                1,800.00           0.00           0.00     0.00       1,800.00

500-5-000-5425-00 Merchant Service Fees                  0.00       2,038.44       2,038.44     0.00 (     2,038.44)

500-5-000-5431-01 Electricity- Water Plant         191,000.00      22,309.22      73,572.59    38.52     117,427.41

500-5-000-5431-02 Electricity- Lift Station         30,000.00       5,095.55      12,694.60    42.32      17,305.40

500-5-000-5431-03 Electricity - Sewer Plant        138,000.00      21,288.68      44,656.10    32.36      93,343.90

500-5-000-5434-01 Telecom - Alarm Phones             9,000.00       1,037.67       3,117.67    34.64       5,882.33

500-5-000-5450-00 Sludge Hauling                    90,000.00      20,205.30      65,504.48    72.78      24,495.52

500-5-000-5463-01 Facilities Lease                 172,140.00      14,345.00      86,070.00    50.00      86,070.00

500-5-000-5465-00 Water Pumpage Fees             1,580,000.00     146,983.45     886,055.30    56.08     693,944.70

500-5-000-5466-00 Lab Testing                        2,000.00       4,282.50       4,282.50   214.13 (     2,282.50)

500-5-000-5469-02 Facility Rental                   17,500.00           0.00           0.00     0.00      17,500.00

   TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    2,422,440.00     241,919.41   1,232,239.87    50.87   1,190,200.13

OTHER CHARGES

500-5-000-5510-01 Base - Contract W/S Operation    495,320.00      47,413.83     237,069.15    47.86     258,250.85

500-5-000-5510-02 Admin Fees W/S Contract              350.00          58.39       1,233.57   352.45 (       883.57)

500-5-000-5510-04 Water System Maintenance         404,000.00      43,432.76     129,654.75    32.09     274,345.25

500-5-000-5510-05 Lift Station Maintenance          50,000.00      15,003.30      47,757.32    95.51       2,242.68

500-5-000-5510-06 Tapping Fees - W/S Contract      665,000.00      76,960.49     245,656.40    36.94     419,343.60

500-5-000-5510-07 Sewer System Maintenance          93,750.00       2,322.65      30,095.79    32.10      63,654.21

500-5-000-5512-00 Water Conservation Program         5,100.00          32.50       1,007.50    19.75       4,092.50

500-5-000-5515-02 Permits                           26,750.00           0.00      26,541.80    99.22         208.20

500-5-000-5560-07 Incode Software Maintenance       15,180.00           0.00           0.00     0.00      15,180.00

   TOTAL OTHER CHARGES                           1,755,450.00     185,223.92     719,016.28    40.96   1,036,433.72

Page 50 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    4

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

500-Fulshear Utility Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Non-Departmental

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

CAPITAL OUTLAY                                  _____________  _____________  _____________  _______  _____________

TRANSFERS                                       _____________  _____________  _____________  _______  _____________

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Non-Departmental                          4,436,208.00     455,652.87   2,016,622.19    45.46   2,419,585.81

Page 51 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    5

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

500-Fulshear Utility Fund

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Transfers Out

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

TRANSFERS

500-5-900-5900-10 XFER OUT - Gen Fund 100        1,034,359.00           0.00     258,589.00    25.00     775,770.00

500-5-900-5900-30 XFER OUT - Fund #300              43,750.00           0.00           0.00     0.00      43,750.00

500-5-900-5900-51 XFER OUT - COF CapProj Fd 501    248,752.00           0.00           0.00     0.00     248,752.00

500-5-900-5900-55 XFER OUT - CCR C/P Fund 551            0.00     109,871.31     109,871.31     0.00 (   109,871.31)

   TOTAL TRANSFERS                               1,326,861.00     109,871.31     368,460.31    27.77     958,400.69

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Transfers Out                             1,326,861.00     109,871.31     368,460.31    27.77     958,400.69

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                               5,763,069.00     565,524.18   2,385,082.50    41.39   3,377,986.50

                                                =============  =============  =============  =======  =============

REVENUES OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES             (   382,317.00)    596,884.29     740,853.41          ( 1,123,170.41)

*** END OF REPORT ***

Page 52 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    1

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

551-CCR- Capital Projects

FINANCIAL SUMMARY                                                                              50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

 

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

                                                     BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUE SUMMARY

 

  INTEREST EARNED                                   20,000.00       4,848.60      43,313.69   216.57 (    23,313.69)

  TRANSFERS                                              0.00     155,570.41     155,570.41     0.00 (   155,570.41)

TOTAL REVENUES                                      20,000.00     160,419.01     198,884.10   994.42 (   178,884.10)

                                                =============  =============  =============  =======  =============

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

 

  Non-Departmental                               1,350,000.00       4,400.00       4,400.00     0.33   1,345,600.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                               1,350,000.00       4,400.00       4,400.00     0.33   1,345,600.00

                                                =============  =============  =============  =======  =============

REVENUES OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES             ( 1,330,000.00)    156,019.01     194,484.10          ( 1,524,484.10)

Page 53 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    2

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

551-CCR- Capital Projects

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

 

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

REVENUES                                             BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

SERVICE REVENUE                                 _____________  _____________  _____________  _______  _____________

INTEREST EARNED

551-46000 Interest Revenue                          20,000.00       4,848.60      43,313.69   216.57 (    23,313.69)

   TOTAL INTEREST EARNED                            20,000.00       4,848.60      43,313.69   216.57 (    23,313.69)

OTHER REVENUE                                   _____________  _____________  _____________  _______  _____________

TRANSFERS

551-49550 XFER IN-COF Utility Fund #500                  0.00     155,570.41     155,570.41     0.00 (   155,570.41)

   TOTAL TRANSFERS                                       0.00     155,570.41     155,570.41     0.00 (   155,570.41)

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUE                                       20,000.00     160,419.01     198,884.10   994.42 (   178,884.10)

                                                =============  =============  =============  =======  =============

Page 54 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    3

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

551-CCR- Capital Projects

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Non-Departmental

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

CAPITAL OUTLAY                                  _____________  _____________  _____________  _______  _____________

551-5-000-5800-00 Water Plant 1 Sys Reh/Upgrades   400,000.00       4,400.00       4,400.00     1.10     395,600.00

551-5-000-5800-01 WWTP Rehab                       650,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00     650,000.00

551-5-000-5800-02 WWTP Mech. Sys Comp Upgrade      300,000.00           0.00           0.00     0.00     300,000.00

   TOTAL                                         1,350,000.00       4,400.00       4,400.00     0.33   1,345,600.00

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Non-Departmental                          1,350,000.00       4,400.00       4,400.00     0.33   1,345,600.00

Page 55 of 241



 

 5-06-2020 03:36 PM                               CITY  OF  FULSHEAR                                     PAGE:    4

                                         REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)

                                                  AS OF: MARCH 31ST, 2020

551-CCR- Capital Projects

                                                                                               50.00% OF YEAR COMP.

Transfers Out

                                                    CURRENT       CURRENT      YEAR TO DATE     % OF       BUDGET

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES                            BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL      BUDGET     BALANCE

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

TRANSFERS                                       _____________  _____________  _____________  _______  _____________

                                      _____________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                               1,350,000.00       4,400.00       4,400.00     0.33   1,345,600.00

                                                =============  =============  =============  =======  =============

REVENUES OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES             ( 1,330,000.00)    156,019.01     194,484.10          ( 1,524,484.10)

*** END OF REPORT ***

Page 56 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VII.C.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/4/2020 DEPARTMENT: Finance

PREPARED BY: Wes Vela PRESENTER: Wes Vela
SUBJECT:   CONSENT & POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE 20-1 QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT

Expenditure Required:  N/A

Amount Budgeted:  N/A

Funding Account:  N/A

Additional Appropriation Required:  N/A

Funding Account:  N/A

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In accordance with the City of Fulshear's Investment Policy and the Texas Public Funds Investment Act the City's
investments shall be reported on a quarterly basis.  The attached report lists the investments located at the bank, local
governmental investment pools and Municipal and State Bonds. The Weighted Average Maturity is calculated to be 78 days
which is within the policy of 360 days.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the City Council accept the Quarterly Investment Report as presented.

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
20-1 Quarterly Investment Report 5/6/2020 Backup Material

Page 57 of 241



City of Fulshear

Quarterly Investment Report

20-1

Account Type
Purchase

Date
Maturity Yield

Beginning Book 

Value

01/01/20

Purchases/

Additions

Sales/

Reductions

Ending

3/31/2020

Increases

(Decreases)
Quarterly Interest  Market Value Yield

Current Month 

Interest

Earned

CASH ACCOUNTS

Wells Fargo General Operating 1 day 0.00% $49,685.00 8,827,617.77$               (8,877,302.77)$                  -$                                   (49,685.00)$                     -$                           -$                         0.00% -$                        

Wells Fargo StageCoach Sweep 2.01% $6,902,381.42 2,005,597.21$               (4,082,491.52)$                  4,825,487.11$                   (2,076,894.31)$                27,639.86$                4,825,487$              2.01% 7,380.55$               

CASH TOTALS 6,952,066.42$                10,833,214.98$             (12,959,794.29)$                4,825,487.11$                   (2,126,579.31)$                27,639.86$                4,825,487$              7,380.55$               

INVESTMENTS - CD'S

Dime Community  Bank CD 25432JAE3 5/18/2018 2/19/2019 2.40% -$                               -$                                   -$                                   -$                                 -$                           -$                        

Morgan Stanley 61690Ubk5060 11/15/2018 11/16/2020 3.10% 250,000.00$                   -$                               -$                                   250,000.00$                      -$                                 -$                           253,153$                 3.10% -$                        

Wells Fargo Bank - 949763XP6 2/21/2019 2/16/2021 2.65% 250,000.00$                   -$                               -$                                   250,000.00$                      -$                                 1,652.11$                  253,206$                 2,65% 526.37$                  

Goldman Sachs Bank USA 38149MLH4 12/13/2019 12/20/2021 1.75% 245,000.00$                   -$                               -$                                   245,000.00$                      -$                                 -$                           246,779$                 1,75% -$                        

Morgan Stanley 61760A4H9 12/19/2019 12/20/2021 1.75% 245,000.00$                   -$                               -$                                   245,000.00$                      -$                                 -$                           246,779$                 1.75% -$                        

Sallie Mae 7954505Y7 12/19/2019 12/20/2021 1.75% 245,000.00$                   -$                               -$                                   245,000.00$                      -$                                 -$                           246,779$                 1.75% -$                        

Wells Fargo Bank 949495AK1 12/30/2019 12/30/2021 1.75% 245,000.00$                   -$                               -$                                   245,000.00$                      -$                                 1,068.94$                  246,800$                 1.75% 704.80$                  

CD'S TOTALS 1,480,000.00$                -$                               -$                                   1,480,000.00$                   -$                                 2,721.05$                  1,493,497$              1,231.17$               

INVESTMENTS - BONDS

Fannie Mae 3135GOT60 12/13/2019 7/30/2020 1.50% 2,000,000.00$                -$                               -$                                   $2,000,000.00 -$                                 15,000.00$                2,008,684$              1.50% -$                        

United States Treasury Note 12/13/2019 1/31/2021 2.50% 2,000,000.00$                -$                               -$                                   2,000,000.00$                   -$                                 25,000.00$                2,039,688$              2.50% -$                        

BOND'S TOTALS 4,000,000.00$                -$                               -$                                   $4,000,000.00 -$                                 40,000.00$                4,048,372$              -$                        

TX CLASS INVESTMENT POOL

TXClass General Fund 1 day 0.83% $12,219,170.43 2,864,601.78$               -$                                   15,083,772.21$                 2,864,601.78$                 61,411.68$                15,083,772$            2.34% 18,865.74$             

TXClass - Peg Restricted 1 day 0.83% $556.76 -$                               -$                                   556.76$                             -$                                 2.44$                         557$                        2.34% 0.70$                      

TX CLASS TOTALS 12,219,727.19$              2,864,601.78$               -$                                   15,084,328.97$                 2,864,601.78$                 61,414.12$                15,084,329$            18,866.44$             

PORTFOLIO TOTALS 24,651,793.61$              13,697,816.76$             (12,959,794.29)$                25,389,816.08$                 738,022.47$                    131,775.03$              25,451,685$            1.90% 27,478.16$             

Portfolio as of March 1, 2020

Beginning Book Value 24,651,793.61$         

Beginning Market Value  $        24,675,339.13 

.

Unrealized Gain/(Loss) 23,545.52$                

Weighted Average Maturity (days) 74.69

Portflolio as of March 31, 2020

Ending Book Value $25,389,816.08

Ending Market Value $25,451,684.97

$61,868.89

Unrealized Gain/(Loss)

Weighted Average Maturity (days) 77.90

Investment Income for the period $131,775.03

Change in Unrealized Gain/(Loss) $38,323.37

Average Yield to Maturity for period 1.90%

The investment portfolio detailed in this report includes all investment transactions made during the above referenced period. The investment portfolio and all related transactions comply  

with the investment policy of the investment policy of the City of Fulshear, Texas, the Investment Acti of the State of Texas and with the Government code Chapter 2256.

Investment Officer:  _______________________________________ Date:  _____________________

$4,825,487 

$1,480,000.00

$4,000,000.00

$15,084,328.97

0% 200000000% 400000000% 600000000% 800000000% 1000000000% 1200000000% 1400000000% 1600000000%

CASH

CD INVESTMENTS

AGENCY & TREASURIES

TX CLASS INVESTMENT POOL

Distribution of Investment Funds By Type

5/6/2020

Page 58 of 241

wvela
Typewriter
5-5-2020



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VII.D.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/5/2020 DEPARTMENT: Building Services

PREPARED BY: ZACH GOODLANDER PRESENTER: ZACH GOODLANDER
SUBJECT:   CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE TAMARRON SECTION 15 FINAL PLAT

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The plats, as submitted for consideration, generally meet the requirements set forth in the City’s Subdivision Ordinance No.
04-913 and/or 013-1091, which is in alignment with Chapter 21, Texas Local Government Code.  Plat comments noted in
the City Engineer’s report are provided in support of the rules and regulations governing plats and subdivisions of land
within the City’s territorial limits and the extra territorial jurisdiction to promote safe, orderly, and healthful development of
the City. 

RECOMMENDATION

Per the City Engineer's review Staff recommends approval of the plat. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Tamarron Section 15 Plat App 5/5/2020 Backup Material
Tamarron Section 15 Plat 5/5/2020 Backup Material

Page 59 of 241



Page 60 of 241



VICINITY MAP

“ ”

LJA Engineering, Inc.

1904 W. Grand Parkway North Phone 713.953.5200
Suite 100 Fax 713.953.5026
Katy, Texas 77449 FRN-F-1386

LJA Surveying, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                  T.B.P.L.S. Firm No. 10194382

D.R. HORTON - TEXAS, LTD.
A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NN

TAMARRON SECTION 15

FORT BEND COUNTY
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 182

Page 61 of 241



” “ ”

LJA Engineering, Inc.

1904 W. Grand Parkway North Phone 713.953.5200
Suite 100 Fax 713.953.5026
Katy, Texas 77449 FRN-F-1386

LJA Surveying, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                  T.B.P.L.S. Firm No. 10194382

VICINITY MAP

N

D.R. HORTON - TEXAS, LTD.
A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

TAMARRON SECTION 15

NN

FORT BEND COUNTY
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 182

Page 62 of 241



LJA Engineering, Inc.

1904 W. Grand Parkway North Phone 713.953.5200
Suite 100 Fax 713.953.5026
Katy, Texas 77449 FRN-F-1386

LJA Surveying, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                  T.B.P.L.S. Firm No. 10194382

VICINITY MAP

N

D.R. HORTON - TEXAS, LTD.
A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

TAMARRON SECTION 15

NN

FORT BEND COUNTY
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 182

Page 63 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VII.E.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/5/2020 DEPARTMENT: Building Services

PREPARED BY: ZACH GOODLANDER PRESENTER: ZACH GOODLANDER
SUBJECT:   CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE TAMARRON SECTION 21 FINAL PLAT

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The plats, as submitted for consideration, generally meet the requirements set forth in the City’s Subdivision Ordinance No.
04-913 and/or 013-1091, which is in alignment with Chapter 21, Texas Local Government Code.  Plat comments noted in
the City Engineer’s report are provided in support of the rules and regulations governing plats and subdivisions of land
within the City’s territorial limits and the extra territorial jurisdiction to promote safe, orderly, and healthful development of
the City. 

RECOMMENDATION

Per the City Engineer's review Staff recommends approval of the plat. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Tamarron Section 21 Plat App 5/5/2020 Backup Material
Tamarron Section 21 Plat 5/5/2020 Backup Material

Page 64 of 241



Page 65 of 241



VICINITY MAP

NN

LJA Engineering, Inc.

1904 W. Grand Parkway North Phone 713.953.5200
Suite 100 Fax 713.953.5026
Katy, Texas 77449 FRN-F-1386

LJA Surveying, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                  T.B.P.L.S. Firm No. 10194382

D.R. HORTON - TEXAS, LTD.
A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

TAMARRON SECTION 21

“ ”

“ ”

FORT BEND COUNTY
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 182

Page 66 of 241



VICINITY MAP

NN

LJA Engineering, Inc.

1904 W. Grand Parkway North Phone 713.953.5200
Suite 100 Fax 713.953.5026
Katy, Texas 77449 FRN-F-1386

LJA Surveying, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                  T.B.P.L.S. Firm No. 10194382

N

D.R. HORTON - TEXAS, LTD.
A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

FORT BEND COUNTY
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 182

TAMARRON SECTION 21

Page 67 of 241



N

LJA Engineering, Inc.

1904 W. Grand Parkway North Phone 713.953.5200
Suite 100 Fax 713.953.5026
Katy, Texas 77449 FRN-F-1386

LJA Surveying, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                  T.B.P.L.S. Firm No. 10194382

VICINITY MAP

NN

D.R. HORTON - TEXAS, LTD.
A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

FORT BEND COUNTY
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 182

TAMARRON SECTION 21

Page 68 of 241



N

LJA Engineering, Inc.

1904 W. Grand Parkway North Phone 713.953.5200
Suite 100 Fax 713.953.5026
Katy, Texas 77449 FRN-F-1386

LJA Surveying, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                  T.B.P.L.S. Firm No. 10194382

VICINITY MAP

NN

D.R. HORTON - TEXAS, LTD.
A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

FORT BEND COUNTY
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 182

TAMARRON SECTION 21

Page 69 of 241



N

LJA Engineering, Inc.

1904 W. Grand Parkway North Phone 713.953.5200
Suite 100 Fax 713.953.5026
Katy, Texas 77449 FRN-F-1386

LJA Surveying, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                  T.B.P.L.S. Firm No. 10194382

”

“ ”

VICINITY MAP

NN

D.R. HORTON - TEXAS, LTD.
A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

FORT BEND COUNTY
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 182

TAMARRON SECTION 21

Page 70 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VII.F.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/5/2020 DEPARTMENT: Building Services

PREPARED BY: ZACH GOODLANDER PRESENTER: ZACH GOODLANDER
SUBJECT:   CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE TAMARRON SECTION 27 FINAL PLAT

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The plats, as submitted for consideration, generally meet the requirements set forth in the City’s Subdivision Ordinance No.
04-913 and/or 013-1091, which is in alignment with Chapter 21, Texas Local Government Code.  Plat comments noted in
the City Engineer’s report are provided in support of the rules and regulations governing plats and subdivisions of land
within the City’s territorial limits and the extra territorial jurisdiction to promote safe, orderly, and healthful development of
the City. 

RECOMMENDATION

Per the City Engineer's review Staff recommends approval of the plat. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Tamarron Section 27 Plat App 5/5/2020 Backup Material
Tamarron Section 27 Plat 5/5/2020 Backup Material

Page 71 of 241



Page 72 of 241



VICINITY MAP

NN

TAMARRON  SECTION 27

“ ”

“

”

”

“ ”

”

”

”

”

”

D.R. HORTON-TEXAS, LTD.
A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

LJA Engineering, Inc.

1904 W. Grand Parkway North Phone 713.953.5200
Suite 100 Fax 713.953.5026
Katy, Texas 77449 FRN-F-1386

LJA Surveying, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                  T.B.P.L.S. Firm No. 10194382

Page 73 of 241



VICINITY MAP

LJA Engineering, Inc.

1904 W. Grand Parkway North Phone 713.953.5200
Suite 100 Fax 713.953.5026
Katy, Texas 77449 FRN-F-1386

LJA Surveying, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                  T.B.P.L.S. Firm No. 10194382

NN

TAMARRON  SECTION 27

D.R. HORTON-TEXAS, LTD.
A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

N

Page 74 of 241



VICINITY MAP

LJA Engineering, Inc.

1904 W. Grand Parkway North Phone 713.953.5200
Suite 100 Fax 713.953.5026
Katy, Texas 77449 FRN-F-1386

LJA Surveying, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                  T.B.P.L.S. Firm No. 10194382

NN

TAMARRON  SECTION 27

D.R. HORTON-TEXAS, LTD.
A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

N

Page 75 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VII.G.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/5/2020 DEPARTMENT: Building Services

PREPARED BY: ZACH GOODLANDER PRESENTER: ZACH GOODLANDER
SUBJECT:   CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE POLO RANCH SECTION 6 REPLAT NO.1
PRELIMINARY PLAT

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The plats, as submitted for consideration, generally meet the requirements set forth in the City’s Subdivision Ordinance No.
04-913 and/or 013-1091, which is in alignment with Chapter 21, Texas Local Government Code.  Plat comments noted in
the City Engineer’s report are provided in support of the rules and regulations governing plats and subdivisions of land
within the City’s territorial limits and the extra territorial jurisdiction to promote safe, orderly, and healthful development of
the City. 

RECOMMENDATION

Per the City Engineer's review Staff recommends approval of the plat. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Polo Ranch Sec 6 Replat 1 - App 5/5/2020 Backup Material
Polo Ranch Sec 6 Replat 1 - Plat 5/5/2020 Backup Material

Page 76 of 241



Page 77 of 241



VICINITY MAP

NN

“

“

“

“

“

“ ”

“ ”

“

“

“ ”

”

”

SECTION 6
POLO RANCH

CENTURY LAND HOLDINGS OF TEXAS, LLC
A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

D/B/A GRAND VIEW BUILDERS

REPLAT  NO. 1

LJA Engineering, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 600                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                                            FRN - F-1386

LJA Surveying, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                  T.B.P.L.S. Firm No. 10194382

PRELIMINARY PLAT OF

Page 78 of 241



VICINITY MAP

N
“ ”

NN

SECTION 6
POLO RANCH

CENTURY LAND HOLDINGS OF TEXAS, LLC
A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

D/B/A GRAND VIEW BUILDERS

REPLAT  NO. 1

LJA Engineering, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 600                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                                            FRN - F-1386

LJA Surveying, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                  T.B.P.L.S. Firm No. 10194382

PRELIMINARY PLAT OF

Page 79 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VII.H.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/6/2020 DEPARTMENT: Building Services

PREPARED BY: ZACH GOODLANDER PRESENTER: ZACH GOODLANDER
SUBJECT:   CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE FLETCHER MORGAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
PREIMINARY PLAT

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

RECOMMENDATION

Per the City Engineer's review Staff recommends approval of the plat. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Fletcher Morgan School Preliminary Plat App 5/6/2020 Backup Material
Fletcher Morgan Elementary School Preliminary Plat 5/6/2020 Backup Material

Page 80 of 241



Page 81 of 241



VICINITY MAP

LJA Engineering, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 600                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                                            FRN - F-1386

LJA Surveying, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                  T.B.P.L.S. Firm No. 10194382

NN

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED
INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

FLETCHER MORGAN ELEMENTARY
SCHOOL

Page 82 of 241



N

VICINITY MAP

NN

LJA Engineering, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 600                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                                            FRN - F-1386

LJA Surveying, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                  T.B.P.L.S. Firm No. 10194382

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED
INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

FLETCHER MORGAN ELEMENTARY
SCHOOL

Page 83 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VII.I.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/5/2020 DEPARTMENT: Public Works

PREPARED BY: Kayla Villagomez PRESENTER: Sharon Valiante
SUBJECT:   CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF STREET DEDICATION, UTILITY CONVEYANCE AND
SECURITY AGREEMENT FOR CREEK COVE AT CROSS CREEK RANCH , SECTION 11, FROM MUD 173

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As each Phase of development are acquired and constructed, the MUD Districts prepare documents that are submitted to the
City with a request for consideration for transfer of ownership, which is considered and approved by City Council.  The
Districts, in accordance with the Development Agreement and Utility Agreements in place, have complied with Section 2.10 –
As construction of each Phase is completed, the City shall inspect and if the City finds that the Phase has been completed in
accordance with the final plans and specifications approved by the City, or any modifications approved by the City, the City
will accept the Phase for ownership, operation and maintenance.   The District, Fulshear MUD No. 173, is submitting for
consideration Utilities and Streets to serve/for Creek Cove at Cross Creek Ranch, Section 11.
The value of the infrastructure is as follows:                  

1. Paving – Total Costs: $479,863.65
2. Storm Sewer System – Total Costs: $294,068.75
3. Sanitary Sewer System – Total Costs: $74,867.20
4. Water System – Total Costs: $117,801.85

The City Engineer has reviewed the project for completion and compliance. The City Engineer has no objections to the
acceptance and conveyance
as presented. The infrastructure will have a two-year maintenance period upon acceptance by City Council.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends council accept the infrastructure constructed and completed for the District and authorize the Mayor to
execute the following:
1. Street Acceptance for Creek Cove at Cross Creek Ranch, Section 11, and
2.Utility Conveyance and Security Agreement for Fulbrook on Creek Cove at Cross Creek Ranch, Section 11, MUD No.
173.

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type

Page 84 of 241



Street Acceptance- Creek Cove at Cross Creek Ranch- Section
11

5/5/2020 Backup Material

Utility Conveyance and Security Agreement- Creek Cove at Cross
Creek Ranch- Section 11 5/5/2020 Backup Material

Page 85 of 241



Page 86 of 241



Page 87 of 241



Page 88 of 241



Page 89 of 241



Page 90 of 241



Page 91 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VII.J.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/5/2020 DEPARTMENT: Public Works

PREPARED BY: Kayla Villagomez PRESENTER: Sharon Valiante
SUBJECT:   CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF STREET DEDICATION, UTILITY CONVEYANCE AND
SECURITY AGREEMENT FOR CREEK TRACE AT CROSS CREEK RANCH, SECTION 1 FROM MUD 170

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As each Phase of development are acquired and constructed, the MUD Districts prepare documents that are submitted to the
City with a request for consideration for transfer of ownership, which is considered and approved by City Council.  The
Districts, in accordance with the Development Agreement and Utility Agreements in place, have complied with Section 2.10 –
As construction of each Phase is completed, the City shall inspect and if the City finds that the Phase has been completed in
accordance with the final plans and specifications approved by the City, or any modifications approved by the City, the City
will accept the Phase for ownership, operation and maintenance.   The District, Fulshear MUD No. , is submitting for
consideration Utilities and Streets to serve/for Creek Trace at Cross Creek Ranch Section 1, MUD .
  
The value of the infrastructure is as follows:

1. Paving – Total Costs: $630,770.66
2. Storm Sewer System – Total Costs: $450,230.85
3. Sanitary Sewer System – Total Costs: $217,840.45
4. Water System – Total Costs: $117,267.00

 
The City Engineer has reviewed the project for completion and compliance. The City Engineer has no objections to the
acceptance and conveyance
as presented. The infrastructure will have a two-year maintenance period upon acceptance by City Council.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends council accept the infrastructure constructed and completed for the District and authorize the Mayor to
execute the following:
1. Street Acceptance for Creek Trace at Cross Creek Ranch- Section 1, and
2.Utility Conveyance and Security Agreement for Creek Trace at Cross Creek Ranch- Section 1

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type

Page 92 of 241



Utility Conveyance and Security Agreement- Creek Trace at CCR-
Section 1

5/5/2020 Backup Material

Street Acceptance Creek Trace at CCR- Sec 1 5/5/2020 Backup Material

Page 93 of 241



Page 94 of 241



Page 95 of 241



Page 96 of 241



Page 97 of 241



Page 98 of 241



Page 99 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VII.K.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/5/2020 DEPARTMENT: Public Works

PREPARED BY: Kayla Villagomez PRESENTER: Sharon Valiante
SUBJECT:   CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF STREET DEDICATION, UTILITY CONVEYANCE AND
SECURITY AGREEMENT FOR THE BROOKS AT CROSS CREEK RANCH, SECTION 3, MUD 170

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As each Phase of development are acquired and constructed, the MUD Districts prepare documents that are submitted to the
City with a request for consideration for transfer of ownership, which is considered and approved by City Council.  The
Districts, in accordance with the Development Agreement and Utility Agreements in place, have complied with Section 2.10 –
As construction of each Phase is completed, the City shall inspect and if the City finds that the Phase has been completed in
accordance with the final plans and specifications approved by the City, or any modifications approved by the City, the City
will accept the Phase for ownership, operation and maintenance.   The District, Fulshear MUD No. 1, is submitting for
consideration Utilities and Streets to serve/for The Brooks at Cross Creek Ranch, Section 3, MUD 170
The value of the infrastructure is as follows:
 

1. Paving – Total Costs: $907,854.67
2. Storm Sewer System – Total Costs: $651,422.80
3. Sanitary Sewer System – Total Costs: $278,209.88
4. Water System – Total Costs: $224,013.37

 
The City Engineer has reviewed the project for completion and compliance. The City Engineer has no objections to the
acceptance and conveyance
as presented. The infrastructure will have a two-year maintenance period upon acceptance by City Council.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends council accept the infrastructure constructed and completed for the District and authorize the Mayor to
execute the following:
1. Street Acceptance for The Brooks at Cross Creek Ranch, Section 3, and
2. Utility Conveyance and Security Agreement for The Brooks at Cross Creek Ranch, Section 3

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type

Page 100 of 241



Utility Conveyance and Street Acceptance for The Brooks at
CCR- Sec 3, MUD 170

5/5/2020 Backup Material

Street Acceptance The Brooks at CCR- Sec 3, MUD 170 5/5/2020 Backup Material

Page 101 of 241



Page 102 of 241



Page 103 of 241



Page 104 of 241



Page 105 of 241



Page 106 of 241



Page 107 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VII.L.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/5/2020 DEPARTMENT: Public Works

PREPARED BY: Kayla Villagomez PRESENTER: Sharon Valiante
SUBJECT:   CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF STREET DEDICATION, UTILITY CONVEYANCE AND
SECURITY AGREEMENT FOR FULSHEAR BEND DRIVE EXTENSION NO. 3 FROM MUD 169

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As each Phase of development are acquired and constructed, the MUD Districts prepare documents that are submitted to the
City with a request for consideration for transfer of ownership, which is considered and approved by City Council.  The
Districts, in accordance with the Development Agreement and Utility Agreements in place, have complied with Section 2.10 –
As construction of each Phase is completed, the City shall inspect and if the City finds that the Phase has been completed in
accordance with the final plans and specifications approved by the City, or any modifications approved by the City, the City
will accept the Phase for ownership, operation and maintenance.   The District, Fulshear MUD No. 169, is submitting for
consideration Utilities and Streets to serve/for Fulshear Bend Drive Extension No. 3, MUD 169.
The value of the infrastructure is as follows:
 

1. Paving – Total Costs: $1,947,459.16
2. Storm Sewer System – Total Costs: $525,029.08
3. Non-Potable Water System – Total Costs: $36,756.50
4. Water System – Total Costs: $255,790.52

 
The City Engineer has reviewed the project for completion and compliance. The City Engineer has no objections to the
acceptance and conveyance
as presented. The infrastructure will have a two-year maintenance period upon acceptance by City Council.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends council accept the infrastructure constructed and completed for the District and authorize the Mayor to
execute the following:
1.  Street Acceptance for Fulshear Bend Drive Extension No. 3, MUD 169 and
2. Utility Conveyance and Security Agreement for Fulshear Bend Drive Extension No. 3, MUD 169. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type

Page 108 of 241



Street Conveyance Fulshear Bend Drive Extension No. 3 - MUD
169

5/5/2020 Exhibit

Utility Conveyance & Security Agreement FBD 3 5/12/2020 Exhibit

Page 109 of 241



Page 110 of 241



Page 111 of 241



Page 112 of 241



Page 113 of 241



Page 114 of 241



Page 115 of 241



 

 

 

National Public Works Week 2019 Proclamation 

May 17-23,2020 

“The Rhythm of Public Works” 

 
Whereas, public works services provided in our community are an integral part of our citizens’ everyday lives; and 

 

Whereas, the support of an understanding and informed citizenry is vital to the efficient operation of public works 

systems and programs such as water, sewers, streets and highways, public buildings and solid waste collection; 

and  

 

Whereas, the health, safety and comfort of this community greatly depends on these facilities and services; and 

 

Whereas, the quality and effectiveness of these facilities as well as their planning, design and construction is 

dependent upon the efforts and skills of public works officials; and 

 

Whereas, the efficiency of the qualified and dedicated personnel who staff public works departments is materially 

influenced by the people’s attitude and understanding of the importance of the work they perform,  

 

Now, therefore, I, Aaron Groff, Mayor do hereby proclaim the week of May 17-23 as  

 

   NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK 

 

In the City of Fulshear, and I call upon all citizens and civic organizations to acquaint themselves with the issues 

that are involved in providing our public works and to recognize the contributions which public works officials 

make every day to our health, safety, comfort and quality of life. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the State (to be affixed), 

 

DONE at the City of Fulshear, Texas this 19t day of May 2020. 
          

 

 

    ______________________________________________________  

      

 Aaron Groff, Mayor  

 

 

Kimberly Kopecky, City, Secretary 
Page 116 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VIII.C.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/5/2020 DEPARTMENT: Building Services

PREPARED BY: ZACH GOODLANDER PRESENTER: ZACH GOODLANDER
SUBJECT:   CONSIDERATION AND ACTION TO APPROVE A ZONING CHANGE FROM (R-1)
RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE TO DOWNTOWN DISTRICT FOR A PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7510 WALLIS
STREET

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This, and the other proposed R-1 to Downtown District tract are being considered for the same overall development. The
owners of the two tracts are separately Grandes Ricos LLC (38.5 acres) and the McCann Family (86.19 acres). 
 
There are no permit or plats currently submitted for either property. However, conceptual plans for the property have been
submitted to demonstrate development potential and quality. Also, while there is no floodplain currently on the property the
applicant will have their drainage plans reviewed by the Fort Bend County Drainage District. A plan showing how the property
currently drains has been provided in this packet as well. 
 
The conceptual plan demonstrates the various uses proposed. These include land that may be dedicated for a water tower site,
civic use, parks, preservation of trees along the drainage channel, farm use, commercial/retail use, preservation of the cemetery
onsite and "Sweetwater". This last potentiality would be a wedding and event venue built to look in the form of an historic old
town. 

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the zoning change. It's found to be in the same spirit as the Comprehensive Plan and Livable
Centers Study, as a walkable, multi-use district, and will function symbiotically with the Downtown core. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the change at their regularly scheduled May meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Grandes Ricos Tract Rezoning Documents for City Council 5/5/2020 Backup Material

Page 117 of 241



1  

 
 
 

 

APPLICATION TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE/SITE PLAN 
(Must be a complete application for acceptance) 
 
 
 

PROPERTY OWNER:    
Mailing Address City  State  _Zip    

Telephone (  ) Email    
 

APPLICANT / AGENT:    
Mailing Address  City   State  Zip  

Telephone (  )  Cell (     )  Email       
 

OTHER CONTACT Name Phone    
 

PURPOSE OF PROPOSAL: 
Amend the ZONING MAP to change the zoning district boundaries on the following parcel(s): 

Lot / Tract No. Lot / Tract No. Lot / Tract No. Lot / Tract No. 

From From From From   

To To To   To   
 

Location address or Legal lot and block range:    
 

Present use of this property is:    
 

Describe proposed new use and purpose for zoning change: 
 

 

 

 

 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
Total net land area (acres /or square feet) 

Sketch Drawing of Area to be Re-Zoned, including Location Map (8 ½” x 11”) 
 

Certified Legal Description: 
 

NOT PLATTED: A Registered Texas Surveyor’s certified metes and bounds legal description is required 

with case exhibit drawings of the entire area to be rezoned. The boundary description shall be furnished 

on 8 1/2” x 11” paper, bearing the surveyor’s name, seal and date. If the area to be rezoned is entirely 
encompassed by a recorded deed, a copy of the deed description is acceptable. An Electronic copy of 
survey may be provided by CD, email or other method within 2 days of application. Send to 

bdsreq@fulsheartexas.gov.  

 

PLATTED: If it is within a recorded subdivision, provide a copy of the plat with the subdivision name and 

recording information. Any partial or non-surveyed parcel or tract, extracted from a recorded deed, will 

require a certified legal description as noted above. 

 

Subdivision Name                                                                                                                                     

Block  _ Lot(s)  ; Block  Lot(s)  ; Block  Lots(s)    

Page 118 of 241

mailto:bdsreq@fulsheartexas.gov
Jonathan Davis

Jonathan Davis
The purpose of the proposed zoning change would be to allow the development of a new mixed-use community including such new uses such as commercial, retail,  hotel, residential, park and the preservation of trees along the existing creek.  

Jonathan Davis
38.512 acres

Jonathan Davis
see attached

Jonathan Davis
Rural Residential                  

Jonathan Davis
Downtown District

Jonathan Davis
Jonathan Davis                               310-779-8544  

Jonathan Davis
Agricultural  

Jonathan Davis
Jeffrey Duke 

Jonathan Davis
       22310 Grand Corner Drive         Katy              TX      77494
 979    578.3803                                jduke@dbmmlaw.com

Jonathan Davis
Grandes Ricos LLC 

Jonathan Davis
       22310 Grand Corner Drive         Katy              TX      77494
                                979) 578.3803          jduke@dbmmlaw.com

Jonathan Davis
7510 Wallis St, Fulshear, TX 77441 

Jonathan Davis
NA



2  

Posting Requirements: 
Notice of required Public Hearings shall be provided by the applicant by way of a sign posted on the land 

that is the subject of the application.  One sign shall be posted for each 200 feet of frontage along a public 

street, with a maximum of 2 signs required per frontage.  Signs shall be located so that the lettering is 

visible from the street. Where the land does not have frontage on a public street, signs shall be posted on 

the nearest public street with an attached notation indicating the location of the land subject to the 

application.  The sign shall state “The property has requested a Zoning Change, for information regarding 

this request contact the City of Fulshear at 30603 FM 1093, Fulshear, Texas 77441, 281-346-1796.  Two 

Public Hearings will be held for this request.”  Include time(s), date(s) and location(s) of the Public Hearing. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 
 

I certify that the above information is correct and complete to the best of my knowledge and ability and 
that I am now, or will be, fully prepared to present the above proposal before the Zoning Commission and 
City Council public hearings. I further certify that I have read and understand the information provided, 
concerning the policies and procedures regarding consideration of my zoning request. 
I understand that all recommendations of the Zoning Commission will be forwarded to the City Council for 
final determination, normally scheduled for the third Tuesday of the month. I further understand that any 
actions of the Zoning Commission are considered recommendations to the City Council and that I may be 
heard by the City Council at the prescribed Council hearing date where a final decision will be made. 
I further understand that if I am not present nor duly represented at the Commission’s public hearing, the 
Zoning Commission may dismiss my request, which constitutes a recommendation that the request be 
denied. I further understand that if I am not present, or duly represented, at the City Council public hearing, 
the City Council may deny my request. 
I reserve the right to withdraw this proposal at any time, upon written request filed with the City Secretary. 
Such withdrawal shall immediately stop all proceedings thereon; provided, however, case withdrawal, 
shall constitute a denial by the Commission and City Council. I understand my filing fee is not refundable 
upon withdrawal of my case application after public notice, nor following denial by the Commission or 
Council of my case. I / We respectfully request approval and adoption of the proposed zoning / land use of 
property, within the City of Fulshear, as identified in this application. 

 
Signature of Owner/ Agent*  Date  

(circle one) 

Printed name Phone. No.    

*Note: An Agent must furnish a signed Letter of Authorization from the owner when submitting this application. 

Page 119 of 241



Jonathan Davis
Jeffrey Duke

Jonathan Davis
041420

Jonathan Davis
979.578.3808



HENRY STEINKAMP, INC.
Land Boundary & Topographic Surveying

909 Fifth Street
Rosenberg, Texas 77471
Telephone/F ax 281 .342.2241
email: schodek@yahoo.com

Franklin R. Schodek James L. $yptak, Sr.
Registered Professional Land Surveyor Registered Profgssional Land Surveyor

April 13,2020

A Field Note Description of 38.512 Acres of Land, being the remainder of the original
calI44.5l2 Acre Tract (FBC 2015091411), all being in the Churchill Fulshear League, Abstract
No. 29, Fort Bend Coun.ty. Texas.

Beginning at a 7 /8inch irori f ipe found in the Southwest right-of-way line of Wallis
Street ( In 201 5) marking the Northeast colirer of said call 44512 Acre Tract of Land and the
Northwest corner of the original Leonard H. Clay,Sr. call 1.0 Acre Tract (FBC 20ILM64A\;
said point also marking the Northeast comer of and place of beginning for this 38.512 Acre
Tract;

THENCE, Leaving said Wallis Street, South 05deg.40'46" West, 415.09 feet to a point marking
the Southeast corner ofthis tract;

THENCE, West, 88I.26 feet to an angle point; "
THENCE, North 80deg.36'16" Weqt, II84.64feet to a point marking thg Southwest corner of
this tract; said point also marks the Southwest Qorner of said original calI44.512 Acre Tract;

THENCE, North 06deg.2l'39" &ast,802.84 feet f an angle point; t,. -..

THENCE, North 07deg.03' 17" East, 114.82 feet to a 112 inchiron pipe found marking the
Northwest corner of this tract;

THENCE, North 88deg.32'18" East, 405.88 feet along the South line of the Corporron
Investments, Inc. call 14.456 Acre Tract (FBC 2005099822) to a 5/8 inch iron pipe for corner;

THENCE, North l8deg.42'59" East,5.I7 feet to the Southwest comer of the Fulshear Cemetery
Association 6.176 Acre Tract (Volume 922,Page 509; Deed Reeords);

THENCE, North 86deg.49'13" East, 206.4I feet to the Northwest corner of the Fulshear
Cemetery Association 2.289 Acre Tract (Volume 896, Page 761;DeedRecords);

THENCE, South 01deg.05'38" Westo 338.93 feet to the Southwest corner of said 2.289 Ac're
Tract;

FT{ 3 8. 5I2 Acres.wps Page 120 of 241



a

THENCE, South 83deg.11'30" East,245.I4 feet to a point on the centerline of Union Chapel
Branch;

THENCE, Upstream, along the centerline of said Union Chapel Branch with the following
courses and distances:

North 1 I deg.00' 2I"'West, 2L .7 7 feet to apoint;
North 47 deg.49'01" 'West, 24.90 feet to a point;
North 09deg .56'59" East, 12.83 feet to a point;
North 57deg.02'28" East,26.52 feet ta apofnt;
South 55deg .A2' East,29.02 feet to a point;
North 27 deg,34' East , 17 .tr6 feet to apoint;
North 67deg.03'19" East, 14.A3 feet to a point;
South 54deg55'P2" East, 7 .19 feet to a point;
h{orth 52de9.30'20" East, 1 1:.37 feet to a point;
North 3 l deg .29'49" West, 73.94 feet to a point;
I.{orth 50deg .26'27" West. 3'5.37 feit to a point;
Ir{orth 02deg.39'45" East ,2ft.67 feet to a point;
North 7 Ldeg.zg'41" East, I1 .gI feet to a point;
South 7 0deg.46'3 1 " East , 76.59 feet to ? point;
North 22deg.l4'5 1" East , 37 .49 feet Io apoint;
North 32de9.26'37" East, 15.1 9 feet to a point;
North 00deg.03'07" East, 35.71 feet Io a point;
North 4l deg .47 '3 8" East, 14.A3 feet to a point;
North 17 deg.57'A6" West, 36.26 feet to a point;
i{orth 40deg.13'09" West, 18.75 feet to a point;
].{orth 36de9.52'43" 'West, ?2.64 feet to a point;
North 5 8deg .36' 59': West, 10.27 feet ta. a point;
Irlorth 65deg. 15'32" West, 10.59 feet to a point;
South 82de9.24'53" West, I2.L8 feet to a point;
North 40deg .48'24" West, 16.06 feet to a froint;
North 04de9.23'46" West, 12.07 feet to a point;
Irlorth 28deg.3l'47" West, 13.16 fciet to a point;
North 61deg .26'15" 'West, 43.3I feet to a point;
North 15deg.09'50" East, 28.70 feet to a point;
North 02deg,45'45" East, 13,36 feet ta a point;
North 28de9.53'34" East, 26.76 feet to a point;
North 45deg.52'3A" East, 47 .40 feet to a point;
North l4deg.53'A2" West, 13.23 feet to a point;
North 50deg.2l'04" West, 1,3.69 feet ta apoint;
North 32deg.I2'47" East,25.69 feet to a point;
North 72de9.33'31" East, 54.13 feet to a point;
South 55deg.16'26" East, 94.96 feet to a point;
South 85deg.29'04" West, 64.57 feet to a point;
South 19deg .43'20" West, 43.96 feet to a point;
South 10deg.48'A9" West, 14.04 feet to a point;

FNI 38.5I2 Acres.wps

-'

Page 121 of 241



South 38deg.21'12" East,56.12 feet to a point;
North 60deg.56'32" East,2.54 feetto a point for corner; said point also marking the West
comer of the Thrive Church Call 6.0 Acre Tract of Land (FBC 2017041539);

THENCE, South 35deg.18'48" East, 681.59 feet to a point for re-entrant cornr of this tract and
the South corner of said Thrive Church Call 6.0 Acre Tract;

THENCE, North 54deg.4l'12" East,440.1 feet to a point in the Southwdst right-of-way line of
said Wallis Street for comer; said point also marks the East comer of said 6.0 Acre Tract;

THENCE, South 35deg.l8'48" East, along said Southw*rt right-of-way line of said Wallis
Street, 490.13 feet to the place of begirining and containing 38.512 Acres of Land.

Signed:"
Re bnal Land SurveyorNo. 1535

, ,. :

NIOTE: Not a field survey this d"ate, prgp;ared from a,...,. 2015 Field Survey by our Firm.

FN 38.512 Acres.wps 
1

I -_

-

Page 122 of 241



Page 123 of 241



4 

ZONING CHANGE APPLICATION CHECKLIST 

Applicant must complete and submit this checklist when filing an application. 

ZONING CHANGE APPLICATION DATA: 

 Applicant Name, Address, City, State, Zip Code, Area Code, Telephone Number 

 Confirmed Ownership (Sources: Appraisal district records; recently recorded deed, etc.) 

 Nature of request complete and understood 

Applicable Property Description: 

 Address: Number & Street 

 Subdivision: Name  Block(s)  Lot(s) -Provide copy of plat- 

 Survey: Name  Abstract No.  Tract(s) 

 Certified Metes & Bounds Legal Description 

 If there is more than one rezoning category, a legal description / metes and bounds must describe 
each requested zoning district. 

 Total land area to be rezoned 

 Development information completed 

 Existing land use-identified 

 Proposed new land use – identified 

 Reason supporting proposed change - completed 

 Signatures of owner and /or applicant 

 Signed Letter of Authorization -if applicable 

 Zoning Change Fee made out to the City of Fulshear $600.00 plus $15.00 per acre 

Page 124 of 241

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
NA

Jonathan Davis
NA

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
Payment will be called in by Credit Card

Jonathan Davis
See attached

Jonathan Davis
See attached



 

 

 
  

  

 

 
 

  

  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

for the most current information regarding the status of these hearings.
hearings may be cancelled. Please refer to the City’s website,http://www.fulsheartexas.gov/, 
one or more of the foregoing public hearings being held. Therefore, one or more of such public 
Texas Governor in response to COVID-19, which provisions may become effective again prior to 
of this notice, certain provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act have been suspended by the 
call Zach Goodlander, City of Fulshear, 281-346-8852. Potential cancellation disclaimer: At the time 
for all interested parties prior to said hearing. If you have any questions regarding this request please 
77441 on Monday through Thursdays from 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. and Fridays from 7:00 a.m. to 3 p.m. 
City of Fulshear Development Services Department located at 29255 FM 1093 Suite #12C Fulshear, Texas 
required by the applicant or the Board/Council. A copy of said application and documents is on file atthe 
time of the hearing, such other approvals, interpretations, and/or waivers as may be requested or 
civic, and other uses.The applicant reserves the right to supplement this application and/or seek at the 
Downtown District, for the purposes of a mixed-use development with commercial, residential, park, 
to the Zoning Ordinance, Section 1-279, to take the current zoning from Residential Acreage to 
7510 Wallis St. Fulshear, Texas 77441. The applicant, Jeffrey Duke, is seeking a Zoning Change, pursuant 
Churchill Fulshear League, Abstract No. 29, Fort Bend County, Texas, and is more specifically located at 
being 38.512 acres of land, the remainder of the Grandes Ricos, LLC 44.512 acre tract, all being in the 
opportunity to be heard. The location of the premises in question is in the Residential Acreage District, 
(https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/246038173). Each hearing will allow all interested persons an 
by the City Council on May 19, 2020 at 7:00 p.m., the hearing will be held at
Irene Stern Community Center, 6920 Katy-Fulshear Rd., Fulshear, Texas. The fourth hearing will be held 
Fulshear, Texas. A third public hearing will be held by City Council on May 19, 2020 at 5:30 p.m., at the 
and Zoning Commission on May 1, 2020 at 9 am., the hearing will be held at City Hall, 30603 FM 1093 
(https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/631315341). A second public hearing will be by the Planning 
Planning and Zoning Commission on May 1, 2020 at 8:30 a.m., the hearing will be held at
Government Code, the City will hold four Public Hearings; the first Public Hearing will be held by the 
In compliance with the City of Fulshear Zoning Ordinance and Chapter 211 of the Local 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

Page 125 of 241

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/631315341
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/246038173
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.fulsheartexas.gov%2F&data=02%7C01%7C%7C0dc8e85cda4f40d0a7fe08d7e191c903%7Cf0f442395fe545f093ae6a1aa0e9d228%7C1%7C0%7C637225888640667667&sdata=hG5Z2cmEPzsrvE8bob36u6EDPXQZhiJ6xDOWB3uF5yM%3D&reserved=0


Mail Notices to Property Owner’s w/in 200’ of Grandes Ricos 

 
 

Texana Center 

4910 Airport Ave. Bldg. D 

Rosenberg, TX 77471 

 

Fulshear Cemetery Association 

Carolyn H. Smith 

PO Box 279 

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

Thrive Church  

29358 McKinnon Rd.  

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

Century Land Holdings of Texas LLC 

4700 W. Sam Houston Pkwy. N. Suite 130 

Houston, TX 77041 

 

Dream Rainbow LLC 

PO Box 2954  

Sugar Land, TX 77487 

 

Fort Bend County ESD #4 

PO Box 494 

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

Pittman Lulu Adams Estate 

c/o Ethel Adams 

PO Box 3 

Fulshear, Texas 77441 

 

Mindnhand Investments LLC 

6140 Highway 6, #136 

Missouri City, TX 77459 

 

Kenneth Taylor etal 

32323 Hunt Farm Rd.  

Brookshire, TX 77423 

 

Eva Kristine Arismendez 

PO Box 292 

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

Manuel Melecio Gomez & Rocio Patino Perez 

PO Box 111 

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

Willie Mae Newsome  

PO Box 75 

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

The Estate of Gerald W. McCann 

Delyse Jaeger  

211 Hudspeth St.  

Sonora, TX 76950 

 

The Estate of Gerald W. McCann 

Kelly Keen  

1838 FM 1291 

Round Top, TX 78954 

Page 126 of 241



Mail Notices to Property Owner’s w/in 200’ of Grandes Ricos 

 
 

The Estate of Kenneth G. McCann 

Aleta McCann 

121 North Post Oak Lane #1701 

Houston, TX 77024 

 

John D. McCann 

PO Box 982 

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

Grandes Ricos LLC 

27714 Wimberly Falls Ln.  

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

Lamar Consolidated School District  

Attn: Thomas Randle  

3911 Avenue I 

Rosenberg, TX 77471 

 

Page 127 of 241



fulshear center
- a living centers community

Page 128 of 241



GRANDES-RICOS TRACT
AREA TO BE RE-ZONED

McCANN TRACT
AREA TO BE RE-ZONED

HISTORIC

DOWNTOWN

FULSHEAR

W
ALLIS STREET

FM 1093

0 100 200 500 1000 1500

N

Page 129 of 241



fulshear center
- a living centers community

Z
oning

 C
hang

e

Z
oning

 C
hang

e Tract A
rea

1" =
 128' U

N
O

A
p

ril 17, 2020

0
2

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
evision       D

ate

Fulshear Center

D
ate P

ub
lished

:  Frid
ay, A

p
ril 17, 2020  12:21 P

M
 File:/U

sers/JD
 lap

top
/D

rop
b

ox/ D
S

A
D

 - M
ain/ FU

LS
H

E
A

R
 - TX

/FU
LS

H
E

A
R

 - A
rchiC

A
D

/Fulshear - TX
.p

ln - Z
oning

 C
hang

e Tract A
rea

A Livable Center Community

Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC
310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

44.0+/- 
ACRES

88.951+/- 
ACRES

Texana

44.0+/- 
ACRES

88.951+/- 
ACRES

GRANDES-RICOS TRACT
AREA TO BE RE-ZONED

McCANN TRACT
AREA TO BE RE-ZONED

Not in Re-Zone

44.0+/- 
ACRES

88.951+/- 
ACRES

Texana

Page 130 of 241



fulshear center
- a living centers community

Z
oning

 C
hang

e

S
ite P

lan - d
rainag

e stud
y

D
o N

ot S
cale

M
ay 1, 2020

0
3

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
evision       D

ate

Fulshear Center

D
ate P

ub
lished

:  W
ed

nesd
ay, A

p
ril 29, 2020  12:39 P

M
 File:/U

sers/JD
 lap

top
/D

rop
b

ox/ D
S

A
D

 - M
ain/ FU

LS
H

E
A

R
 - TX

/FU
LS

H
E

A
R

 - A
rchiC

A
D

/Fulshear - TX
.p

ln - S
ite P

lan - d
rainag

e stud
y

A Livable Center Community

Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC
310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

Topographic

High Point

Ridge

Drainage flow

Creek - Floodway /
Easement

Detention Pond

Note:

Preliminary Site Analysis Only
Full Site Drainage Study to be executed
by qualified Hydrology Engineer prior to
Final Site Design and Approvals.

Pond

Pond

Pond
Pond

FM 1093   -   fu
ture alignment

W
allis Street

Pond

Site Drainage Concept

 CONCEPTPage 131 of 241



fulshear center
- a living centers community

Z
oning

 C
hang

e

O
verall S

ite P
lan

D
o N

ot S
cale

M
ay 1, 2020

0
4

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
evision       D

ate

Fulshear Center

D
ate P

ub
lished

:  Tuesd
ay, A

p
ril 28, 2020  9:47 A

M
 File:/U

sers/JD
 lap

top
/D

rop
b

ox/ D
S

A
D

 - M
ain/ FU

LS
H

E
A

R
 - TX

/FU
LS

H
E

A
R

 - A
rchiC

A
D

/Fulshear - TX
.p

ln - O
verall S

ite P
lan

A Livable Center Community

Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC
310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Community Facility

Civic Center - theatre, museum etc

Plaza - farmers market

Grocery Store

Hotel / Medical

Commercial / mixed-use

Restaurant

Not Used

Residential

Linear Park / Drainage Easement /

     Stormwater Management

Park

Farm

Water Tower

Sweetwater

Not Used

Office Park

(E) Church

(E) Cemetery

FULSHEAR CENTER - SITE FEATURES:

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

2

3

4

5

7

1

0 50 100 200 500 1000 1500

N

5

6

6

6

6

6

6

6
10

10

10

10

9

9

11

11

12

12
13

FM 1093   -   fu
ture alignment

Connection to Wallis

Connection to Third

Connection to
Polo Ranch

9

359 southbound -future

14

18

17

16

18

10

10

9

9

9

9

16

16

12

 CONCEPT
Page 132 of 241



Z
oning

 C
hang

e

O
verall S

ite P
lan

1" =
 128' U

N
O

A
p

ril 17, 2020

0
4

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
evision       D

ate

Fulshear Center

D
ate P

ub
lished

:  Frid
ay, A

p
ril 17, 2020  12:22 P

M
 File:/U

sers/JD
 lap

top
/D

rop
b

ox/ D
S

A
D

 - M
ain/ FU

LS
H

E
A

R
 - TX

/FU
LS

H
E

A
R

 - A
rchiC

A
D

/Fulshear - TX
.p

ln - O
verall S

ite P
lan

A Livable Center Community

Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC
310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Community Facility

Civic Center - theatre, museum etc

Plaza - farmers market

Grocery Store

Hotel / Medical

Commercial / mixed-use

Restaurant

Not Used

Residential

Linear Park / Drainage Easement /

     Stormwater Management

Park

Farm

Water Tower

Sweetwater

Not Used

Office Park

(E) Church

(E) Cemetery

FULSHEAR CENTER - SITE FEATURES:

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

2

3

4

5

7

1

0 50 100 200 500 1000 1500

N

5

6

6

6

6

6

6
10

10

10

10

9

9

11

11

12

12
13

FM 1093   -   fu
ture alignment

Connection to Wallis

Connection to Third

Connection to
Polo Ranch

9

359 southbound -future

14

18

17

16

18

10

10

9

9

9

9

16

16

6
10

 CONCEPT
Page 133 of 241



Z
oning

 C
hang

e

O
verall S

ite P
lan

1" =
 128' U

N
O

A
p

ril 17, 2020

0
4

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
evision       D

ate

Fulshear Center

D
ate P

ub
lished

:  Frid
ay, A

p
ril 17, 2020  12:22 P

M
 File:/U

sers/JD
 lap

top
/D

rop
b

ox/ D
S

A
D

 - M
ain/ FU

LS
H

E
A

R
 - TX

/FU
LS

H
E

A
R

 - A
rchiC

A
D

/Fulshear - TX
.p

ln - O
verall S

ite P
lan

A Livable Center Community

Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC
310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Community Facility

Civic Center - theatre, museum etc

Plaza - farmers market

Grocery Store

Hotel / Medical

Commercial / mixed-use

Restaurant

Not Used

Residential

Linear Park / Drainage Easement /

     Stormwater Management

Park

Farm

Water Tower

Sweetwater

Not Used

Office Park

(E) Church

(E) Cemetery

FULSHEAR CENTER - SITE FEATURES:

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

2

3

4

5

7

1

0 50 100 200 500 1000 1500

N

5

6

6

6

6

6

6
10

10

10

10

9

9

11

11

12

12
13

FM 1093   -   fu
ture alignment

Connection to Wallis

Connection to Third

Connection to
Polo Ranch

9

359 southbound -future

14

18

17

16

18

10

10

9

9

9

9

16

16

6
10

 CONCEPT

Page 134 of 241



Z
oning

 C
hang

e

O
verall S

ite P
lan

D
o N

ot S
cale

M
ay 1, 2020

0
4

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
evision       D

ate

Fulshear Center

D
ate P

ub
lished

:  Tuesd
ay, A

p
ril 28, 2020  9:47 A

M
 File:/U

sers/JD
 lap

top
/D

rop
b

ox/ D
S

A
D

 - M
ain/ FU

LS
H

E
A

R
 - TX

/FU
LS

H
E

A
R

 - A
rchiC

A
D

/Fulshear - TX
.p

ln - O
verall S

ite P
lan

A Livable Center Community

Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC
310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Community Facility

Civic Center - theatre, museum etc

Plaza - farmers market

Grocery Store

Hotel / Medical

Commercial / mixed-use

Restaurant

Not Used

Residential

Linear Park / Drainage Easement /

     Stormwater Management

Park

Farm

Water Tower

Sweetwater

Not Used

Office Park

(E) Church

(E) Cemetery

FULSHEAR CENTER - SITE FEATURES:

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

2

3

4

5

7

1

0 50 100 200 500 1000 1500

N

5

6

6

6

6

6

6

6
10

10

10

10

9

9

11

11

12

12
13

FM 1093   -   fu
ture alignment

Connection to Wallis

Connection to Third

Connection to
Polo Ranch

9

359 southbound -future

14

18

17

16

18

10

10

9

9

9

9

16

16

12

 CONCEPT

Page 135 of 241



fulshear center
- a living centers community

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
ev

is
io

n 
   

   
D

at
e

Fulshear Center

D
at

e 
P

ub
lis

he
d

:  
Fr

id
ay

, A
p

ril
 1

7,
 2

02
0 

 1
:5

0 
P

M
 F

ile
:/U

se
rs

/J
D

 la
p

to
p

/D
ro

p
b

ox
/ D

S
A

D
 -

 M
ai

n/
 F

U
LS

H
E

A
R

 -
 T

X
/F

U
LS

H
E

A
R

 -
 A

rc
hi

C
A

D
/F

ul
sh

ea
r 

- 
TX

.p
ln

 -
 C

iv
ic

 Im
ag

es

A Livable Center Community

Z
oning

 C
hang

e

C
ivic Im

ag
es

1" =
 128' U

N
O

A
p

ril 17, 2020

0
5 Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

 CONCEPT
Page 136 of 241



fulshear center
- a living centers community

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
ev

is
io

n 
   

   
D

at
e

Fulshear Center

D
at

e 
P

ub
lis

he
d

:  
Fr

id
ay

, A
p

ril
 1

7,
 2

02
0 

 1
:5

1 
P

M
 F

ile
:/U

se
rs

/J
D

 la
p

to
p

/D
ro

p
b

ox
/ D

S
A

D
 -

 M
ai

n/
 F

U
LS

H
E

A
R

 -
 T

X
/F

U
LS

H
E

A
R

 -
 A

rc
hi

C
A

D
/F

ul
sh

ea
r 

- 
TX

.p
ln

 -
 C

om
m

un
ity

 Im
ag

es

A Livable Center Community

Z
oning

 C
hang

e

C
om

m
unity Im

ag
es

1" =
 128' U

N
O

A
p

ril 17, 2020

0
6 Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

 CONCEPT
Page 137 of 241



fulshear center
- a living centers community

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
ev

is
io

n 
   

   
D

at
e

Fulshear Center

D
at

e 
P

ub
lis

he
d

:  
Fr

id
ay

, A
p

ril
 1

7,
 2

02
0 

 1
:5

1 
P

M
 F

ile
:/U

se
rs

/J
D

 la
p

to
p

/D
ro

p
b

ox
/ D

S
A

D
 -

 M
ai

n/
 F

U
LS

H
E

A
R

 -
 T

X
/F

U
LS

H
E

A
R

 -
 A

rc
hi

C
A

D
/F

ul
sh

ea
r 

- 
TX

.p
ln

 -
 L

an
d

sc
ap

e 
Im

ag
es

A Livable Center Community

Z
oning

 C
hang

e

Land
scap

e Im
ag

es

1" =
 128' U

N
O

A
p

ril 17, 2020

0
7 Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

 CONCEPT
Page 138 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VIII.D.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/5/2020 DEPARTMENT: Building Services

PREPARED BY: ZACH GOODLANDER PRESENTER: ZACH GOODLANDER
SUBJECT:   CONSIDERATION AND ACTION TO APPROVE A ZONING CHANGE FROM (R-1)
RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE TO DOWNTOWN DISTRICT FOR A PROPERTY LOCATED AT 31210 FM 1093

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This, and the other proposed R-1 to Downtown District tract are being considered for the same overall development. The
owners of the two tracts are separately Grandes Ricos LLC (38.5 acres) and the McCann Family (86.19 acres). 
 
There are no permit or plats currently submitted for either property. However, conceptual plans for the property have been
submitted to demonstrate development potential and quality. Also, while there is no floodplain currently on the property the
applicant will have their drainage plans reviewed by the Fort Bend County Drainage District. A plan showing how the property
currently drains has been provided in this packet as well. 
 
The conceptual plan demonstrates the various uses proposed. These include land that may be dedicated for a water tower site,
civic use, parks, preservation of trees along the drainage channel, farm use, commercial/retail use, preservation of the cemetery
onsite and "Sweetwater". This last potentiality would be a wedding and event venue built to look in the form of an historic old
town. 

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the zoning change. It's found to be in the same spirit as the Comprehensive Plan and Livable
Centers Study, as a walkable, multi-use district, and will function symbiotically with the Downtown core. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the zoning change at their regularly scheduled May meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
McCann-Positive Tract Rezoning Documents for City Council 5/5/2020 Backup Material

Page 139 of 241



1 

APPLICATION TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE/SITE PLAN 
(Must be a complete application for acceptance) 

PROPERTY OWNER: 
Mailing Address City State _Zip 

Telephone ( ) Email 

City State Zip 

Cell (609) Email 

APPLICANT / AGENT: 
Mailing Address  
Telephone (512) 

OTHER CONTACT Name Phone 

PURPOSE OF PROPOSAL: 
Amend the ZONING MAP to change the zoning district boundaries on the following parcel(s): 

Lot / Tract No. Lot / Tract No. Lot / Tract No. Lot / Tract No. 

From From From From 

To To To To 

Location address or Legal lot and block range: 

Present use of this property is: 

Describe proposed new use and purpose for zoning change: 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
Total net land area (acres /or square feet) 

Sketch Drawing of Area to be Re-Zoned, including Location Map (8 ½” x 11”) 

Certified Legal Description: 

NOT PLATTED: A Registered Texas Surveyor’s certified metes and bounds legal description is required 

with case exhibit drawings of the entire area to be rezoned. The boundary description shall be furnished 

on 8 1/2” x 11” paper, bearing the surveyor’s name, seal and date. If the area to be rezoned is entirely 
encompassed by a recorded deed, a copy of the deed description is acceptable. An Electronic copy of 
survey may be provided by CD, email or other method within 2 days of application. Send to 

bdsreq@fulsheartexas.gov.  

PLATTED: If it is within a recorded subdivision, provide a copy of the plat with the subdivision name and 

recording information. Any partial or non-surveyed parcel or tract, extracted from a recorded deed, will 

require a certified legal description as noted above. 

Subdivision Name 

Block _ Lot(s) ; Block Lot(s) ; Block Lots(s) 

1 101 290 00
99 150 502 01 0

 

Page 140 of 241

mailto:bdsreq@fulsheartexas.gov
Jonathan Davis
NA

Jonathan Davis
The purpose of the proposed zoning change would be to allow the development of a new mixed-use community including such new uses such as commercial, retail, civic, hotel, residential, park and the preservation of trees along the existing creek.  The existing Bains family cemetery on the property will be preserved.

Jonathan Davis
86.191 acres

Jonathan Davis
see attached

Jonathan Davis
Rural Residential                  

Jonathan Davis
Downtown District

Jonathan Davis
Jonathan Davis                                 310-779-8544

Jonathan Davis
     Agricultural

Jonathan Davis
31210 FM 1093 Rd, Fulshear, TX 77441



2 

Posting Requirements: 
Notice of required Public Hearings shall be provided by the applicant by way of a sign posted on the land 

that is the subject of the application.  One sign shall be posted for each 200 feet of frontage along a public 

street, with a maximum of 2 signs required per frontage.  Signs shall be located so that the lettering is 

visible from the street. Where the land does not have frontage on a public street, signs shall be posted on 

the nearest public street with an attached notation indicating the location of the land subject to the 

application.  The sign shall state “The property has requested a Zoning Change, for information regarding 

this request contact the City of Fulshear at 30603 FM 1093, Fulshear, Texas 77441, 281-346-1796.  Two 

Public Hearings will be held for this request.”  Include time(s), date(s) and location(s) of the Public Hearing. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 

I certify that the above information is correct and complete to the best of my knowledge and ability and 
that I am now, or will be, fully prepared to present the above proposal before the Zoning Commission and 
City Council public hearings. I further certify that I have read and understand the information provided, 
concerning the policies and procedures regarding consideration of my zoning request. 
I understand that all recommendations of the Zoning Commission will be forwarded to the City Council for 
final determination, normally scheduled for the third Tuesday of the month. I further understand that any 
actions of the Zoning Commission are considered recommendations to the City Council and that I may be 
heard by the City Council at the prescribed Council hearing date where a final decision will be made. 
I further understand that if I am not present nor duly represented at the Commission’s public hearing, the 
Zoning Commission may dismiss my request, which constitutes a recommendation that the request be 
denied. I further understand that if I am not present, or duly represented, at the City Council public hearing, 
the City Council may deny my request. 
I reserve the right to withdraw this proposal at any time, upon written request filed with the City Secretary. 
Such withdrawal shall immediately stop all proceedings thereon; provided, however, case withdrawal, 
shall constitute a denial by the Commission and City Council. I understand my filing fee is not refundable 
upon withdrawal of my case application after public notice, nor following denial by the Commission or 
Council of my case. I / We respectfully request approval and adoption of the proposed zoning / land use of 
property, within the City of Fulshear, as identified in this application. 

Signature of Owner/ Agent* Date 

(circle one) 

Printed name Phone. No. 

*Note: An Agent must furnish a signed Letter of Authorization from the owner when submitting this application.

609 502 01 0

10 2020

Page 141 of 241

chris
CMH Signature



Page 142 of 241



Page 143 of 241



Page 144 of 241



Page 145 of 241



Exhibit A 
Property Owners and Contact Information 

 

The Estate of Gerald Wayne McCann 
Points of Contact: Delyse Jaeger and Kelley Keen, Independent Co-Executors 
 
Delyse Jaeger 
211 Hudspeth St. 
Sonora, Texas 76950 
325-226-2416 
deljaegson@gmail.com 
 
Kelley Keen 
1838 FM 1291 
Round Top, Texas 78954 
979-251-2691 
kelleykeen@rocketmail.com 
 
The Estate of Kenneth G. McCann 
Point of Contact: Aleta McCann, Independent Executrix 
121 North Post Oak Lane #1701 
Houston, Texas 77024 
Aleta.mccan@sbcglobal.net  
 
John D. McCann 
P.O. Box 982  
Fulshear, Texas 77441 
713-299-3153 
Jdmccann@52@yahoo.com 
 

Page 146 of 241



Page 147 of 241



Page 148 of 241



Page 149 of 241



Page 150 of 241



Page 151 of 241



Page 152 of 241



4 

ZONING CHANGE APPLICATION CHECKLIST 

Applicant must complete and submit this checklist when filing an application. 

ZONING CHANGE APPLICATION DATA: 

 Applicant Name, Address, City, State, Zip Code, Area Code, Telephone Number 

 Confirmed Ownership (Sources: Appraisal district records; recently recorded deed, etc.) 

 Nature of request complete and understood 

Applicable Property Description: 

 Address: Number & Street 

 Subdivision: Name  Block(s)  Lot(s) -Provide copy of plat- 

 Survey: Name  Abstract No.  Tract(s) 

 Certified Metes & Bounds Legal Description 

 If there is more than one rezoning category, a legal description / metes and bounds must describe 

each requested zoning district. 

 Total land area to be rezoned 

 Development information completed 

 Existing land use-identified 

 Proposed new land use – identified 

 Reason supporting proposed change - completed 

 Signatures of owner and /or applicant 

 Signed Letter of Authorization -if applicable 

 Zoning Change Fee made out to the City of Fulshear $600.00 plus $15.00 per acre 

Page 153 of 241

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
NA

Jonathan Davis
NA

Jonathan Davis
X

Jonathan Davis
Payment will be called in by Credit Card

Jonathan Davis
See attached

Jonathan Davis
See attached



Mail Notices to Property Owner’s w/in 200’ of the McCann/Positive Development Project 

 
Fort Bend County Toll Road Authority 

Attn: Mr. Richard Muller 

16555 Southwest Fwy. Ste. 200 

Sugar Land, TX 77479 

 

The Estate of Gerald W. McCann 

Delyse Jaeger  

211 Hudspeth St.  

Sonora, TX 76950 

 

The Estate of Gerald W. McCann 

Kelly Keen  

1838 FM 1291 

Round Top, TX 78954 

 

The Estate of Kenneth G. McCann 

Aleta McCann 

121 North Post Oak Lane #1701 

Houston, TX 77024 

 

John D. McCann 

PO Box 982 

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

Grandes Ricos LLC 

27714 Wimberly Falls Ln.  

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

 

 

Century Land Holdings of Texas LLC 

4700 W. Sam Houston Pkwy. N. Suite 130 

Houston, TX 77041 

 

Carol Ann McCann etal 

PO Box 33 

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

Zerlean James 

PO Box 44 

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

Fort Bend County ESD #4 

PO Box 494 

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

Pittman Lulu Adams Estate 

c/o Ethel Adams  

PO Box 3 

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

Mindnhand Investments LLC 

6140 Highway 6, #136 

Missouri City, TX 77459 

 

Dream Rainbow LLC 

PO Box 2954 

Sugar Land, TX 77487 

 

Page 154 of 241



Mail Notices to Property Owner’s w/in 200’ of the McCann/Positive Development Project 

 
Lamar Consolidated School District  

Attn: Thomas Randle  

3911 Avenue I 

Rosenberg, TX 77471 

 

Page 155 of 241



Zoning Change

Site Plan - Context Map

1" = 128' UNO

April 14, 2020

01

Fa
rm

 to
 M

ar
ke

t 1
09

3
Te

xa
s 

77
44

1

Revision       Date

Fu
ls

he
ar

 C
en

te
r

Date Published:  Tuesday, April 14, 2020  8:36 AM File:/Users/JD laptop/Dropbox/ DSAD - Main/ FULSHEAR - TX/FULSHEAR - ArchiCAD/Fulshear - TX.pln - Site Plan - Context Map

A
 L

iv
ab

le
 C

en
te

r 
C

om
m

un
ity

D
av

is
 S

tu
d

io
 A

rc
ht

ite
ct

ur
e 

+
 D

es
ig

n,
 L

LC
31

0 
M

ad
is

on
 A

ve
 S

, S
ui

te
 A

B
ai

nb
rid

g
e 

Is
la

nd
, W

A
 9

81
10

20
6.

84
2.

55
43

JD
@

d
av

is
st

ud
io

A
D

.c
om

d
av

is
st

ud
io

A
D

.c
om

Fu
ls

he
ar

 C
en

te
r

©
 2

02
0,

 D
av

is
 S

tu
d

io
 A

rc
ht

ite
ct

ur
e 

+
 D

es
ig

n,
 L

LC

GRANDES-RICOS TRACT
AREA TO BE RE-ZONED

McCANN TRACT
AREA TO BE RE-ZONED

0 100 200 500 1000 1500

N

Context Map
Page 156 of 241



Zoning Change

Zoning Change Tract Area

1" = 128' UNO

April 14, 2020

02

Fa
rm

 to
 M

ar
ke

t 1
09

3
Te

xa
s 

77
44

1

Revision       Date

Fu
ls

he
ar

 C
en

te
r

Date Published:  Tuesday, April 14, 2020  8:36 AM File:/Users/JD laptop/Dropbox/ DSAD - Main/ FULSHEAR - TX/FULSHEAR - ArchiCAD/Fulshear - TX.pln - Zoning Change Tract Area

A
 L

iv
ab

le
 C

en
te

r 
C

om
m

un
ity

D
av

is
 S

tu
d

io
 A

rc
ht

ite
ct

ur
e 

+
 D

es
ig

n,
 L

LC
31

0 
M

ad
is

on
 A

ve
 S

, S
ui

te
 A

B
ai

nb
rid

g
e 

Is
la

nd
, W

A
 9

81
10

20
6.

84
2.

55
43

JD
@

d
av

is
st

ud
io

A
D

.c
om

d
av

is
st

ud
io

A
D

.c
om

Fu
ls

he
ar

 C
en

te
r

©
 2

02
0,

 D
av

is
 S

tu
d

io
 A

rc
ht

ite
ct

ur
e 

+
 D

es
ig

n,
 L

LC

44
.0

+/
- 

A
C

R
E

S

88
.9

51
+/

- 
A

C
R

E
S

Te
xa
na

44
.0

+/
- 

A
C

R
E

S

88
.9

51
+/

- 
A

C
R

E
S

G
R

A
N

D
E

S
-R

IC
O

S
 T

R
A

C
T

A
R

E
A

 T
O

 B
E

 R
E

-Z
O

N
E

D

M
cC

A
N

N
 T

R
A

C
T

A
R

E
A

 T
O

 B
E

 R
E

-Z
O

N
E

D

N
ot

 in
 R

e-
Z

on
e

44
.0

+/
- 

A
C

R
E

S

88
.9

51
+/

- 
A

C
R

E
S

Te
xa
na

Page 157 of 241



fulshear center
- a living centers community

Page 158 of 241



GRANDES-RICOS TRACT
AREA TO BE RE-ZONED

McCANN TRACT
AREA TO BE RE-ZONED

HISTORIC

DOWNTOWN

FULSHEAR

W
ALLIS STREET

FM 1093

0 100 200 500 1000 1500

N

Page 159 of 241



fulshear center
- a living centers community

Z
oning

 C
hang

e

Z
oning

 C
hang

e Tract A
rea

1" =
 128' U

N
O

A
p

ril 17, 2020

0
2

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
evision       D

ate

Fulshear Center

D
ate P

ub
lished

:  Frid
ay, A

p
ril 17, 2020  12:21 P

M
 File:/U

sers/JD
 lap

top
/D

rop
b

ox/ D
S

A
D

 - M
ain/ FU

LS
H

E
A

R
 - TX

/FU
LS

H
E

A
R

 - A
rchiC

A
D

/Fulshear - TX
.p

ln - Z
oning

 C
hang

e Tract A
rea

A Livable Center Community

Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC
310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

44.0+/- 
ACRES

88.951+/- 
ACRES

Texana

44.0+/- 
ACRES

88.951+/- 
ACRES

GRANDES-RICOS TRACT
AREA TO BE RE-ZONED

McCANN TRACT
AREA TO BE RE-ZONED

Not in Re-Zone

44.0+/- 
ACRES

88.951+/- 
ACRES

Texana

Page 160 of 241



fulshear center
- a living centers community

Z
oning

 C
hang

e

S
ite P

lan - d
rainag

e stud
y

D
o N

ot S
cale

M
ay 1, 2020

0
3

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
evision       D

ate

Fulshear Center

D
ate P

ub
lished

:  W
ed

nesd
ay, A

p
ril 29, 2020  12:39 P

M
 File:/U

sers/JD
 lap

top
/D

rop
b

ox/ D
S

A
D

 - M
ain/ FU

LS
H

E
A

R
 - TX

/FU
LS

H
E

A
R

 - A
rchiC

A
D

/Fulshear - TX
.p

ln - S
ite P

lan - d
rainag

e stud
y

A Livable Center Community

Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC
310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

Topographic

High Point

Ridge

Drainage flow

Creek - Floodway /
Easement

Detention Pond

Note:

Preliminary Site Analysis Only
Full Site Drainage Study to be executed
by qualified Hydrology Engineer prior to
Final Site Design and Approvals.

Pond

Pond

Pond
Pond

FM 1093   -   fu
ture alignment

W
allis Street

Pond

Site Drainage Concept

 CONCEPTPage 161 of 241



fulshear center
- a living centers community

Z
oning

 C
hang

e

O
verall S

ite P
lan

D
o N

ot S
cale

M
ay 1, 2020

0
4

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
evision       D

ate

Fulshear Center

D
ate P

ub
lished

:  Tuesd
ay, A

p
ril 28, 2020  9:47 A

M
 File:/U

sers/JD
 lap

top
/D

rop
b

ox/ D
S

A
D

 - M
ain/ FU

LS
H

E
A

R
 - TX

/FU
LS

H
E

A
R

 - A
rchiC

A
D

/Fulshear - TX
.p

ln - O
verall S

ite P
lan

A Livable Center Community

Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC
310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Community Facility

Civic Center - theatre, museum etc

Plaza - farmers market

Grocery Store

Hotel / Medical

Commercial / mixed-use

Restaurant

Not Used

Residential

Linear Park / Drainage Easement /

     Stormwater Management

Park

Farm

Water Tower

Sweetwater

Not Used

Office Park

(E) Church

(E) Cemetery

FULSHEAR CENTER - SITE FEATURES:

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

2

3

4

5

7

1

0 50 100 200 500 1000 1500

N

5

6

6

6

6

6

6

6
10

10

10

10

9

9

11

11

12

12
13

FM 1093   -   fu
ture alignment

Connection to Wallis

Connection to Third

Connection to
Polo Ranch

9

359 southbound -future

14

18

17

16

18

10

10

9

9

9

9

16

16

12

 CONCEPT
Page 162 of 241



Z
oning

 C
hang

e

O
verall S

ite P
lan

1" =
 128' U

N
O

A
p

ril 17, 2020

0
4

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
evision       D

ate

Fulshear Center

D
ate P

ub
lished

:  Frid
ay, A

p
ril 17, 2020  12:22 P

M
 File:/U

sers/JD
 lap

top
/D

rop
b

ox/ D
S

A
D

 - M
ain/ FU

LS
H

E
A

R
 - TX

/FU
LS

H
E

A
R

 - A
rchiC

A
D

/Fulshear - TX
.p

ln - O
verall S

ite P
lan

A Livable Center Community

Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC
310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Community Facility

Civic Center - theatre, museum etc

Plaza - farmers market

Grocery Store

Hotel / Medical

Commercial / mixed-use

Restaurant

Not Used

Residential

Linear Park / Drainage Easement /

     Stormwater Management

Park

Farm

Water Tower

Sweetwater

Not Used

Office Park

(E) Church

(E) Cemetery

FULSHEAR CENTER - SITE FEATURES:

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

2

3

4

5

7

1

0 50 100 200 500 1000 1500

N

5

6

6

6

6

6

6
10

10

10

10

9

9

11

11

12

12
13

FM 1093   -   fu
ture alignment

Connection to Wallis

Connection to Third

Connection to
Polo Ranch

9

359 southbound -future

14

18

17

16

18

10

10

9

9

9

9

16

16

6
10

 CONCEPT
Page 163 of 241



Z
oning

 C
hang

e

O
verall S

ite P
lan

1" =
 128' U

N
O

A
p

ril 17, 2020

0
4

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
evision       D

ate

Fulshear Center

D
ate P

ub
lished

:  Frid
ay, A

p
ril 17, 2020  12:22 P

M
 File:/U

sers/JD
 lap

top
/D

rop
b

ox/ D
S

A
D

 - M
ain/ FU

LS
H

E
A

R
 - TX

/FU
LS

H
E

A
R

 - A
rchiC

A
D

/Fulshear - TX
.p

ln - O
verall S

ite P
lan

A Livable Center Community

Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC
310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Community Facility

Civic Center - theatre, museum etc

Plaza - farmers market

Grocery Store

Hotel / Medical

Commercial / mixed-use

Restaurant

Not Used

Residential

Linear Park / Drainage Easement /

     Stormwater Management

Park

Farm

Water Tower

Sweetwater

Not Used

Office Park

(E) Church

(E) Cemetery

FULSHEAR CENTER - SITE FEATURES:

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

2

3

4

5

7

1

0 50 100 200 500 1000 1500

N

5

6

6

6

6

6

6
10

10

10

10

9

9

11

11

12

12
13

FM 1093   -   fu
ture alignment

Connection to Wallis

Connection to Third

Connection to
Polo Ranch

9

359 southbound -future

14

18

17

16

18

10

10

9

9

9

9

16

16

6
10

 CONCEPT

Page 164 of 241



Z
oning

 C
hang

e

O
verall S

ite P
lan

D
o N

ot S
cale

M
ay 1, 2020

0
4

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
evision       D

ate

Fulshear Center

D
ate P

ub
lished

:  Tuesd
ay, A

p
ril 28, 2020  9:47 A

M
 File:/U

sers/JD
 lap

top
/D

rop
b

ox/ D
S

A
D

 - M
ain/ FU

LS
H

E
A

R
 - TX

/FU
LS

H
E

A
R

 - A
rchiC

A
D

/Fulshear - TX
.p

ln - O
verall S

ite P
lan

A Livable Center Community

Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC
310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Community Facility

Civic Center - theatre, museum etc

Plaza - farmers market

Grocery Store

Hotel / Medical

Commercial / mixed-use

Restaurant

Not Used

Residential

Linear Park / Drainage Easement /

     Stormwater Management

Park

Farm

Water Tower

Sweetwater

Not Used

Office Park

(E) Church

(E) Cemetery

FULSHEAR CENTER - SITE FEATURES:

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

2

3

4

5

7

1

0 50 100 200 500 1000 1500

N

5

6

6

6

6

6

6

6
10

10

10

10

9

9

11

11

12

12
13

FM 1093   -   fu
ture alignment

Connection to Wallis

Connection to Third

Connection to
Polo Ranch

9

359 southbound -future

14

18

17

16

18

10

10

9

9

9

9

16

16

12

 CONCEPT

Page 165 of 241



fulshear center
- a living centers community

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
ev

is
io

n 
   

   
D

at
e

Fulshear Center

D
at

e 
P

ub
lis

he
d

:  
Fr

id
ay

, A
p

ril
 1

7,
 2

02
0 

 1
:5

0 
P

M
 F

ile
:/U

se
rs

/J
D

 la
p

to
p

/D
ro

p
b

ox
/ D

S
A

D
 -

 M
ai

n/
 F

U
LS

H
E

A
R

 -
 T

X
/F

U
LS

H
E

A
R

 -
 A

rc
hi

C
A

D
/F

ul
sh

ea
r 

- 
TX

.p
ln

 -
 C

iv
ic

 Im
ag

es

A Livable Center Community

Z
oning

 C
hang

e

C
ivic Im

ag
es

1" =
 128' U

N
O

A
p

ril 17, 2020

0
5 Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

 CONCEPT
Page 166 of 241



fulshear center
- a living centers community

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
ev

is
io

n 
   

   
D

at
e

Fulshear Center

D
at

e 
P

ub
lis

he
d

:  
Fr

id
ay

, A
p

ril
 1

7,
 2

02
0 

 1
:5

1 
P

M
 F

ile
:/U

se
rs

/J
D

 la
p

to
p

/D
ro

p
b

ox
/ D

S
A

D
 -

 M
ai

n/
 F

U
LS

H
E

A
R

 -
 T

X
/F

U
LS

H
E

A
R

 -
 A

rc
hi

C
A

D
/F

ul
sh

ea
r 

- 
TX

.p
ln

 -
 C

om
m

un
ity

 Im
ag

es

A Livable Center Community

Z
oning

 C
hang

e

C
om

m
unity Im

ag
es

1" =
 128' U

N
O

A
p

ril 17, 2020

0
6 Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

 CONCEPT
Page 167 of 241



fulshear center
- a living centers community

Farm to Market 1093
Texas 77441

R
ev

is
io

n 
   

   
D

at
e

Fulshear Center

D
at

e 
P

ub
lis

he
d

:  
Fr

id
ay

, A
p

ril
 1

7,
 2

02
0 

 1
:5

1 
P

M
 F

ile
:/U

se
rs

/J
D

 la
p

to
p

/D
ro

p
b

ox
/ D

S
A

D
 -

 M
ai

n/
 F

U
LS

H
E

A
R

 -
 T

X
/F

U
LS

H
E

A
R

 -
 A

rc
hi

C
A

D
/F

ul
sh

ea
r 

- 
TX

.p
ln

 -
 L

an
d

sc
ap

e 
Im

ag
es

A Livable Center Community

Z
oning

 C
hang

e

Land
scap

e Im
ag

es

1" =
 128' U

N
O

A
p

ril 17, 2020

0
7 Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

310 Madison Ave S, Suite A

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

206.842.5543

JD@davisstudioAD.com

davisstudioAD.com

Fulshear Center

© 2020, Davis Studio Archtitecture + Design, LLC

 CONCEPT
Page 168 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VIII.E.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/5/2020 DEPARTMENT: Building Services

PREPARED BY: ZACH GOODLANDER PRESENTER: ZACH GOODLANDER
SUBJECT:   CONSIDERATION AND ACTION TO APPROVE A ZONING CHANGE FROM (MH)
MANUFACTURED HOUSING TO (I) INDUSTRIAL FOR A PROPERTY, APPROXIMATEY 2.25 ACRES IN
SIZE, LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE INTERSECTION OF PATTERSON AND DIXON
ROADS

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This is a request to rezone a 2.25 acre tract from the Manufactured Housing District to the Industrial district. The request has
been made by Mike Roller, the authorized agent, for the owner Willie McCray. 
 
There are no currently submitted plans for a building on the site, and it is not at this time platted. A picture of a conceptual
building that could be placed on the site is provided in this packet. Light industrial and warehousing in envisioned. 
 
All public notice requirements have been accounted for in the form of two newspaper publications, signage on the tract, and
mailouts to landowners within 200'. 

RECOMMENDATION

The tract is currently on a dead end road, and both Patterson and Dixon would have to be upgraded to accommodate
industrial traffic. It also sits very close to Primrose Park. However, if the development complies with screening and
architectural requirements, and upgrades its portion of Patterson Road it would be a positive redevelopment of the area. Staff
has no objection to the rezoning request. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the zoning change at their regularly scheduled May meeting.

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Roller-McCray Rezoning Documents for City 5/5/2020 Backup Material

Page 169 of 241



Page 170 of 241



Page 171 of 241



Page 172 of 241



Page 173 of 241



Page 174 of 241



Page 175 of 241



Page 176 of 241



Page 177 of 241



Page 178 of 241



Page 179 of 241



Page 180 of 241



Page 181 of 241



Page 182 of 241



Page 183 of 241



Page 184 of 241



Page 185 of 241



Page 186 of 241



3  

LETTER OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ZONING CASE REPRESENTATION 
 

AUTHORITY IS HEREBY GRANTED TO:    
 

ACTING ON MY BEHALF AS THE OWNER OF THIS PROPERTY AS INDICATED AT THE APPRAISAL DISTRICT, TO FILE AND 
PRESENT AN APPLICATION TO THE CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS, TO REQUEST A CHANGE IN ZONING CLASSIFICATION 
FOR THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY: 

 

(CERTIFIED LEGAL DESCRIPTION] 
 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 
 

I certify that the above information is correct and complete to the best of my knowledge and ability and 
that I am now, or will be, fully prepared to present the above proposal before the Zoning Commission and 
City Council public hearings. I further certify that I have read and understand the information provided, 
concerning the policies and procedures regarding consideration of my zoning request. 
I understand that all recommendations of the Zoning Commission will be forwarded to the City Council for 
final determination, normally scheduled for the third Tuesday of the month. I further understand that any 
actions of the Zoning Commission are considered recommendations to the City Council and that I may be 
heard by the City Council at the prescribed Council hearing date where a final decision will be made. 
I further understand that if I am not present nor duly represented at the Commission’s public hearing, the 
Zoning Commission may dismiss my request, which constitutes a recommendation that the request be 
denied. I further understand that if I am not present, or duly represented, at the City Council public hearing, 
the City Council may deny my request. 
I reserve the right to withdraw this proposal at any time, upon written request filed with the City Secretary. 
Such withdrawal shall immediately stop all proceedings thereon; provided, however, case withdrawal, 
shall constitute a denial by the Commission and City Council. I understand my filing fee is not refundable 
upon withdrawal of my case application after public notice, nor following denial by the Commission or 
Council of my case. I / We respectfully request approval and adoption of the proposed zoning / land use of 
property, within the City of Fulshear, as identified in this application. 

 

THIS AUTHORIZATION WILL REMAIN IN FORCE UNLESS REVOKED BY WRITTEN NOTICE. 
 

OWNER’S SIGNATURE of the above described property:    
 

OWNER’S NAME (printed)    
 

ADDRESS:    
 

TELEPHONE: EMAIL:    

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8C2AA454-7769-4B5C-BAEF-6FFC72D492E6

0029 C FULSHEAR, TRACT 102, ACRES 2.25

Michael Roller

DocuSign Envelope ID: 47CC466B-8DFC-4CB8-ABA2-3D4BBDD0471B

wmccray100@yahoo.com

8519 Haynes St

2815941834

Willie McCray

Page 187 of 241



STATE OF TEXAS §
§
§
§

COUNTY OF FORT BEND §

A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND CONTAINING 2.1784 ACRES (94,893 SQUARE FEET)
SITUATED IN THE CHURCHILL LEAGUE, ABSTRACT No. 29, FORT BEND COUNTY,
TEXAS AND BEING THAT SAME CALLED 2.25 ACRE TRACT CONVEYED TO DAVE
ROGERS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 230, PAGE 29, DEED RECORDS FORT BEND
COUNTY, TEXAS (D.R.F.B.C.T.) AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY
METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: (BASIS OF BEARINGS: VOL. 230, PG. 29,
D.R.F.B.C.T.)

BEGINNING at a set PK Nail in the south line of a called 452.272 acre tract conveyed to
Huggins Ranch, LTD, recorded in County Clerk File no. (C.C.F. No.) 2009007109, Official
Public Records Fort Bend County, Texas (O.P.R.F.B.C.T.) for the common Northeast corner of
herein described Tract and the northwest corner of a called 2.0 acre tract conveyed to Anderson
Rogers, recorded in Volume 230, Page 27, D.R.F.B.C.T.;

THENCE SOUTH, 319.00', along the common East line of herein described Tract and the west
line of said called 2.0 acre tract conveyed to Anderson Rogers, to a point (no access) in the north
line of a called 5.012 acre tract conveyed to Thu-Hong Thi, recorded in C.C.F. No. 2013127402,
O.P.R.F.B.C.T. and described in Volume 922, Page 334, D.R.F.B.C.T. for the common Southeast
corner of herein described Tract and the southwest corner of said called 2.0 acre tract conveyed
to Anderson Rogers;

THENCE WEST, 118.40', along the common South line of herein described Tract and the north
line of said called 5.012 acre tract conveyed to Thu-Hong Thi, to a set 1/2" iron rod with cap
"Precision" (hereinafter called "set 1/2" iron rod") for the common Southwest corner of herein
described Tract and the southeast corner of a called 1.00 acre tract conveyed to a called 1 acre
tract conveyed to Hazel Jones, recorded in Volume 218, Page 566, D.R.F.B.C.T.;

THENCE NORTH, 138.00', along a common West line of herein described Tract and the east
line of said called 1 acre tract conveyed to Hazel Jones, to a set 1/2" iron rod for the common
Interior corner of herein described Tract and the northeast corner of said called 1 acre tract
conveyed to Hazel Jones;

THENCE WEST, 315.60', along a common South line of herein described Tract and the north
line of said called 1 acre tract conveyed to Hazel Jones, to a set PK Nail for the common
northwesterly Southwest corner of herein described Tract and the northwest corner of said called
1 acre tract conveyed to Hazel Jones;

THENCE NORTH, 181.00', along the West line of herein described Tract, to a set 1/2" iron rod
in the south line of said a called 452.272 acre tract conveyed to Huggins Ranch, LTD for the
Northwest corner of herein described Tract;

THENCE EAST, 434.00' (call 345.60'), along the common North line of herein described Tract
and the south line of said called 452.272 acre tract conveyed to Huggins Ranch, LTD, to the
POINT OF BEGINNING containing 2.1784 acres (94,893 square feet) of land.

(See attached Drawing)

JIMMY RAY JANECEK
Professional Land Surveyor, No. 5868
February 5, 2020
Job No. 20-00690

Page 188 of 241



Mail Notices to Property Owner’s w/in 200’ of the Maud Rogers (Estate) Rezoning 

 
Anderson Rogers 

c/o Erma D. Freeman 

PO Box 361 

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

Thu-Hong Thi 

13903 Drakewood Dr. 

Sugar Land, TX 77498 

 

Will Ball 

c/o Nathaniel Baul  

9415 Tower St.  

Houston, TX 77088 

 

J & L Duke Family Partnership LTD 

27714 Wimberly Falls Ln.  

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

Huggins Ranch Ltd.  

3823 Elfland Cir.  

Dallas, TX 75229 

 

Hazel Jones Estate 

c/o Wilma Carrier 

PO Box 381 

Fulshear, TX 77441 

 

 

 

Lamar Consolidated School District  

Attn: Thomas Randle 

3911 Avenue I 

Rosenberg, TX 77471 

 

  

 

Page 189 of 241



Page 190 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VIII.F.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

4/30/2020 DEPARTMENT: Administration

PREPARED BY: Kimberly Kopecky PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:   CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-463, A
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE CITY'S PLANNING AND
ZONING COMMISSION

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

There are currently four (4) positions up for appointment in 2020. Resolution No. 2020-463 has been prepared for the
Council's consideration.

RECOMMENDATION

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Resolution No. 2020-463 4/30/2020 Backup Material

Page 191 of 241



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-463 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS APPOINTING 

AND REAPPOINTING CERTAIN MEMBERS TO THE CITY’S PLANNING AND ZONING 

COMMISSION 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas is desirous of continuing the 

function and positive impact of the Planning and Zoning Commission, and; 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas appreciates the service and 

dedication of those previously and currently serving, and; 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas has been presented a slate of 

qualified willing volunteers to serve in the capacity as Members of the Planning and 

Zoning Commission; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR, 

TEXAS that those listed below: 

 

3 – Members who will serve through June 2021 

4 – Members who will serve through June 2022 

 

_______Amy Pearce______________  Term expires: June 1, 2021 

 

_____ Dar Hakimzadeh___________   Term expires: June 1, 2021 

 

_____ Randy Stacy ___ ___________  Term expires: June 1, 2021 

 

______________________________   Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

______________________________   Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

______________________________   Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

______________________________   Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

 

Be named to serve as Members of the Planning and Zoning Commission for terms as 

designated above during which they are expected to duly execute those responsibilities. 

 

Page 192 of 241



This resolution duly passed this 19th day of May, 2020. 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

                   Aaron Groff, Mayor 

                   City of Fulshear, Texas 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Kimberly Kopecky, City Secretary 

Page 193 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VIII.G.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/5/2020 DEPARTMENT: Administration

PREPARED BY: PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:   CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-464, A
RESOLUTION APPOINTING A REPRESENTATIVE FROM THE ETJ AS AN AD HOC VOTING MEMBER OF
THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION WHEN IT ACTS AS THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

There is currently one (1) position up for appointment in June 2020. Resolution No. 2020-464 has been prepared for Council's
consideration.

RECOMMENDATION

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Resolution No. 2020-464 5/5/2020 Resolution Letter

Page 194 of 241



 

1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-464 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS, APPOINTING A 

REPRESENTATIVE FROM THE EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION AS AN AD HOC 

VOTING MEMBER OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION WHEN IT ACTS 

AS THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE; PROVIDING FOR 

REPEAL; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2-133 of the Fulshear Code, and in accordance 

with Section 395.058 of the Texas Local Government Code, the planning and zoning 

commission is appointed to act as the capital improvements advisory committee; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2-133(c)(2) of the Fulshear Code provides that if the City’s 

impact fee is applied in the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Fulshear, then the City 

Council shall appoint by resolution one representative from that area as an ad hoc voting 

member of the planning and zoning commission when it acts as the capital improvements 

advisory committee; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2019-1313, the City’s impact fees are 
applied in the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Fulshear; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FULSHEAR, TEXAS: 
 
 Section 1. The facts set out in the preamble are found to be true and correct 
and are incorporated herein for all purposes. 
 
 Section 2. In accordance with Section 2-133(c)(2) of the Fulshear Code, the 
following individual, being a representative from the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City 
of Fulshear, is hereby appointed as an ad hoc voting member of the planning and zoning 
commission when it acts as the capital improvements advisory committee: 
 

_________________________________________________. 
 
 Section 3. Repeal. All other resolutions or parts of resolutions inconsistent 
or in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency or conflict, hereby repealed. 
 
 Section 4. Effective date. This resolution shall be effective and in full force 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED on the ______ day of _______________, 2020.  

 

Page 195 of 241



 

2 
 

 
 ________________________________ 
 Aaron Groff, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Kimberly Kopecky, City Secretary 
 

 

Page 196 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VIII.H.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/4/2020 DEPARTMENT: Administration

PREPARED BY: Kimberly Kopecky PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:   CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-469, A
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE CITY'S ZONING BOARD
OF ADJUSTMENT

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

There are currently five (5) positions up for appointment in June/July 2020. Resolution No. 2020-469 has been prepared for
City Council's consideration.

RECOMMENDATION

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Resolution No. 2020-469 5/4/2020 Resolution Letter

Page 197 of 241



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-469 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS APPOINTING 

MEMBERS TO THE ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPENDIX A 

SECTION 1-277 OF THE CITY'S CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas recognizes that Section 1-277 of 

Appendix A – Zoning in the City’s Code of Ordinances states “For the purpose of this Ordinance, 

there is hereby created a Board of Adjustment consisting of five members each appointed by the 

City Council.” and; 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas is desirous of appointing Members to 

such a Board to hear appeals of decisions rendered by zoning administrators and interpret  

provisions in the zoning ordinance; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas appreciates the willingness of those 

selected to serve; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas has considered the merits of such 

appointments and finds the persons listed below as competent and eligible for service; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS 

That those listed below shall serve as the Zoning Board of Adjustment to hear appeals of decisions 

rendered by zoning administrators and interpret provisions in the zoning ordinance: 

 

5 – Members who will serve through June 2022 

 

__________________________________    Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

__________________________________    Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

___________________________________    Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

___________________________________    Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

___________________________________    Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

Be named to serve as Members of the Zoning Board of Adjustment for terms as designated above 

during which they are expected to duly execute those responsibilities. 

 

This resolution duly passed this 19th day of May, 2020. 

Page 198 of 241



 

 

       ___________________________________ 

                         Aaron Groff, Mayor 

             City of Fulshear, Texas 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Kimberly Kopecky, Interim City Secretary 

Page 199 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VIII.I.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

4/30/2020 DEPARTMENT: Administration

PREPARED BY: Kimberly Kopecky PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:   CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-465, A
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE CITY'S PARKS AND
RECREATION COMMISSION

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

There are currently four (4) positions up for appointment in 2020 and one (1) vacant position up for appointment with a term
expiring in 2021. Resolution No. 2020-465 has been prepared for the Council's consideration.

RECOMMENDATION

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Resolution No. 2020-465 4/30/2020 Resolution Letter

Page 200 of 241



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-465 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS APPOINTING 

AND REAPPOINTING CERTAIN MEMBERS TO THE CITY’S PARKS AND RECREATION 

COMMISSION 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas is desirous of continuing the 

makeup of the City’s Parks and Recreation Commission, and; 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas appreciates the service and 

dedication of those previously and currently serving, and; 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas has been presented a slate of 

qualified willing volunteers to serve in the capacity as Members of the Parks and 

Recreation Commission; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR, 

TEXAS that those listed below: 

 

4 – Members who will serve through June 2022 

 

 

_______________________________  Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

_______________________________  Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

_______________________________  Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

_______________________________  Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

3 – Members who will serve through June 2021 

 

______Joe Goodwin__    Term expires: June 1, 2021 

 

______Sara (Katie) Sallean__    Term expires: June 1, 2021 

 

_______________________________  Term expires: June 1, 2021 

 

 

 

Page 201 of 241



2 – Developer Members who will serve through June 2021 

 

_______Rob Bamford ________   Term expires: June 1, 2021 

 

_______Bill Sweitzer     Term expires: June 1, 2021 

 

Be named to serve as Members of the Parks and Recreation Commission for terms as 

designated above during which they are expected to duly execute those responsibilities. 

 

This resolution duly passed this 19th day of May, 2020. 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

                   Aaron Groff, Mayor 

                   City of Fulshear, Texas 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Kimberly Kopecky, City Secretary 

Page 202 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VIII.J.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

4/30/2020 DEPARTMENT: Administration

PREPARED BY: Kimberly Kopecky PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:   CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-466, A
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE CITY'S HISTORIC
PRESERVATION AND MUSEUM COMMISSION

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

There are currently four (4) positions up for appointment in 2020. Resolution No. 2020-466 has been prepared for the
Council's consideration.

RECOMMENDATION

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Resolution No. 2020-466 4/30/2020 Resolution Letter

Page 203 of 241



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-466 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS APPOINTING 

AND REAPPOINTING CERTAIN MEMBERS TO THE CITY’S HISTORIC PRESERVATION AND 

MUSEUM COMMISSION 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas is desirous of continuing the 

preservation of our historic and cultural artifacts and guiding the development of a 

Museum intended for such purpose, and; 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas appreciates the service and 

dedication of those previously and currently serving, and; 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas has been presented a slate of 

qualified willing volunteers to serve in the capacity as Members of the Historic 

Preservation and Museum Commission; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR, 

TEXAS that those listed below: 

 

3 – Members who will serve through June 2021 

4 – Members who will serve through June 2022 

 

 

_____Viola Randle________________  Term expires: June 1, 2021 

 

_____Susie Howey________________  Term expires: June 1, 2021 

 

_____Heather Raphael____________  Term expires: June 1, 2021 

 

_______________________________  Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

_______________________________  Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

_______________________________  Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

_______________________________  Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

 

 

Page 204 of 241



Be named to serve as Members of the Historic Preservation and Museum Commission for 

terms as designated above during which they are expected to duly execute those 

responsibilities. 

 

This resolution duly passed this 19th day of May, 2020. 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

                   Aaron Groff, Mayor 

                   City of Fulshear, Texas 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Kimberly Kopecky, City Secretary 

Page 205 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VIII.K.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

4/30/2020 DEPARTMENT: Administration

PREPARED BY: Kimberly Kopecky PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:   CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-467,
APPOINTING DIRECTORS TO THE BOARD OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION, A TYPE "A" ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX CORPORATION

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

There are currently two (2) positions up for appointment in 2020. Resolution No. 2020-467 has been prepared for the
Council's consideration.

RECOMMENDATION

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Resolution No. 2020-467 4/30/2020 Resolution Letter

Page 206 of 241



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-467 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS APPOINTING DIRECTORS 
TO THE BOARD OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, A TYPE “A” ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX CORPORATION 

  

WHEREAS, the City appreciates the volunteer service and dedication of board members past and 
present; and 

WHEREAS, the terms for certain directors of the Corporation expire June 1, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas wishes to make appointments to the City of 
Fulshear Development Corporation; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas has considered the merits of such 
appointments and finds the persons listed below as competent and eligible for service; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS that 
appointments for the City of Fulshear Development Corporation are as follows, that directors no 
longer listed below are removed from the board, and that those named to serve as directors for the 
terms designated are expected to duly execute the responsibilities of said positions: 

 

Directors with terms expiring in 2022 

___________________________    Term expires: June 1, 2022 

__________________________    Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 

Directors with terms expiring in 2021 

_______ Andrew Van Chau ______    Term expires: June 1, 2021 

_______Jackie Gilmore_ ______    Term expires: June 1, 2021 

_______Randy Etheridge_     Term expires: June 1, 2021 

This resolution duly passed this 19th day of May, 2020. 

 
 
              
       Aaron Groff, Mayor 
       City of Fulshear, Texas 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Kimberly Kopecky, City Secretary  
City of Fulshear, Texas 

Page 207 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VIII.L.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/4/2020 DEPARTMENT: Administration

PREPARED BY: Kimberly Kopecky PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:   CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-468,
APPOINTING DIRECTORS TO THE BOARD OF THE FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, A
TYPE "B" ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX CORPORATION

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

There are currently four (4) positions up for appointment in 2020 and two (2) vacant positions with terms expiring in 2021
needing appointments. Resolution No. 2020-468 has been prepared for Council's consideration.

RECOMMENDATION

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Resolution No. 2020-468 4/30/2020 Resolution Letter

Page 208 of 241



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-468 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS APPOINTING DIRECTORS 
TO THE BOARD OF THE FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, A TYPE “B” ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX CORPORATION 

 
WHEREAS, the City appreciates the volunteer service and dedication of board members past and 
present; and 

WHEREAS, the terms for certain directors of the Corporation expire June 1, 2020; and  

WHEREAS, City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas wishes to make appointments to the Fulshear 
Development Corporation; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fulshear, Texas has considered the merits of such 
appointments and finds the persons listed below as competent and eligible for service; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS that 
appointments for the Fulshear Development Corporation are as follows, that directors no longer 
listed below are removed from the board, and that those named to serve as directors for the terms 
designated are expected to duly execute the responsibilities of said positions: 

 
Directors with terms expiring in 2022 

___         ____________     Term expires: June 1, 2022 

___________________     Term expires: June 1, 2022 

____________________     Term expires: June 1, 2022 

_____________      Term expires: June 1, 2022 

 
Directors with terms expiring in 2021 

____________________     Term expires: June 1, 2021 

               _______      Term expires: June 1, 2021 

               _Jason Maklary     Term expires: June 1, 2021 

          _Don McCoy   (Ex Officio)    Term expires: June 1, 2021 

 
This resolution duly passed this 19th day of May, 2020. 
 
              
       Aaron Groff, Mayor 
       City of Fulshear, Texas 
ATTEST: 
       
Kimberly Kopecky, City Secretary  
City of Fulshear, Texas 

Page 209 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VIII.M.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/1/2020 DEPARTMENT: Police

PREPARED BY: Lynn Raymer PRESENTER: Kenny Seymour
SUBJECT:   CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE INDIVIDUAL AGREEMENTS FOR
LAW ENFORCEMENT EQUIPMENT WITH FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO.
172, FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 173, AND FORT BEND COUNTY
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 170

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Council approve the three individual agreements for law enforcement equipment with Fort Bend County
Municipal Utility District No. 172, Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 173, and Fort Bend County Municipal
Utility District No. 170.

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
FLOCK Safety Police Overview 2020 5/7/2020 Exhibit
Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District 170 Agreement 5/12/2020 Cover Memo
Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District 172 Agreement 5/12/2020 Cover Memo
Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District 173 Agreement 5/12/2020 Cover Memo

Page 210 of 241



7 Million property crimes occur every year nationwide. 
 Unfortunately, 87% of these crimes go unsolved due to lack of 

evidence. Flock Safety’s license plate reading cameras give 
clear, filterable footage you need to solve crime.

“With Flock Safety’s system, we were able to 
successfully solve an incident that in any 

other situation would have been a cold case”
- Detective N. Yimer, Dekalb County PD

Capture 
every license 

plate

Protecting 
communities in 

39 US states

Find the 
evidence needed 

in seconds

Unlimited users 
for hotlist 

alerts

City-wide 
coverage your 
jurisdiction 
needs.

flocksafety.com/police
866-522-8863            police@flocksafety.comPage 211 of 241



Leverage solar or wired 
electric for power, so 
cameras can go 
anywhere you need.

Install 
anywhere

Use a Google-like search 
from your computer or 
phone to access footage 
from our secure cloud, 
identifying vehicles in 
seconds.

Fast 
and easy

$2,500 per camera 
annually includes 
maintenance, cloud 
storage, cellular service, 
and software updates. 
One-time installation fee 
of $250. 

Affordable 
for all

Our cameras deliver 1.3 times the 
plate reads of traditional LPR 
cameras, and capture state details, 
temporary tags, and details on 
no-plate vehicles.

Unrivaled
accuracy

We install, service, and continuously 
upgrade your cameras at no additional cost.

Worry-free 
maintenance

flocksafety.com/police
866-522-8863            police@flocksafety.com

“This relatively inexpensive 
camera technology helps 
to solve and prevent crime 
in our community”
- Lieutenant D. Strickland, LaGrange, GA PD

Page 212 of 241



 

863211 

AGREEMENT FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT EQUIPMENT  
 

This Agreement for Law Enforcement Equipment (the “Agreement”) is made and 
entered into as of the date last executed by the parties below (the “Effective Date”), by 
the City of Fulshear, Texas, a municipal corporation and a home-rule city in the State of 
Texas (the “City”) acting by and through the City of Fulshear Police Department (“FPD”), 
and Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 170, a conservation and reclamation 
district and a body politic and a political subdivision of the State of Texas, created under 
the authority of Article XVI, Section 59 of the Texas Constitution and operating under 
and governed by the provisions of Chapters 49 and 54, Texas Water Code, as amended 
(the “District”).  The City and the District are collectively referred to herein as “Parties.” 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enhance law enforcement services in the District 
and the City through the installation of the Equipment (as defined below); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to cause the installation of the Equipment and to 

operate the Equipment for the benefit of the District and the City; and  
 
WHEREAS, each Party has determined that the Equipment will benefit is residents 

and landowners; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has requested that the District fund certain costs (described 

herein) associated with the Equipment for the purpose of assisting law enforcement in 
the District; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits herein contained, the 

Parties hereby agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose of this Agreement, the following terms shall mean: 

 
1. Equipment.  Equipment shall mean three (3) Flock Safety cameras, as described in 

Exhibit A, to be installed within the boundaries of the District and to be utilized 
to assist the City’s law enforcement in detecting vehicle make, model, type, color, 
and license plate (e.g. state, temporary, and missing plates). 
 

2. Flock Payment. The payment due to the provider of the Equipment, including all 
subscription costs (the “Flock Payment”).  

Page 213 of 241



 

-2- 
863211 

 
ARTICLE I. 
PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Agreement is for the City to provide and maintain the 
Equipment under the terms and conditions herein.  By signing this Agreement, the City 
agrees to provide the goods and services referred to in Articles II and III under the terms 
and conditions herein. 

ARTICLE II. 
THE EQUPIMENT 

A. The City agrees to cause the installation of the Equipment within 60 days of the 
Effective Date. 

B. The City (and not the District) shall be responsible to operate, maintain, repair, 
improve, and replace the Equipment.  

C. All costs associated with the acquisition, installation, operation, maintenance, 
repair, improvement and replacement of the Equipment (including, without 
limitation, the Flock Payment) shall be the City’s responsibility, except that the 
District will make the District Payment as described below.  

D. It is expressly understood and agreed that the Equipment shall be subject to the 
control and supervision of the City to the same extent as the City’s other law 
enforcement equipment. 

E. The City has provided the District with a list indicating each location where the 
Equipment will be installed within the boundaries of the District, which is 
intended to be an intragovernmental transfer for purposes of the Public 
Information Act, Chapter 552, Government Code. The Parties acknowledge that 
the release of such list would interfere with the detection, investigation, or 
prosecution of crime. Therefore, upon receiving a request for such list from any 
other person pursuant to the Public Information Act, the Parties agree to seek to 
withhold such information to the extent permitted by law, including, if necessary, 
requesting a decision from the attorney general as to whether the list falls under 
an exception to disclosure, including but not necessarily limited to Section 552.108, 
Government Code. 

ARTICLE III. 
CITY EMPLOYEES 

A. The City employees performing duties under this Agreement shall at all times 
remain City employees subject to the same rights and responsibilities as the City’s 
other employees. 

Page 214 of 241



 

-3- 
863211 

B. The City agrees that the City employees shall perform the services associated with 
the Equipment described herein in accordance with the appropriate City policies 
and the policies and procedures of the City; provided, however, that, while City 
shall be responsible for the acts and omissions of its employees, such responsibility 
shall be subject to the terms, provisions and limitations of the Constitution and of 
the laws of the State of Texas and, particularly, TEX. CIV. PRAC. & REM. §101.001, 
et. seq., the Texas Tort Claims Act.  THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES OR 
CONDITIONS OF ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH 
RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT 
PROVIDED BY CITY OR THE LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICIALS TO THE 
DISTRICT, AND CITY AND THE LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICIALS 
EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM ANY SUCH WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS. 

C. The City retains sole and independent authority regarding (i) the hiring, 
supervision, discipline, and termination of City employees, and (ii) the placement 
or replacement of the Equipment.  

ARTICLE IV. 
DISTRICT PAYMENT 

A. The District agrees to reimburse the City for the Flock Payment in accordance with 
the Equipment quote attached as Exhibit A, in an amount not to exceed six 
thousand dollars ($6,000.00) (the “District Payment”).  

B. The District Payment shall be made payable to the City and shall be delivered to 
the City Manager, P.O. Box 279, Fulshear, Texas 77441. 

C. Whether additional law enforcement cameras will be purchased is solely within 
City’s discretion, though the District shall not be responsible for the payment of 
any funds to the City except the District Payment. 

D. The District shall have no ownership interest in the Equipment. 

E. The District Payment shall be due and payable to the City no later than forty-five 
(45) days after the City provides the District with a written document confirming 
(i) that the City has made the Flock Payment; and (ii) the Equipment has been 
installed.   

ARTICLE V. 
TERM AND ASSIGNMENTS 

A. This Agreement shall expire one year after the Effective Date. 
 
B. This Agreement is not assignable. 

ARTICLE VI. 

Page 215 of 241



 

-4- 
863211 

SEVERABILITY AND HEADINGS 

A. The provisions of this Agreement are severable, and if any word, phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph, section or other part of this Agreement or the application 
thereof, to any person or circumstance, shall ever be held by any court or 
regulatory authority of competent jurisdiction, to be invalid, illegal or 
unconstitutional for any reason, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be 
affected thereby. 
 

B. Headings or subheadings included in this Agreement are given for convenience 
only and shall not be considered or given any effect in construing this Agreement.  
 

 

ARTICLE VII. 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT; REQUIREMENT OF A WRITING 

A. With respect to the subject matter hereof, this Agreement embodies the entire 
agreement of the Parties. This Agreement supersedes all prior communications 
and negotiations, oral or written, relating to the subject matter hereof as well as 
any previous agreements presently in effect between the Parties relating to the 
subject matter hereof. 

B. Any modifications, alterations, amendments, deletions, or waivers of the 
provisions of this Agreement shall be valid only when expressed in writing and 
duly signed by the parties. 

ARTICLE VIII. 
NOTICE 

A. Any notice required or permitted under this Agreement shall be sent, postage 
prepaid, certified or registered mail, or delivered in person or by facsimile, with 
verification, as follows: 

To the City: City Manager 
 City of Fulshear 

P.O. Box 279 
Fulshear, Texas 77441 

 
To the District: Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 170  

c/o Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP 
Attn: Ryan Harper   
3200 Southwest Freeway 
Phoenix Tower, Suite 2600 
Houston, Texas 77027 

Page 216 of 241



 

-5- 
863211 

B. Any Party may designate a different address by giving at least ten (10) days 
written notice to the other party in the manner provided above. 

ARTICLE IX. 
REVENUE 

Each party paying for the performance of governmental functions or services must make 
those payments from current revenues available to the paying party. 

 [execution pages follow] 

Page 217 of 241



 

  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in 
multiple copies, each of equal dignity, as of the dates set forth below. 

 
      

       CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS 

 

      
Mayor 
Date:      

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 
City Secretary 
  

Page 218 of 241



 

 

 

 
                 
FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL 
UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 170 

 
 
 

       
President, Board of Directors 
Date:      

ATTEST: 

 

       
Secretary, Board of Directors 
 

(SEAL) 

 

 

 

Page 219 of 241



863209 

AGREEMENT FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT EQUIPMENT  
 

This Agreement for Law Enforcement Equipment (the “Agreement”) is made and 
entered into as of the date last executed by the parties below (the “Effective Date”), by 
the City of Fulshear, Texas, a municipal corporation and a home-rule city in the State of 
Texas (the “City”) acting by and through the City of Fulshear Police Department (“FPD”), 
and Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 172, a conservation and reclamation 
district and a body politic and a political subdivision of the State of Texas, created under 
the authority of Article XVI, Section 59 of the Texas Constitution and operating under 
and governed by the provisions of Chapters 49 and 54, Texas Water Code, as amended 
(the “District”).  The City and the District are collectively referred to herein as “Parties.” 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enhance law enforcement services in the District 

and the City through the installation of the Equipment (as defined below); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to cause the installation of the Equipment and to 

operate the Equipment for the benefit of the District and the City; and  
 
WHEREAS, each Party has determined that the Equipment will benefit is residents 

and landowners; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has requested that the District fund certain costs (described 

herein) associated with the Equipment for the purpose of assisting law enforcement in 
the District; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits herein contained, the 

Parties hereby agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 
 

DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose of this Agreement, the following terms shall mean: 

 
1. Equipment.  Equipment shall mean four (4) Flock Safety cameras, as described in 

Exhibit A, to be installed within the boundaries of the District and to be utilized 
to assist the City’s law enforcement in detecting vehicle make, model, type, color, 
and license plate (e.g. state, temporary, and missing plates). 
 

2. Flock Payment The payment due to the provider of the Equipment, including all 
subscription costs (the “Flock Payment”).  

 

Page 220 of 241



-5- 
863209 

ARTICLE I. 
PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Agreement is for the City to provide and maintain the 
Equipment under the terms and conditions herein.  By signing this Agreement, the City 
agrees to provide the goods and services referred to in Articles II and III under the terms 
and conditions herein. 

ARTICLE II. 
THE EQUPIMENT 

A. The City agrees to cause the installation of the Equipment within 60 days of the 
Effective Date. 

B. The City (and not the District) shall be responsible to operate, maintain, repair, 
improve, and replace the Equipment.  

C. All costs associated with the acquisition, installation, operation, maintenance, 
repair, improvement and replacement of the Equipment (including, without 
limitation, the Flock Payment) shall be the City’s responsibility, except that the 
District will make the District Payment as described below.  

D. It is expressly understood and agreed that the Equipment shall be subject to the 
control and supervision of the City to the same extent as the City’s other law 
enforcement equipment. 

E. The City has provided the District with a list indicating each location where the 
Equipment will be installed within the boundaries of the District, which is 
intended to be an intragovernmental transfer for purposes of the Public 
Information Act, Chapter 552, Government Code. The Parties acknowledge that 
the release of such list would interfere with the detection, investigation, or 
prosecution of crime. Therefore, upon receiving a request for such list from any 
other person pursuant to the Public Information Act, the Parties agree to seek to 
withhold such information to the extent permitted by law, including, if necessary, 
requesting a decision from the attorney general as to whether the list falls under 
an exception to disclosure, including but not necessarily limited to Section 552.108, 
Government Code.  

ARTICLE III. 
CITY EMPLOYEES 

A. The City employees performing duties under this Agreement shall at all times 
remain City employees subject to the same rights and responsibilities as the City’s 
other employees. 

Page 221 of 241



-5- 
863209 

B. The City agrees that the City employees shall perform the services associated with 
the Equipment described herein in accordance with the appropriate City policies 
and the policies and procedures of the City; provided, however, that, while City 
shall be responsible for the acts and omissions of its employees, such responsibility 
shall be subject to the terms, provisions and limitations of the Constitution and of 
the laws of the State of Texas and, particularly, TEX. CIV. PRAC. & REM. §101.001, 
et. seq., the Texas Tort Claims Act.  THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES OR 
CONDITIONS OF ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH 
RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT 
PROVIDED BY CITY OR THE LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICIALS TO THE 
DISTRICT, AND CITY AND THE LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICIALS 
EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM ANY SUCH WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS. 

C. The City retains sole and independent authority regarding (i) the hiring, 
supervision, discipline, and termination of City employees, and (ii) the placement 
or replacement of the Equipment.  

ARTICLE IV. 
DISTRICT PAYMENT 

A. The District agrees to reimburse the City for the Flock Payment in accordance with 
the Equipment quote attached as Exhibit A, in an amount not to exceed eight 
thousand dollars ($8,000.00) (the “District Payment”).  

B. The District Payment shall be made payable to the City and shall be delivered to 
the City Manager, P.O. Box 279, Fulshear, Texas 77441. 

C. Whether additional law enforcement cameras will be purchased is solely within 
City’s discretion, though the District shall not be responsible for the payment of 
any funds to the City except the District Payment. 

D. The District shall have no ownership interest in the Equipment. 

E. The District Payment shall be due and payable to the City no later than forty-five 
(45) days after the City provides the District with a written document confirming 
(i) that the City has made the Flock Payment; and (ii) the Equipment has been 
installed.   

ARTICLE V. 
TERM AND ASSIGNMENTS 

A. This Agreement shall expire one year after the Effective Date. 
 
B. This Agreement is not assignable. 

ARTICLE VI. 

Page 222 of 241



-5- 
863209 

SEVERABILITY AND HEADINGS 

A. The provisions of this Agreement are severable, and if any word, phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph, section or other part of this Agreement or the application 
thereof, to any person or circumstance, shall ever be held by any court or 
regulatory authority of competent jurisdiction, to be invalid, illegal or 
unconstitutional for any reason, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be 
affected thereby. 
 

B. Headings or subheadings included in this Agreement are given for convenience 
only and shall not be considered or given any effect in construing this Agreement.  

 
ARTICLE VII. 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT; REQUIREMENT OF A WRITING 

A. With respect to the subject matter hereof, this Agreement embodies the entire 
agreement of the Parties. This Agreement supersedes all prior communications 
and negotiations, oral or written, relating to the subject matter hereof as well as 
any previous agreements presently in effect between the Parties relating to the 
subject matter hereof. 

B. Any modifications, alterations, amendments, deletions, or waivers of the 
provisions of this Agreement shall be valid only when expressed in writing and 
duly signed by the parties. 

ARTICLE VIII. 
NOTICE 

A. Any notice required or permitted under this Agreement shall be sent, postage 
prepaid, certified or registered mail, or delivered in person or by facsimile, with 
verification, as follows: 

To the City: City Manager 
 City of Fulshear 

P.O. Box 279 
Fulshear, Texas 77441 

 
To the District: Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 172  

c/o Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP 
Attn: Ryan Harper   
3200 Southwest Freeway 
Phoenix Tower, Suite 2600 
Houston, Texas 77027 

Page 223 of 241



-5- 
863209 

B. Any Party may designate a different address by giving at least ten (10) days 
written notice to the other party in the manner provided above. 

ARTICLE IX. 
REVENUE 

Each party paying for the performance of governmental functions or services must make 
those payments from current revenues available to the paying party. 

 [execution pages follow]

Page 224 of 241



  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in 
multiple copies, each of equal dignity, as of the dates set forth below. 

 
      

       CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS 

 

      
Mayor 
Date:      

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 
City Secretary 
  

Page 225 of 241



7 

 

 
                 
FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL 
UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 172 

 
 
 

       
President, Board of Directors 
Date:       

ATTEST: 

 

       
Secretary, Board of Directors 
 

(SEAL) 

 

Page 226 of 241



 

863212 

AGREEMENT FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT EQUIPMENT  
 

This Agreement for Law Enforcement Equipment (the “Agreement”) is made and 
entered as of the date last executed by the parties below (the “Effective Date”), by the 
City of Fulshear, Texas, a municipal corporation and a home-rule city in the State of Texas 
(the “City”) acting by and through the City of Fulshear Police Department (“FPD”), and 
Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 173, a conservation and reclamation 
district and a body politic and a political subdivision of the State of Texas, created under 
the authority of Article XVI, Section 59 of the Texas Constitution and operating under 
and governed by the provisions of Chapters 49 and 54, Texas Water Code, as amended 
(the “District”).  The City and the District are collectively referred to herein as “Parties.” 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enhance law enforcement services in the District 

and the City through the installation of the Equipment (as defined below); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to cause the installation of the Equipment  and to 

operate the Equipment for the benefit of the District and the City; and  
 
WHEREAS, each Party has determined that the Equipment will benefit is residents 

and landowners; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has requested that the District  fund certain costs (described 

herein) associated with the Equipment for the purpose of assisting law enforcement in 
the District; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits herein contained, the 

Parties hereby agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 
 

DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose of this Agreement, the following terms shall mean: 

 
1. Equipment.  Equipment shall mean three (3) Flock Safety cameras, as described in 

Exhibit A, to be installed within the boundaries of the District and to be utilized 
to assist the City’s law enforcement in detecting vehicle make, model, type, color, 
and license plate (e.g. state, temporary, and missing plates). 
 

2. Flock Payment The payment due to the provider of the Equipment, including all 
subscription costs (the “Flock Payment”).  

 

Page 227 of 241



 

-5- 
863212 

ARTICLE I. 
PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Agreement is for the City to provide and maintain  the 
Equipment under the terms and conditions herein.  By signing this Agreement, the City 
agrees to provide the goods and services referred to in Articles II and III under the terms 
and conditions herein. 

ARTICLE II. 
THE EQUPIMENT 

A. The City agrees to cause the installation of the Equipment within 60 days of the 
Effective Date.. 

B. The City (and not the District) shall  be responsible to operate, maintain, repair, 
improve, and replace the Equipment.  

C. All costs associated with the acquisition, installation, operation, maintenance, 
repair, improvement and replacement of the Equipment (including, without 
limitation, the Flock Payment) shall be the City’s responsibility, except that the 
District will make the District Payment as  described below.  

D. It is expressly understood and agreed that the Equipment shall be subject to the 
control and supervision of the City to the same extent as the City’s other law 
enforcement equipment. 

E. The City has provided the District with a list indicating each location where the 
Equipment will be installed within the boundaries of the District, which is 
intended to be an intragovernmental transfer for purposes of the Public 
Information Act, Chapter 552, Government Code. The Parties acknowledge that 
the release of such list would interfere with the detection, investigation, or 
prosecution of crime. Therefore, upon receiving a request for such list from any 
other person pursuant to the Public Information Act, the Parties agree to seek to 
withhold such information to the extent permitted by law, including, if necessary, 
requesting a decision from the attorney general as to whether the list falls under 
an exception to disclosure, including but not necessarily limited to Section 552.108, 
Government Code.  

ARTICLE III. 
CITY EMPLOYEES 

A. The City employees performing duties under this Agreement shall at all times 
remain  City employees subject to the same rights and responsibilities as the City’s 
other employees. 

Page 228 of 241



 

-5- 
863212 

B. The City agrees that the City employees shall perform the services associated with 
the Equipment described herein in accordance with the appropriate City policies 
and the policies and procedures of the City; provided, however, that, while City 
shall be responsible for the acts and omissions of its employees, such responsibility 
shall be subject to the terms, provisions and limitations of the Constitution and of 
the laws of the State of Texas and, particularly, TEX. CIV. PRAC. & REM. §101.001, 
et. seq., the Texas Tort Claims Act.  THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES OR 
CONDITIONS OF ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH 
RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT 
PROVIDED BY CITY OR THE LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICIALS TO THE 
DISTRICT, AND CITY AND THE LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICIALS 
EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM ANY SUCH WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS. 

C. The City retains sole and independent authority regarding (i) the hiring, 
supervision, discipline, and termination of  City employees, and (ii) the placement 
or replacement of the Equipment.  

ARTICLE IV. 
DISTRICT PAYMENT 

A. The District agrees to reimburse the City for the Flock Payment in accordance with 
the Equipment quote attached as Exhibit A, in an amount not to exceed six 
thousand dollars ($6,000.00) (the “District Payment”).  

B. The District Payment shall be made payable to the City and shall be delivered to 
the City Manager, P.O. Box 279, Fulshear, Texas 77441. 

C. Whether additional law enforcement cameras will be purchased is solely within 
City’s discretion, though the District shall not be responsible for the payment of 
any funds to the City except the District Payment. 

D. The District shall have no ownership interest in the Equipment. 

E. The District Payment shall be due and payable to the City no later than forty-five 
(45) days after the City  provides the District with a written  document confirming  
(i) that the City has made the Flock Payment; and (ii) the Equipment has been 
installed.   

ARTICLE V. 
TERM AND ASSIGNMENTS 

A. This Agreement shall expire one year after the Effective Date. 
 
B. This Agreement is not assignable. 

ARTICLE VI. 

Page 229 of 241



 

-5- 
863212 

SEVERABILITY AND HEADINGS 

A. The provisions of this Agreement are severable, and if any word, phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph, section or other part of this Agreement or the application 
thereof, to any person or circumstance, shall ever be held by any court or 
regulatory authority of competent jurisdiction, to be invalid, illegal or 
unconstitutional for any reason, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be 
affected thereby. 
 

B. Headings or subheadings included in this Agreement are given for convenience 
only and shall not be considered or given any effect in construing this Agreement.  

 
ARTICLE VII. 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT; REQUIREMENT OF A WRITING 

A. With respect to the subject matter hereof, this Agreement embodies the entire 
agreement of the Parties. This Agreement supersedes all prior communications 
and negotiations, oral or written, relating to the subject matter hereof as well as 
any previous agreements presently in effect between the Parties relating to the 
subject matter hereof. 

B. Any modifications, alterations, amendments, deletions, or waivers of the 
provisions of this Agreement shall be valid only when expressed in writing and 
duly signed by the parties. 

ARTICLE VIII. 
NOTICE 

A. Any notice required or permitted under this Agreement shall be sent, postage 
prepaid, certified or registered mail, or delivered in person or by facsimile, with 
verification, as follows: 

To the City: City Manager 
 City of Fulshear 

P.O. Box 279 
Fulshear, Texas 77441 

 
To the District: Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 173 

c/o Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP 
Attn: Ryan Harper   
3200 Southwest Freeway 
Phoenix Tower, Suite 2600 
Houston, Texas 77027 

Page 230 of 241



 

-5- 
863212 

B. Any Party may designate a different address by giving at least ten (10) days 
written notice to the other party in the manner provided above. 

ARTICLE IX. 
REVENUE 

Each party paying for the performance of governmental functions or services must make 
those payments from current revenues available to the paying party. 

 [execution pages follow]

Page 231 of 241



 

  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in 
multiple copies, each of equal dignity, as of the dates set forth below. 

 
      

       CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS 

 

      
Mayor 
Date:      

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 
City Secretary 
  

Page 232 of 241



 

7 

 

 
                 
FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL 
UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 173 

 
 
 

       
President, Board of Directors 
Date:        

ATTEST: 

 

       
Secretary, Board of Directors 
 

(SEAL) 

 

 

Page 233 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VIII.N.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/5/2020 DEPARTMENT: Building Services

PREPARED BY: ZACH GOODLANDER PRESENTER: ZACH GOODLANDER
SUBJECT:   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
CITY OF FULSHEAR, KEITH AND CYNTHIA WILLIAMS, AND THE WESTPARK CHURCH OF CHRIST

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In January City Council approved the "Williams Center" Final Plat. The plat included two reserves (Reserves H and G) for a
future right-of-way (ROW) dedication. It's the main intent of this development agreement to account for that dedication. 
 
These dedications would allow the City to acquire a large portion of the ROW needed for future 5th and 3rd street extensions
and connect Katy-Fulshear Rd. to Charger Way. The land is currently owned by the Church of Christ and the Williams
Family. In exchange for the ROW the City is to commit $125,000 in fee credits to the Church of Christ. These credits can be
used for permit fees, Irene Stern Center rental fees, fire vault fees and water and sewer taps for Phase 1 of the Church's
construction. 
 
The Church and Williams Family also commit to using a certain percentage of masonry on their future development. 

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the development agreement. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Williams Center Plat 5/12/2020 Backup Material

Page 234 of 241



Page 235 of 241



Page 236 of 241



AGENDA MEMO
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF FULSHEAR, TEXAS

AGENDA OF: 5/19/2020
 

ITEMS: VIII.O.

DATE
SUBMITTED:

5/6/2020 DEPARTMENT: Building Services

PREPARED BY: ZACH GOODLANDER PRESENTER: ZACH GOODLANDER
SUBJECT:   CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO DENY THE ACADEMIX VILLAGE
PRELIMINARY PLAT

Expenditure Required:  

Amount Budgeted:  

Funding Account:  

Additional Appropriation Required:  

Funding Account: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This plat was reviewed by the City Engineer and found to have several items needing correction. While most were fairly minor
and quickly mitigated prior to the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting, large issues with the plat remain. Specifically items
(D) and (G) on the City Engineer's review. Furthermore, in review of the plat a potentially illicit prior subdivision on the tract
was found. This latter issue is currently being examined and at this time the City Engineer cannot recommend the plat for
approval. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends denial of the plat per the City Engineer's review. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description Upload Date Type
Academix Village Preliminary Plat App 5/6/2020 Backup Material
Academix Village Preliminary Plat 5/6/2020 Backup Material
Academix Village Plat Review (Prior to P&Z) 5/6/2020 Backup Material

Page 237 of 241



Page 238 of 241



Page 239 of 241



Page 240 of 241



Page 241 of 241


	Meeting Agenda
	IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CITY OF FULSHEAR ZONING ORDINANCE AND CHAPTER 211 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, THE CITY WILL HOLD FOUR PUBLIC HEARINGS; THE FIRST PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON MAY 1, 2020 AT 8:30 A.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT (HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/631315341). A SECOND PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON MAY 1, 2020 AT 9 AM., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT CITY HALL, 30603 FM 1093 FULSHEAR, TEXAS. A THIRD PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY CITY COUNCIL ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 5:30 P.M., AT THE IRENE STERN COMMUNITY CENTER, 6920 KATY-FULSHEAR RD., FULSHEAR, TEXAS. THE FOURTH HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE CITY COUNCIL ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 7:00 P.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT (HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/246038173). EACH HEARING WILL ALLOW ALL INTERESTED PERSONS AN OPPORTUNITY TO BE HEARD. THE LOCATION OF THE PREMISES IN QUESTION IS IN THE RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE DISTRICT, BEING 38.512 ACRES OF LAND, THE REMAINDER OF THE GRANDES RICOS, LLC 44.512 ACRE TRACT, ALL BEING IN THE CHURCHILL FULSHEAR LEAGUE, ABSTRACT NO. 29, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, AND IS MORE SPECIFICALLY LOCATED AT 7510 WALLIS ST. FULSHEAR, TEXAS 77441. THE APPLICANT, JEFFREY DUKE, IS SEEKING A ZONING CHANGE, PURSUANT TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE, SECTION 1-279, TO TAKE THE CURRENT ZONING FROM RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE TO DOWNTOWN DISTRICT, FOR THE PURPOSES OF A MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT WITH COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL, PARK, CIVIC, AND OTHER USES. THE APPLICANT RESERVES THE RIGHT TO SUPPLEMENT THIS APPLICATION AND/OR SEEK AT THE TIME OF THE HEARING, SUCH OTHER APPROVALS, INTERPRETATIONS, AND/OR WAIVERS AS MAY BE REQUESTED OR REQUIRED BY THE APPLICANT OR THE BOARD/COUNCIL. A COPY OF SAID APPLICATION AND DOCUMENTS IS ON FILE AT THE CITY OF FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT LOCATED AT 29255 FM 1093 SUITE #12C FULSHEAR, TEXAS 77441 ON MONDAY THROUGH THURSDAYS FROM 7:00 A.M. TO 4:00 P.M. AND FRIDAYS FROM 7:00 A.M. TO 3P.M. FOR ALL INTEREST
	IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CITY OF FULSHEAR ZONING ORDINANCE AND CHAPTER 211 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, THE CITY WILL HOLD FOUR PUBLIC HEARINGS; THE FIRST PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON MAY 1, 2020 AT 8:30 A.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT (HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/631315341). A SECOND PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON MAY 1, 2020 AT 9 AM., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT CITY HALL, 30603 FM 1093 FULSHEAR, TEXAS. A THIRD PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY CITY COUNCIL ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 5:30 P.M., AT THE IRENE STERN COMMUNITY CENTER, 6920 KATY-FULSHEAR RD., FULSHEAR, TEXAS. THE FOURTH HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE CITY COUNCIL ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 7:00 P.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT (HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/246038173). EACH HEARING WILL ALLOW ALL INTERESTED PERSONS AN OPPORTUNITY TO BE HEARD. THE LOCATION OF THE PREMISES IN QUESTION IS IN THE RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE DISTRICT, BEING 86.191 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, BEING THE RESIDUE OF A 101 ACRE TRACT AS DESCRIBED IN THE UTILITY EASEMENT AGREEMENT EXECUTED BY AND BETWEEN THE ESTATE OF GERALD WAYNE MCCANN, DECEASED, ET AL., AND THE CITY OF FULSHEAR AND REFERENCED AS INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2018040871, FILED IN THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, AND IS MORE SPECIFICALLY LOCATED AT 31210 FM 1093 FULSHEAR, TEXAS 77441. THE APPLICANT, POSITIVE DEVELOPMENTS LLC, IS SEEKING A ZONING CHANGE, PURSUANT TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE, SECTION 1-279, TO TAKE THE CURRENT ZONING FROM RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE TO DOWNTOWN DISTRICT, FOR THE PURPOSES OF A MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT WITH COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL, PARK, CIVIC, AND OTHER USES. THE APPLICANT RESERVES THE RIGHT TO SUPPLEMENT THIS APPLICATION AND/OR SEEK AT THE TIME OF THE HEARING, SUCH OTHER APPROVALS, INTERPRETATIONS, AND/OR WAIVERS AS MAY BE REQUESTED OR REQUIRED BY THE APPLICANT OR THE BOARD/COUNCIL. A COPY OF SAID APPLICATION AND DOCUMENTS IS ON FILE AT THE CITY OF FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT SERVIC
	IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CITY OF FULSHEAR ZONING ORDINANCE AND CHAPTER 211 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, THE CITY WILL HOLD FOUR PUBLIC HEARINGS; THE FIRST PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON MAY 1, 2020 AT 8:30 A.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT (HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/631315341). A SECOND PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON MAY 1, 2020 AT 9 AM., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT CITY HALL, 30603 FM 1093 FULSHEAR, TEXAS. A THIRD PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD BY CITY COUNCIL ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 5:30 P.M., AT THE IRENE STERN COMMUNITY CENTER, 6920 KATY-FULSHEAR RD., FULSHEAR, TEXAS. THE FOURTH HEARING WILL BE HELD BY THE CITY COUNCIL ON MAY 19, 2020 AT 7:00 P.M., THE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT (HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/246038173). EACH HEARING WILL ALLOW ALL INTERESTED PERSONS AN OPPORTUNITY TO BE HEARD. THE LOCATION OF THE PREMISES IN QUESTION IS IN THE MANUFACTURED HOUSING DISTRICT, BEING THE 2.25-ACRE TRACT CONVEYED TO DAVE ROGERS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 230, PAGE 29, DEED RECORDS FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, AND IS MORE GENERALLY LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST INTERSECTION OF DIXON AND PATTERSON ROADS. THE OWNER’S AGENT, MIKE ROLLER, IS SEEKING A ZONING CHANGE, PURSUANT TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE, SECTION 1-279, TO TAKE THE CURRENT ZONING FROM MANUFACTURED HOUSING TO THE INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, FOR THE PURPOSES OF AN OFFICE WAREHOUSE WITH NO OUTSIDE STORAGE. THE APPLICANT RESERVES THE RIGHT TO SUPPLEMENT THIS APPLICATION AND/OR SEEK AT THE TIME OF THE HEARING, SUCH OTHER APPROVALS, INTERPRETATIONS, AND/OR WAIVERS AS MAY BE REQUESTED OR REQUIRED BY THE APPLICANT OR THE BOARD/COUNCIL. A COPY OF SAID APPLICATION AND DOCUMENTS IS ON FILE AT THE CITY OF FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT LOCATED AT 29255 FM 1093 SUITE #12C FULSHEAR, TEXAS 77441 ON MONDAY THROUGH THURSDAYS FROM 7:00 A.M. TO 4:00 P.M. AND FRIDAYS FROM 7:00 A.M. TO 3P.M. FOR ALL INTERESTED PARTIES PRIOR TO SAID HEARING. IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS REG
	CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS HELD ON APRIL 21, 2020 (SPECIAL) AND APRIL 21, 2020 (REGULAR)
	CONSENT & POSSIBLE ACTION TO ACCEPT THE MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE GENERAL & UTILITY FUNDS
	CONSENT & POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE 20-1 QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
	CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE TAMARRON SECTION 15 FINAL PLAT
	CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE TAMARRON SECTION 21 FINAL PLAT
	CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE TAMARRON SECTION 27 FINAL PLAT
	CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE POLO RANCH SECTION 6 REPLAT NO.1 PRELIMINARY PLAT
	CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE FLETCHER MORGAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PREIMINARY PLAT
	CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF STREET DEDICATION, UTILITY CONVEYANCE AND SECURITY AGREEMENT FOR CREEK COVE AT CROSS CREEK RANCH , SECTION 11, FROM MUD 173
	CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF STREET DEDICATION, UTILITY CONVEYANCE AND SECURITY AGREEMENT FOR CREEK TRACE AT CROSS CREEK RANCH, SECTION 1 FROM  MUD 170
	CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF STREET DEDICATION, UTILITY CONVEYANCE AND SECURITY AGREEMENT FOR THE BROOKS AT CROSS CREEK RANCH, SECTION 3,  MUD 170
	CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF STREET DEDICATION, UTILITY CONVEYANCE AND SECURITY AGREEMENT FOR FULSHEAR BEND DRIVE EXTENSION NO. 3 FROM MUD 169
	CONSIDERATION AND ACTION TO APPROVE A ZONING CHANGE FROM (R-1) RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE TO DOWNTOWN DISTRICT FOR A PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7510 WALLIS STREET
	CONSIDERATION AND ACTION TO APPROVE A ZONING CHANGE FROM (R-1) RESIDENTIAL ACREAGE TO DOWNTOWN DISTRICT FOR A PROPERTY LOCATED AT 31210 FM 1093
	CONSIDERATION AND ACTION TO APPROVE A ZONING CHANGE FROM (MH) MANUFACTURED HOUSING TO (I) INDUSTRIAL FOR A PROPERTY, APPROXIMATEY 2.25 ACRES IN SIZE, LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE INTERSECTION OF PATTERSON AND DIXON ROADS
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-463, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE CITY'S PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-464, A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A REPRESENTATIVE FROM THE ETJ AS AN AD HOC VOTING MEMBER OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION WHEN IT ACTS AS THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-469, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE CITY'S ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-465, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE CITY'S PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-466, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE CITY'S HISTORIC PRESERVATION AND MUSEUM COMMISSION
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-467, APPOINTING DIRECTORS TO THE BOARD OF THE CITY OF FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, A TYPE "A" ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX CORPORATION
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2020-468, APPOINTING DIRECTORS TO THE BOARD OF THE FULSHEAR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, A TYPE "B" ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX CORPORATION
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE INDIVIDUAL AGREEMENTS FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT EQUIPMENT WITH FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 172, FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 173, AND FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 170
	CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF FULSHEAR, KEITH AND CYNTHIA WILLIAMS, AND THE WESTPARK CHURCH OF CHRIST
	CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO DENY THE ACADEMIX VILLAGE PRELIMINARY PLAT



